Neath Port Talbot AGENDA

== (astell-nedd Port Talbot

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

Immediately Following Scrutiny Committee on
THURSDAY, 18™ DECEMBER 2014

COMMITTEE ROOMS A/B - NEATH CIVIC CENTRE

PART 1
1.  To agree the Chairman for this Meeting.
2. Toreceive any declarations of interest from Members.

3. Toreceive the Minutes of the previous Environment and Highways
Cabinet Board held on 13th November 2014. (Pages 1 - 8)

To receive the Report of The Head of Engineering and Transport.

4.  Corporate Comments, Compliments and Complaints (Pages 9 - 18)

5.  Environment and Highways Performance Indicators, Quarter 2, 2014/15
(Pages 19 - 36)

6.  Transforming Bailiff Services (Pages 37 - 40)
7. Proposed Removal of Council Subsidised Bus Services (Pages 41 - 102)
8.  Joint Local Transport Plan South West Wales (Pages 103 - 160)

0. Traffic Order - Corals Residential Scheme, Bowen Street, Neath
(Pages 161 - 164)




To receive the Report of The Head of Corporate Strateqy and
Democratic Services.

10. Urgency Action 1267 - Rowantree Avenue, Baglan (Pages 165 - 166)

11. Urgency Action 1268 - Watercourse at Birch Lane, Cadaxton, Neath
(Pages 167 - 168)

To receive the Forward Work Programme 2014/15. (Pages 169-170)

12.  Any urgent items (whether public or exempt) at the discretion of the
Chairman pursuant to Statutory Instrument 2001 No 2290 (as amended).

S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Friday, 12" December, 2014

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors: E.V.Latham and Mrs.S.Miller

Notes:

(1) If any Cabinet Board Member is unable to attend, any other Cabinet Member may substitute as a voting
Member on the Committee. Members are asked to make these arrangements direct and then to advise the
committee Section.

(2)  The views of the earlier Scrutiny Committee are to be taken into account in arriving at decisions (pre
decision scrutiny process).



Agenda Iltem 3

EXECUTIVE DECISION RECORD
CABINET BOARD - 13"" NOVEMBER 2014

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

Cabinet Board Members:

Councillors:  E.V.Latham (Chairman) and Mrs.S.Miller

Officers in Attendance:

D.Griffiths, 1.Davies and Mrs.T.Davies

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN

Agreed that Councillor E.V.Latham be appointed Chairman for the meeting.

2. MINUTES OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET
BOARD HELD ON 9TH SEPTEMBER, 2014

Noted by the Committee.

3. CHRISTMAS CAR PARKING, 2014

Decision:

That having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment screening, free
parking be implemented in Neath, Port Talbot and Pontardawe Pay and Display
Car Parks and pay on exit car park from Saturday 13" December to Wednesday
24™ December 2014, inclusive.

Reason for Decision:

To encourage trading during the Christmas period.

Page 1



Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

Consultation will be undertaken when the temporary order is advertised.

DELEGATION OF POWER - SECTION 291 OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT
1980

Decision:

That, having due regard to the Equalities Impact Screening Assessment,
Authority be delegated to the Director of Environment, Head of Engineering and
Transport and Head of Streetcare (and other named officers) to sign and serve
notice to enter land in accordance with Section 291 of the Highways Act 1980,
where required, to undertake the Council’s statutory duties.

Reason for Decision:

To ensure the Council’s statutory duties can be undertaken in a timely manner.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

LIST OF APPROVED CONTRACTORS

Decision:

That, having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment screening,
Contractors 1- 6 (as detailed within the circulated report) be included on the
Select List for the relevant categories.

Reason for Decision:

To keep the Select List up-to-date and as far as possible ensure a competitive
procurement process.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.
Page 2



REVOCATION AND PROPOSAL OF TRAFFIC ORDERS - BRIDGE
STREET AND QUAY ROAD, NEATH

Decision:

That, having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment screening, the
following be agreed:-

1. The objection be upheld and the objector be informed accordingly;

2. That the scheme be re-advertised as illustrated in Appendix C to the
circulated report;

3. That, subject to there being no objections, the Traffic Regulation Order to
be implemented.

Reason for Decision:

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interests of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

TRAFFIC ORDER - ALLTWEN HILL, NEATH

Decision:

That, having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment screening, the
following be agreed:-

1. The objections be overruled and that the objectors advised accordingly;

2. The bus bay markings be removed, but the existing double yellow lines
remain;

3. The prohibition of waiting at any time Traffic Regulations Order be
implemented as legally advertised.

Page 3



Reason for Decision:

To introduce a prohibition of waiting at any time order on Alltwen Hill in order
to improve visibility for all road users in the area, in the interests of road safety.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

TRAFFIC ORDER - PEMBROKE TERRACE AND WATER STREET,
PORT TALBOT

Decision:

That, having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment screening, the
following be agreed:-

1. The objection be upheld and the objector advised accordingly;
2. The double yellow lines be withdrawn from the front of 190 Water Street,
but the remainder of the Legal Order be progressed as advertised, as

detailed at Appendix C to the circulated report.

Reason for Decision:

In the interests of road safety, the reduction of the double yellow lines from 10
metres in length to 8 % metres in length should not unduly affect the visibility of
road users in the Pembroke Terrace/Water Street area.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

Page 4



10.

11.

12.

AWARD TO CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

Members commended the Civil Enforcement Officer on his bravery and quick
thinking, and felt that all frontline staff should have some training in First Aid.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

PORT TALBOT PARKWAY RAILWAY STATION - COMMUNITY
AWARD

Decision:

That the report be noted.

URGENCY ACTION 1265 - GLYNTEG HOUSE

Decision:

That the report be noted.

ALLEGED PUBLIC BRIDLEWAY, GLYNCORRWG

Decision:

That no Modification Order be made and the application for a pubic bridleway
from Avon Street to Bridleway 18 Glyncorrwg, as detailed within the circulated
report, be refused.

Reason for Decision:

It could not be concluded that the way claimed had been dedicated to the public,
because neither a statutory presumption of dedication, nor under common law,
could be inferred.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Page 5



13.

14.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

ALLEGED PUBLIC FOOTPATHS, GLYNNEATH

Decision:

That a Modification Order be made under the provisions of Section 53 of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to register the paths shown as F-A, E-A and
A-1 on the plan (Appendix 2 to the circulated report), and should no objections
be made, to confirm the same as an unopposed order.

Reason for Decision:

Sufficient evidence had been provided to reasonably allege that these rights of
way subsist, and that a Modification Order should be made.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented following the three day call in period.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

APPLICATION TO DELETE FOOTPATH 23, BLAENHONDDEN

Decision:

That the application to delete Footpath 23 in the community of Blaenhondden,
as detailed within the circulated report, be refused.

Reason for Decision:

The available evidence did not outweigh the presumption that the path was
correctly included onto the definitive map.

Implementation of Decision:

The decision will be implemented after the three day call in period.

Page 6



15.

Consultation:

This item has been subject to external consultation.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2014/15

Decision:
That the Environment and Highways Cabinet Board Forward Work Programme

be noted.

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT —
D.W. GRIFFITHS

18™ DECEMBER 2014
SECTION C- MATTER FOR MONITORING
WARD(S) AFFECTED: Aberavon, Baglan, Briton Ferry West, Bryn and
Cwmafon, Cimla, Coedffranc West, Margam, Pontardawe, Port Talbot,

Sandfields, Crynant, Godre’rgraig, Cwmllynfell and Trebanos

CORPORATE COMMENTS, COMPLIMENTS AND COMPLAINTS
POLICY AND PROCEDURE MONITORING REPORT

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to advise Members on comments, compliments and
complaints which have been received throughout the Authority’s Complaint
Policy by the Directorate for the six month period from April to September
2014.

Background

The following number of comments, compliments and complaints have been
received by the Environment Directorate:-

Comments — 0
Compliments — 12
Stage 1 Complaints — 10
Stage 2 Complaints — 4
Compliments

Case l

From residents of Neath Road, Crynant thanking the Engineering staff for the
work carried out on the footways in Crynant.

Page 9



Case 2

From a resident of Godre’r Graig thanking the workforce for their quick
response in removing rubbish from the area.

Case 3

From a resident of Ochr y Waun, Cwmllynfell thanking the workforce for all
their efforts litter picking in Cwmllynfell.

Case 4

From a resident of Neath complimenting the workforce for the work done to
clearing a tree overhanging the canal and making it safe to walk along the
towpath.

Case 5

From a resident of Neath thanking the operatives and department for their
efficient response to their complaint regarding an overflowing dog waste bin at
the junction of Ivy Avenue and Harle Street, Neath.

Case 6

From a resident of Glyn Meirch Road, Trebanos, Ponardawe thanking a
member of Streetcare Services for all their excellent help in dealing with their

query.
Case 7

From a resident of Bwlch Road, Cimla—Baglan complimenting the workforce
on the good job completing the repair of the pot holes on the Bwlch Road,
Cimla—Baglan.

Case 8

From The Methodist Church, Neath thanking the Parking Enforcement team for

all their help with parking arrangements for their recent Flower Festival in
celebration of the centenary of Neath Methodist Church.

Page 10



Case 9

From a student thanking the Engineering and Transport Section for making their
work experience very interesting and enjoyable.

Case 10

From a resident of Bridgend complimenting the trial closure of the slip road
junction 41, making their journey to work much easier.

Case 11

From a resident of Pontardawe thanking one of the Traffic Wardens for all their
help and understanding over a situation in Herbert Street car park.

Case 12

From a resident of Pine Valley, Cwmafan, Port Talbot complimenting the
Waste Operatives for their hard work in collecting garden waste bags from their

property.
Stage 1 Complaints
Case 1

A complaint was received via the Ombudsman Office from a resident of
Pontardawe regarding the danger of vehicles parking in Orchard Street,
Pontardawe. The complainant stated that following the introduction of parking
meters in Herbert Street car park, many drivers were forced to park in Orchard
Street, which was not suitable for parking. In addition, drivers were illegally
driving down a one-way system. The complainant stated that officers had
ignored her previous plight in addressing these issues and therefore wished for
her complaint to be investigated.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Engineering & Highways Manager and
found officers had not previously received representation from the complainant
or anyone acting on her behalf regarding her concerns. Charges had been
introduced as part of the Authority’s Parking Strategy and whilst some spaces
had been allocated for residents, spaces could not be guaranteed for them. Her
concerns of vehicles driving incorrectly down a one-way street were forwarded
to the police for investigation. In view of the above and as officers had

Page 11



complied with Authority’s Parking Strategy, the complaint was not upheld and
was responded to within the 10 day guidelines.

Case 2

A complaint was received from a resident of Aberavon who disagreed with an
officer in the Highway Development Control section regarding the non-
adoption of her road. The complainant stated that the Authority had not acted
correctly in undertaking the necessary procedures which would have led to the
adoption of her road and requested her complaint be investigated.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Highways Development Control
Manager who confirmed that the Authority had acted correctly in not pursuing
the adoption of the road due to the drainage works on her development not
being constructed to an adoptable standard. It was also noted that the developer
had not entered into a Section 38 agreement to adopt the highway at the onset
which was beyond the control of the Authority. It was therefore, concluded that
officers had acted correctly in their actions and the complaint was not upheld.
The complaint was investigated within the 10 day guideline.

Case 3

A complaint was received from a member of staff based at Neath Civic Centre
who had received a parking penalty notice for not displaying his staff parking
permit in the multi-storey car park in Neath. The complainant stated that
Parking Officers had not fully considered his circumstances in not displaying
his permit and in addition, he wished for the inappropriate manner in which he
was spoken to by Parking Officers to be investigated.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Head of Service and it was confirmed
that officers had acted correctly and appropriately in issuing the penalty notice
and had taken the complainant’s personal circumstances into consideration.
The complaint was therefore not upheld and was investigated within the 10 day
guideline.

Case 4

A complaint was received from a resident of Briton Ferry regarding the on-
going problems he had been experiencing in not having his food waste

Page 12



collected. The complainant stated that even after repeated requests to the
Authority his receptacles remained uncollected and requested his complaint be
investigated. In addition he wished to report the driver of the refuse vehicle for
using his mobile phone whilst driving.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Waste Services Supervisor and found a
breakdown of communication had occurred between officers and the collection
team and a meeting was arranged with the complainant to offer an apology for
the error. The complainant’s concerns regarding the driver were also reported
as an internal disciplinary matter. The complaint was therefore upheld, but was
not investigated within the 10 day guideline as the complainant had initially
refused to provide his address.

Case 5

A complaint was received from a resident of Sandfields who was struck by a
roll of refuse bags thrown towards her by a waste operative.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by Waste Services Manager and found that
whilst the actions of the delivery person were not deliberate, his actions were
considered careless which had led to the resident being struck. The offender
was reprimanded for his actions and an apology was extended to the
complainant. The complaint was upheld and was investigated within the 10 day
guidelines.

Case 6

A complaint was received from a resident of Baglan regarding an on-going
problem of uncollected refuse bags on his street. The complainant stated that
the bags had not been removed even after repeated request to do so and
therefore wished for his complaint to be investigated.

Conclusion
The complaint was investigated by the Waste Services Supervisor and found
some residents were not presenting their refuse on their correct days. Letters

were sent to the offending properties and the problem was eliminated. The
complaint was upheld and investigated within the 10 day guidelines.

Page 13



Case 7

A complaint was received from a resident of Cwmafon regarding the condition
of the pavement after his refuse bin was set alight. The complainant stated that
whilst officers had replaced his receptacle the following day, they had failed to
remove some of the melted remains which were stuck to the pavement. The
complainant stated that even after repeated calls the pavement remained in a
dangerous and unsightly condition.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated and found that no more could be done to
remove the hardened plastic from the pavement. The only recourse was to place
the request on a programme of works and to remove and replace the
tarmacadam when funds allow. The complaint investigated within the 10 day
guidelines and the pavement repairs placed on a programme of works for future
action.

Case 8

A complaint was received from a resident of Skewen regarding the sporadic
nature and times that residents were leaving their refuse for collection. This
was causing the area to become unsightly allowing litter to accumulate. The
complainant stated that this was an ongoing situation, which was not being
resolved and therefore, he requested his complaint be investigated.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Waste Services Supervisor and found
that some residents were not placing their refuse out for collection on the
correct day. The area was initially cleared of all refuse and letters were sent to
neighbouring properties informing them of their correct collection days. All
collections were then monitored and no further action was necessary. The
complaint was upheld and actioned within the 10 day guideline.

Case 9

A complaint was received via the Ombudsman’s Office from a resident of
Margam due to refuse bags being left on her road and remaining uncollected for
several weeks. The complainant stated that whilst she had made several
attempts to report the matter to the Authority the bags remained uncollected. In
addition, the complainant questioned why she had not been contacted regarding
her complaint.

Page 14



Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Waste Services Supervisor and found
some residents were not placing their refuse out for collection on the correct
day. The offending refuse was removed from her road and the complainant was
visited by an officer to offer an apology. In addition, letters were sent to all
residents reminding them of their correct collection days. The complaint was
upheld and actioned within the 10 day guideline.

Case 10

A complaint was received from a resident of Cimla who wished to complain
that his refuse had not been collected for several weeks. The complainant stated
that due to his disabilities he was on a pull out system of collection, however,
even after repeated request his refuse remained uncollected and he wished for
the matter to be investigated.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated by the Waste Services Manager and found that
whilst the complainant’s refuse was being collected correctly, his recycling
items remained uncollected. It was therefore apparent that the Recycling
Operatives had not been made aware of the pull-out service. The complainant
was visited by an officer and apology was made for the error. The complaint
was upheld and investigated within the 10 day guideline.

Stage 2 Complaints
Case 1

A complaint was received from a resident of Port Talbot regarding a dispute
over a parking fine which he had acquired whilst parking in the town centre.
The complainant admitted that he had failed to display his Blue Badge,
however, he stated that officers had failed to take into account his visual
disability when considering his case. He had previously referred his case to an
Independent Parking Tribunal where his complaint had not been upheld,
however, he requested an internal investigation be carried out for possible
discrimination against him due to his disability. In addition, he wished for an
internal investigation to be carried into comments made by the Parking Officer
at the Tribunal.

Page 15



Conclusion

The complaint was investigated and found that the complainant had not
submitted the full details of his disability as requested to do so by Parking
Officers when his penalty notice was being considered. Officers therefore were
not in a position to discriminate against him without the full knowledge of his
disabilities and his complaint was not upheld. It was also noted that officers are
allowed to voice their personal opinion at a tribunal in defence of their actions
and therefore, his second complaint was also not upheld. The complaint was
investigated just outside the 20 working day guidelines as the adjudicator’s
tribunal decision report was requested.

Case 2

A complaint was received from a resident of Port Talbot regarding the
positioning of a lighting column outside his property. The complainant stated
that he had not been consulted before the work was carried out and in addition
the position of the new column compromised the security and structure of his
property. His concerns had previously been addressed by the Public Lighting
section, however, the complainant remained dissatisfied with their response and
requested his complaint be investigated further.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated and found it was not policy for the Authority to
contact residents when replacing lighting columns on the highway. In addition,
it was evident that the replacement column had been positioned in line with
national guidelines. It was noted, however, that the contractor had attempted to
appease the complainant’s wishes to relocate the column to a more desirable
location, however, this was not possible due to the location of underground
apparatus in the area. In view of this, his complaint was not upheld and was
answered within the 20 day guidelines.

Case 3

A complaint was received from a resident living outside the County who had
received a parking fine whilst parking in Port Talbot. The complainant had
admitted to the offence but as the offence had been committed in error and was
not deemed deliberate, the complainant believed that he should not have
received the fine. His case had initially been referred to an Independent Parking
Tribunal for investigation and was not upheld, however, he wished for his
circumstances to be re-evaluated as he believed parking offences which were
not seen as deliberate and committed in error should not receive a penalty

Page 16



notice. The complainant also wished for the Authority’s on-line payments
system to be investigated as the system had taken three amounts of payments
from his account.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated and found officers had followed correct
procedures in issuing his parking fine. An investigation was also carried out by
the I.T. section into the complainant’s claim of unauthorised additional sums
being removed from his account, however, no error was found on the system. It
was evident that the complainant had instigated the removal of
additional payments from his account, however, this error had been noted by
officers who immediately reimbursed his account on the same day. His
complaint was therefore not upheld and was investigated within the 20 day
guidelines.

Case 4

A complaint was received from an employee of an external Authority funded
organisation who wished his allegations regarding the misconduct of officers
within the Community Transport Section investigated. The complainant stated
that officers had not informed him of an impending Audit meeting in relation to
an alleged misappropriation of funds within his organisation and in addition,
officers had not acted in a professional manner in dealing with his original
complaint.

Conclusion

The complaint was investigated and it was found the external organisation was
under  investigation by the  Authority’s  Audit Section  for
alleged misappropriation of funds. A log of correspondence and meetings
between the Authority and the complainant was made available, however, no
evidence of unprofessional behaviour by officers was evident. It was noted
however, that an email which was sent to the Transport Section had not been
acknowledged or answered and an apology was issued regarding this. The basis
of his complaint however, was not upheld and was investigated within the 20
day guidelines.

Appendices

None

Page 17



Recommendation

That the comments, compliments and complaints monitoring report be noted.

List of Background Papers

Mail Monitoring system
File Ref. TA8 & TA8/C

Officer Contact

Carole Thomas, Senior Environment Resources Officer,
Engineering and Transport

Tel: 01639 686794

Email: c.g.thomas@npt.gov.uk

Page 18


mailto:c.g.thomas@npt.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 5

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT —
D.W. GRIFFITHS

18" DECEMBER 2014
SECTION C- MATTER FOR MONITORING
WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
FOR QUARTER 2 OF 2014/15

Purpose of Report

The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the 2nd Quarter of 2014/15
performance Indicators.

On the 14th November 2013 the Corporate Improvement Plan six month progress
report 2013/14 was presented to Policy & Resources Scrutiny Committee. The
report recommended that relevant scrutiny committees are updated on progress of
the improvement priorities in the Corporate Improvement Plan that fall within
their remit. This recommendation was endorsed by Policy & Resources Scrutiny
Committee and subsequent Cabinet Board.

Note: The relevant sections of the six month progress report for 2014/15 is
attached as Appendix A. Improvement Objective 4, includes some improvement
milestones that relate to areas within the remit of Social Care, Health & Housing,
which will be reported to their Cabinet Board on 27th November 2014. The full
half year progress report, which includes progress on all six of the Improvement
Objectives will be reported to Policy & Resources Cabinet Board on 27th
November 2014.

Part 1 of the report will highlight performance levels for the relevant quarter and

will demonstrate whether the indicator has improved over the same quarter of the
previous year. A key has been produced below.

Page 19



Performance Summary Key

T Performance has improved

<> Performance has remained the same

l Performance has deteriorated by less than 5%

ll Performance has deteriorated in excess of 5% and has flagged up a further action
report

Part 2 will include commentary on performance information in general.

Page 20




Part 1 Performance Summary

Waste Management

Indicator Indicator Name Head of Outturn Q2 Q2 Year on Year Q2
No Service 13/14 (2013/14) | (2014/15) performance
comparison
WMT/004 The percentage of municipal waste collected by local Mike
b authorities sent to landfill Roberts | 14.70% 16.2% 11.3% T
WMT/009 The percentage of municipal waste collected by local Mike
b authorities and prepared for reuse, recycled or of source Roberts | 54.04% | 55.08% | 60.78% T
segregated biowaste that is composted or treated biologically
in another way.
WMT/010 | The percentage of local authority collected municipal waste Mike A
(i) prepared for reuse Roberts | 0.18% 0.17% 0.29%
WMT/010 | The percentage of local authority collected municipal waste A
;DU (ii) recycled. Mike | 38.09% | 37.69% | 37.81%
Q Roberts
® The percentage of local authority collected municipal waste A
N\/MT/OlO collected as source segregated biowastes and composted or Mike 15.76% | 17.22% | 22.68%
(iii) treated biologically in another way. Roberts
WMT/012 | The percentage of local authority collected municipal waste Mike A
used to recover heat and power Roberts | 21.90% | 25.1% | 25.90%




Transport & Highways Indicators

Indicator Indicator Name Head of Outturn Q2 Q2 Year on Year
No Service 13/14 (2013/14) (2014/15) | Q2 perfor_mance
comparison
CMT/001 The percentage of total length of Rights of Way which are Nicola 67% 65.4% 73.7% T
easy to use by members of the public Pearce
THS/007 | Although there is an increase in Adults over 60yrs eligible for David l
a Concessionary Bus Pass in NPT, fewer numbers have Griffiths | 88.9% 92.2% 89.6%
applied. The system has been purged of people who have
recently deceased lowering the overall number of cards in
circulation/
THS/009 The average number of calendar days taken to repair street Mike
T lamp failures during the year Roberts 1.83 1.54 1.52 T
Q days days days
HS/011a Percentage of Principal (A) roads that are in overall poor Mike Reported | Reported N/A
N condition Roberts 6.8% annually | annually
N
THS/011b | Percentage of Non-Principal /classified (B) roads that are in Mike Reported | Reported N/A
overall poor condition Roberts 5.2% annually | annually
THS/011c Percentage of Non-Principal / classified (C) roads that in Mike Reported | Reported N/A
overall poor condition Roberts 8.2% annually | annually
THS/012 | Percentage of principal (A) roads, non-principal (B) roads and Mike Reported | Reported N/A
non-principal (C) roads that are in overall poor condition Roberts 6.7% annually | annually




Transport & Highways Indicators

Service

Indicator Indicator Name Head of Outturn Q2 Q2 Year on Year Q2
No Service 13/14 (2013/14) | (2014/15) performance
comparison
STS/005 a The Cleanliness Index Mike Reported | Reported N/A
Roberts 67.6 annually | annually
STS/005 b | The percentage of highways inspected of a high or acceptable Mike Reported | Reported N/A
standard of cleanliness Roberts | 98.51% | annually | annually
STS/006 The percentage of reported fly tipping incidents cleared Mike Reported | Reported N/A
- within 5 working days Roberts | 81.10% | annually | annually
Q
Q
D 14 Response times to correspondence — percentage of public All 75% 76% 68% ~L ~L
8 mail answered in 8 working days Heads
of




Part 2 Performance Commentary

Waste Management

The Council is progressing with the implementation of its waste strategy that
seeks to ensure that the council meets it statutory recycling target. Performance
to date indicates that the Council is on course to achieve the Welsh
Governments statutory recycling target of 58% by March 2016.

Transport and Highways

CMT/001 - Rights of way that are easy to use by members of the public. A
smaller sample size (5% of the network) was surveyed and therefore it is not
uncommon to have results that can vary.

THS/009 - The average number of calendar days taken to repair street lamp
failures during the year. Quarter 2 of 14/15 continues to maintain the service
below 2 days.

THS/007 Although there is an increase in Adults over 60yrs eligible for a
Concessionary Bus Pass in NPT, fewer numbers have applied. The system
recently been purged of people who have recently deceased lowering the overall
number of cards in circulation.

THS/011a,b,c & THS/012 Roads that are considered in overall poor condition
are monitored annually and will be discussed during the quarter 4 report at the
end of the financial year.

Street Scene

Indicators for the management of streets are monitored annually.

Mail Monitoring

L4 — Public Mail answered in 8 working days. The amount of mail received in
this quarter has increased and the decrease in staffing levels has had an impact
on the amount of mail answered within the 8 day period.

ecommendation

It is recommended that Members note the performance levels achieved.

Page 24



List of Background Papers

File Ref. TA14/3

Officer Contact

Diane Leonard, Environment Resources Officer
Engineering and Transport

Tel: 01639 686786

Email: d.leonard@npt.gov.uk

Page 25


mailto:d.leonard@npt.gov.uk

9z abed

NEATH PORT TALBOT COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CORPORATE IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2014-2017 - HALF
YEAR PROGRESS REPORT (1.04.14 TO 30.09.14)

oL
Risingtothe Challenge
protecting services and jobs in difficult times



)2 abed

0
» Prosperity for All

promoting economic growth

IMPROVEMENT OBJECTIVE 4
Support and invest in our town centres and communities to promote economic growth, regeneration
and sustainability, maximise job opportunities and improve access to employment

RAG Comments

Status

Regeneration - what we said we would:

1. Continue work on Harbourside by developing pedestrian links to improve accessibility to employment
opportunities

How are we doing? — We are in the process of formalising land ownership issues prior to submitting a planning application
for the development of pedestrian links and a planning application has been submitted for the new NPT College campus and
a proposed Business Park.

2. Begin work on the Baglan Link Bridge which will make Baglan Energy Park more accessible and enable local bus
companies to provide a bus service to the site

How are we doing? - Construction work has started on site and is due for completion March 2015.

3. Begin construction work to deliver the first phase of the Neath Town Centre redevelopment to improve the town
centre for the community and visitors to the town



g¢ obed

How are we doing? - The first phase to include a new 600 space multi-storey car park, and 23,000 sq ft of new retail space
Is under construction and due for completion in August 2015.

4. Complete improvements in public areas in Port Talbot, Neath and Croeserw to enhance the environment for the
community

How are we doing? - Initial works completed in Port Talbot and Croeserw, with additional work being undertaken in
Lower Station Road, Port Talbot (due to be completed in June 2015). Also additional public realm works are being
undertaken in Neath as part of the first Phase as mentioned in point 3 above.

5. Begin construction work, on the new Leisure Centre on Aberavon seafront
How are we doing? - Construction work is well advanced and the centre is due to open in December 2015.

6. Continue to drive forward regeneration projects in the Valleys to make enhancements to tourism, employment
and public areas

How are we doing? - Regeneration projects in Pontardawe and Glynneath have been completed and a planning application
has been submitted for the second phase at Sarn Helen.

7. Develop a comprehensive commuter cycle network to enable residents and visitors to access towns, employment
centres and visitor attractions effectively and safely

How are we doing? - In partnership with the City and Council of Swansea we have introduced an integrated commuter
route scheme covering the whole of Swansea Bay. This scheme has led to improved cycle signage in the County Borough,
raising awareness to car/lorry drivers of cyclists and a full marketing programme is being implemented to raise awareness of
the routes. This scheme so far has led to a 25% increase in cyclists on routes that have been measured.



62 abed

8. Pursue the establishment of quality tourist accommodation and facilities at sites including Rheola

How are we doing? - The Rheola planning application is anticipated to be determined in November 2014.
9. Continue to renovate properties in the Council’s two Renewal Areas- Neath East and Sandfields East &
Aberavon. We aim to improve 75 properties

How are we doing? — Energy Company Obligation funding has been secured to support the renewal area energy upgrade
works and currently 45 houses have been completed to date. A further 30 properties will be completed by year end.

Employment & Prosperity - what we said we would:

10. Continue to work with Welsh Government to test and explore opportunities to reduce the number of individuals
in South West Wales who are economically inactive or unemployed by working in a joined up, client centred way

How are we doing? - As at 30th June 2014, the latest data indicates that more people (73.6%) of working age (16 to 64)
were economically active, compared to 71.6%, as at 31% September 2013. As at 30" September 2014, 2.7% of working age
people were claiming Job Seekers Allowance, again an improvement compared to 3.5% as at February 2014.

11. Help economically inactive people and those who are long-term unemployed to improve their chances of getting a
job through the Workways project and to explore self-employment through the Council’s Innov8 programme

How are we doing? - 5,007 (cumulative figures) people were engaged in the project, above the target of 4,450 for this
period (1.04.14 to 30.09.14) and 2,505 (cumulative figures) people were in sustainable employment, above the target of
1,871 for this period. This project has been extended to 31st December 2014.



0€ abed

12. Provide an effective and supportive service through our Business Development Team to local businesses to help
them prosper creating more jobs and business start ups

How are we doing? - There were 388 business enquiries resulting in advice, information or financial support being given to
existing companies. This output is on track to deliver the year end forecast of 430. We assisted 184 new business start-up
enquiries and this output has already achieved the year end forecast. We have assisted 16 new start ups through the Innov8
programme and this output is on track to deliver the year end forecast of 28. 56.5 jobs have been created as a result of
financial support by the Council and it is anticipated that year end forecast of 176 will be achieved.

13. Identify contracts for local companies and job and training opportunities for local people within major
developments in the County Borough

How are we doing? -

o Tremy Mor Respite Centre, Aberavon (value £4m) - outputs achieved: four local companies secured contracts to
provide materials/supplies; 47 people secured work on site, including 15 new job opportunities; two pathway
apprenticeships completed; two apprenticeship training weeks completed.; 197 training weeks completed and all outputs
agreed at the tender stage were achieved.

« Neath Town Centre Redevelopment (Value £9.1m) - outputs achieved to date: 22 local companies introduced to main
contractor; five local companies secured contracts to provide materials/supplies; two local sub contractors secured M&E
and Cladding contracts; 90 people secured work on site; there was one apprentice and one trainee work placement. The
project is on track to achieve all outputs identified at the tender stage.

14. Provide opportunities for accessing training and employment, and support for businesses, in the community at
the Croeserw Enterprise Centre

How are we doing? - We have established 30 training courses established, with over 150 participants gaining formal
accreditation.



T¢ obed

In partnership, we said we would:

1. Continue to monitor progress made by NPT Homes to ensure they meet the Council’s promise to bring all former
council housing up to the Welsh Housing Quality Standard and to regenerate communities

How are we doing? — NPT Homes are on track to deliver this milestone and good progress continues to be made with the
programme having completed the following works since transfer: 4,286 kitchens; 3,901 bathrooms; 3,698 heating system
installations; 2,670 rewires; 880 roof replacements; 1,544 window and door installations. The fifth NPT Homes half yearly
progress report is due to go to Social Care Health and Housing Scrutiny Committee on the 27" November 2014.

2. Continue to offer the “Housing to Homes” interest free loans to encourage landlords, developers and home owners
to renovate empty houses that have fallen into disrepair and aim to support ten homes to be available for use

How are we doing? - 12 units have been brought back into the housing market this financial year, with approximately 10
further applications at various stages including application and on site.

3. Work with our housing partners to deliver affordable housing, through the Social Housing Grant (including
Smaller Properties programme and revenue funded schemes), Vibrant & Viable Places programme and the Welsh
Housing Partnership; whilst continuing to explore other and innovative funding solutions

How are we doing? - We are still on target for the delivery of 77 properties however one site is subject to matters outside
our control and has an ‘amber’ status. The current housing market and financial climate is impacting negatively on the
delivery of affordable housing through Section 106.

4. Develop projects and programmes to maximise the impact of the next round of European Funding

How are we doing? — The European and External Funding team are supporting the development of the following projects:
NEETS, Neath and Port Talbot integrated strategies; Workways; Social Enterprise support; Swansea Bay City Region



2 abed

Economic Regeneration Strategy; and Regional Technical Assistance proposal. Note: the 2014 — 2020 ESF funds are not
yet approved. WEFO proposed launch date is 20" November 2014.

5. Prioritise the allocation of Discretionary Housing Payment Grants to those in greatest need to prevent hardship
How are we doing? — To date we have made 568 awards totalling £252,000.

6. Continue to fund benefits advice services, including maintaining the Council’s Welfare Rights Unit, so that people
are accessing the benefits to which they are entitled

How are we doing? - The welfare rights unit assisted and supported 108 people to successfully appeal benefit decisions that
have cut or removed the benefits that they are entitled to. A comprehensive report will be going to Policy and Resources
Cabinet Board meeting on 27" November 2014.

7. Complete the three pilot projects that we have set up with the assistance of European funding, to improve access
to advice and support services for people with low incomes and recommend next steps to the Local Service Board

How are we doing? - The three pilot projects have been completed and evaluated and all have achieved their planned
outcomes.

« Project one, the Multi Agency Hub at Pontardawe - the Policy & Resources Cabinet Board (16" October) received the
evaluation report for this pilot and approved the recommendation to extend the project for a further 12 months and for a
number of follow up actions to be undertaken.

o Project two, the dedicated advice line set up in the Council’s Corporate Contact Centre - a report will be presented to
Policy & Resources Cabinet Board (27th November) on the evaluation with a list of recommendations, including
extended the pilot to the end of March.

« Project three, one stop help for people actively seeking work through joint working between the library service and the
Jobcentre - the Policy & Resources Cabinet Board (16" October) received the evaluation of the pilot and approved the
recommendation to endorse the continuation of the partnership arrangements and to report back to Members on the



cc abed

outcome of discussions between Job Centre Plus and the Library Service re: availability of financial resources to support
the work.

8. Deliver on the Strategic Aims of the Regional Economic Development Strategy to enhance the long-term prospects
of our City Region economy, its businesses and communities and monitor the delivery via a newly developed
performance management framework

How are we doing? - Work is continuing to develop a Performance Management Framework to monitor the delivery of the
strategic aims of the strategy.

9. Work towards linking strategic employment sites by establishing priority bus corridors between key towns within
the City Region

How are we doing? - Construction of the Baglan Energy Park Link Bridge continues as part of the Port Talbot to Swansea
bus corridor (completion March 2015), through Harbourside and Fabian Way Strategic Sites. Work continues to develop on
other schemes in liaison with the Regional Transport Forum.

10. Work with community transport operators to enhance and integrate their services to support local
communities and ensure the schemes meet the transport targets as set out in the Service Level Agreements with

the Council

How are we doing? - All targets as set out in Service Level Agreements have been met. There have been regular meetings
with both Community Transport schemes and Shopmobility, to encourage closer working and combined bids, to improve
future funding prospects. To date, an Regional Development Plan bid has been submitted and a project proposal put
forward to Pen-y-Cymoedd Community Fund.

11. Redevelop Port Talbot Parkway Station, to improve access, parking and facilities for customers



7€ obed

How are we doing? - On target for completion in Spring 2015.

12. Implement the Vibrant and Viable Places Regeneration Framework to combine support for people and places,
and encourage partnership working by the public, private and third sector

How are we doing? - First scheme at Green Park on site, 34 homes to be delivered by November 2015.

13. Develop key sites and premises across the County Borough to encourage economic growth Sites include:
Harbourside, Coed Darcy Urban Village and Swansea University’s new Bay Campus

How are we doing? - All sites under various stages of advanced construction.

14. Enable the establishment of caravan site facilities at Margam Park in partnership with the Camping and
Caravanning Club to enhance visitor numbers to the County Borough

How are we doing? — A planning application has been submitted.

15. Make the most of community investment by working in partnership with developers/organisations who are
delivering substantial investment programmes, to encourage and monitor training and job opportunities for local
people, and local supply chain activity

How are we doing?

« Residential Care Homes (Grwp Gwalia) - Value £3.7m, Moor Road - contract completed. 18 companies introduced
to main contractors; seven contracts awarded to local companies; 300 persons secured employment on site; four
apprentices completed training weeks on site; eight trainee/temporary job opportunities/work placements. There were
no set targets for this contract.

« Caewern Home — work on site to commence in October 2014...To date, 13 companies have been introduced to main
contractors and four contracts awarded to local companies.



G¢e abed

Welsh Housing Quality Standards (NPT Homes) - 31 people have secured jobs with sub-contractors; eight
apprentices secured placements with sub contractors and 25 people have been provided with temporary job
opportunities.

New Leisure Centre (Aberavon) — to date 80 companies have been introduced to main contractors; three contracts
awarded to local companies and 11 people have secured jobs on-site.

Swansea University - 450 companies have been introduced to main contractors; 40 local companies secured contracts;
33 job opportunities created; more than 50 individuals completed 1000 trainee weeks and the canteen facilities are being
run by NPT COASTAL projects — providing jobs and training to those looking to get back into employment.

Further projects due to commence shortly: Vibrant & Viable Places Funded Projects - Green Park Industrial Estate
(Coastal Housing), Renewal Areas (Aberavon) and Briton Ferry Health Centre (Deryn Properties Ltd).



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 6

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT
- D.W. GRIFFITHS

18™ DECEMBER 2014
SECTION B— MATTER FOR INFORMATION
WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

TRANSFORMING BAILIFF SERVICES

Purpose of Report

To inform Members of the recent changes in legislation for the collection of
unpaid debts by enforcement agencies.

Background

At present, the law and cost structure relating to enforcement by the seizure and
sale of goods is complex, unclear and confusing. It is contained in a mixture of
numerous statutes, secondary legislation and common law. This can, in some
instances, result in enforcement agents misrepresenting their legal authority to
the detriment of debtors. The current costs structures lack clarity, some aspects
are difficult to interpret and do not provide adequate remuneration for all
aspects of enforcement work. These factors combine to make the current
charging process open to abuse and as a result there have long been calls to
clarify the law, to introduce a transparent fee structure and to regulate the
industry.

Taking Control of Goods Regulations 2013 — Came into effect 6th April
2014

This is a single piece of legislation introducing a comprehensive code which
will apply to all debt streams and clearly sets out rights and responsibilities of
interested parties and what would constitute a breach of these rules. The scheme
includes protections for vulnerable debtors, by introducing provisions which
will allow them time to seek further advice, and protections for creditors by
ensuring that they are still able to enforce the collection of debt effectively.

Page 37



The new measures will:-
Stop bailiffs entering homes when only children are present.

Restrict the hours that bailiffs are allowed to visit debtors - they will only be
allowed to enter between 6am and 9pm.

Ban landlords from using bailiffs to seize property for residential rent arrears
without going to court.

Prevent bailiffs from taking household items, such as a cooker, microwave,
refrigerator or washing machine, because they are deemed to be reasonably
required to satisfy the basic domestic needs of the debtor.

Ensure a notice period of seven days is given to the debtor before bailiffs take
control of the debtor’s goods.

Ban bailiffs from selling goods removed from a debtor, unless seven days have
passed from the date the goods were removed.

Only enable bailiffs to use reasonable force to gain entry to a building where
they prove to the court that there are, or likely to be goods of the debtor on the
premises. Before a warrant is granted, bailiffs must give the court information
on the likely means of entry, the amount of force required and how the premises
will be left in a secure state afterwards. Please note, bailiffs can enter a property
without a warrant when peaceful entry can be gained.

These changes aim to protect people in debt from rogue bailiffs and ensure
creditors have a better understanding and more confidence in the process being
carried out on their behalf.

Financial Implications

The new fee structure will be in 3 stages —
o Stage 1 — Administration Stage

o Stage 2 — Enforcement Stage
o Stage 3 — Sale stage

Page 38



Each stage has a Fixed Fee:-

Fee Stage Fee Feature Fixed Percentage Fees
Fee
£0-£1,500 | > £1,500
Administration/Compliance | Writ received by £75.00 0% 0%
Enforcement
Agency
Enforcement First attendance £235.00 0% 7.5%
by High Court
Enforcement
Officer/Agent to
debtors premises.
Sale Goods taken to £110.00 0% 7.5%
place of sale

It should be noted:-

The new and amended legislation aims to provide a clear and transparent
process for debt collection via the bailiffs. Customers will be able to understand
the fee structure and will be aware of the financial implications should their
debt be collected by the Bailiffs.

Once further information is received in relation to the practical and operational
ways Bailiffs will enforce recovery this will be used to update the Council’s

Contract and Code of Practice with Bailiffs for the recovery of parking debts.

List of Background Papers

The Taking Control of Goods Regulations 2013 SI 1894
The Taking Control of Goods (Fees) Regulations 2014 SI 1

Officer Contact

Steve Cook, Parking Manager
Tel: 01639 763968
email: s.cook@npt.gov.uk

Page 39



mailto:s.cook@npt.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT —
D. W. GRIFFITHS

18" DECEMBER 2014

SECTION A-—MATTER FOR DECISION

WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

FEEDBACK ON THE CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSED
REMOVAL OF COUNCIL SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES

Purpose of Report

To seek Members’ approval to implement the changes listed in Appendix A and
reduce subsidised bus services as a result of financial pressures on the revenue
budget.

Background

The Authority utilises some of its revenue support grant to support local bus
services that are not commercially viable, poorly patronised, early morning and
late evening services.

Environment has identified a possible £234K reduction in the amount of funding
provided to local bus operators. This will lead to a number of services being
renegotiated, re-timed or terminated to achieve the financial target.

In June, July and August 2014 surveys were undertaken on the number of
passengers using subsidised bus services in the Neath Port Talbot area. On the
10™ September Cabinet Members agreed that consultation be undertaken with
immediate effect on the following options.

Option 1

Withdrawal of evening and selected day time services, renegotiating selected
routes with operators to maintain skeletal services wherever possible.

Page 41



Option 2

Withdrawal of bus services with a subsidy higher than £1.40 per passenger head.

Option 3

Withdrawal of bus services with a subsidy lower than £1.40 per passenger head
exploring with operators the future commercial viability of these routes.

Further Information:-

In response to the consultation, Transport Officers have worked with local bus
operators to minimise the impact of the reduction in funding. Through re-
negotiation some services which would have been cut have been maintained,
some services will have a reduced or retimed service and some services will be
terminated.

Proposed changes are set out at Appendix A, which are expanded on below:-

Service 224: Monday to Saturday, both morning and early evening on the
Baglan Ty Canol element is proposed to be withdrawn, with a saving of £6,589.

Service 158: Neath to Banwen, Monday to Saturday, will be re-timed to depart
Victoria Gardens one hour earlier at 18.30 rather than 19.30, with a
corresponding return journey from Banwen to Neath at 19.23 rather than 20.23.
This will be operated commercially providing a saving of circa £14,504.

Service 158: Neath to Swansea and return. There will be currently no change to
this service, which will now become commercially operated, however, it should
be noted that the operator may choose to re-time services in the future for
commercial purposes. This will realise a saving of £28,712.

Service 121, 150, 153 & 155: all operate on a six day week basis. It is proposed
that the 121 service will be extended to include Cilmaengwyn but will operate
alternative days on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays.

Services 150, 153 & 155 operate on a combined route six days a week. It is
proposed that this service will operate Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday
corresponding with the changes set out in Service 121, which will realise a
saving of circa £50K.

Service 157: Neath Victoria Gardens to Forest Hill currently operates hourly.

This will be reduced to a two hourly service. The timetable is still being worked
upon by the operator and will be published, subject to the outcome decision of

Page 42



this Board in the New Year, for implementation from 5" April 2015. This will
contribute £40,402 to the Council’s FFP 2015.

Service X22: Neath to Pontardawe evening service will be reduced, meaning
that services will leave Pontardawe at 17.20 and 19.20 and leave Neath at 19.10,
19.35 and 21.15 in the evenings. This will contribute £32,235 to the FFP.

Service X60: Morriston Hospital pilot scheme is scheduled to expire on the 27"
February 2015, unless additional funding is made available. This service has
been part funded by a one off Welsh Government Grant of £40K for 2014/15
with NPT funding of an additional £12,190 out of revenue which is now
identified as part of the savings for 2015/16.

Service 946: Rhos to Cwmtawe School service will be operated commercially,
realising a contribution of £10,405.

Service 09: Port Talbot to Baglan Resource Centre, Monday to Friday. This
service may become commercially operated when the Baglan Link Bridge is
opened, however, this may be affected by the outcome of the experimental J41
peak time closures, which is currently affecting running times of services in the
Port Talbot area. It is proposed to withdraw the current subsidy of £8,491.

Service X63: Neath to Ystradgynlais is a cross border service, which operates
Monday to Saturday daytime services, and NPT contribute £6,273 to Powys
County Council, which is proposed to be withdrawn.

Services 32/36: Croeserw to Cymmer evening service is a cross border service
and NPT contribute £6,236 to Bridgend CBC which is proposed to be
withdrawn.

The Council is continually working with the community transport providers to
explore alternative transport solutions for the future.

Members are advised with the level of cuts proposed that it is inevitable that not
all routes will be able to be operated commercially by the bus companies.

The result of the negotiations has been developed into the solution presented at

Appendix A. Although agreed with the local operators in principle, the detail
still needs to be worked up into final timetables for implementation.

Page 43



Financial Implications

Implementation of Option 1 (Appendix A) will realise a saving of £216,037,
minus the cost of renegotiations which was £6,878, which would leave a net
saving of £209,159. The outstanding balance of £24,841 being met from other
areas within the service.

Consultation Outcome

A consultation on the three options was undertaken between 11" September and
the 23" October 2014. The results of which can be seen at Appendix B.
Comments received are set out in Appendix C. The following groups were
consulted via the Authority’s on line consultation system “Objective”. The
consultation included groups with protected characteristics:-

Council Members

Older Persons Council

Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) Social Care Forum
Disability Network Access Group (DNAG)

Black and Minority Ethnic Forum (BME)

Community Transport Association (CTA) Wales

Bus Users UK

Community Transport Group DANSA

Community Transport Group Neath Port Talbot Community Transport
Members of the Public via the Internet

Older Peoples Commissioner for Wales

Local Service Board

Town and Community Councillors

Local Assembly Members

Bridgend County Borough Council

Carmarthen County Council

City & County of Swansea

Powys County Council

Ystalyfera Transport Forum

Local Member of Parliament

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken to assist the Council
in discharging its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010. An
overview of the EIA has been included in this report in summary form only for
Members reference, which is attached to the report at Appendix D, for the
purposes of the meeting.

Page 44



Sustainability Appraisal

The alternative transport solution tabled at Appendix A, whilst delivering a
reduction in bus subsidies through negotiations with operators means that
services will be maintained with partial reduction to services along with re-
timed routes. The Community Transport Sector will also be proactive in
backfilling reduced services.

Recommendation

It is recommended, having given due regard to the Equality Impact Assessment:-

1. That the legal notices are served on operators, to terminate, and alter

services to subsidised bus services, as set out in Appendix A for
implementation by the 5™ April 2015.

Reasons for Proposed Decision

In order to implement reductions in subsidised bus services as outlined in
Appendix A, enabling three months’ notice can be served on bus operators with
Council revenue supported contracts to give them the required three calendar
months’ notice.

Appendices

Appendix A Table outlining proposed changes

Appendix B Result of Consultation

Appendix C Comments received resulting from the Consultation process
Appendix D E.ILA.

Background Papers

1. Passenger Figures

Wards Affected

All

Officer Contact

Peter Jackson, Integrated Transport Manager
Integrated Transport Unit
@ 01639 686091

Page 45



COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

FEEDBACK ON THE CONSULTATION ON THE REMOVAL OF
COUNCIL SUBSIDISED BUS SERVICES

(@ Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call-in
period.

(b)  Sustainability Appraisal
Community Plan Impacts

Economic Prosperity - Negative
Education and Lifelong Learning - Negative
Better Health and Well Being - Negative
Environment and Transport - Negative
Crime and Disorder - Negative
Other Impacts

Welsh Language - Negative
Sustainable Development - Negative
Equalities - Negative
Social Inclusion - Negative

(c) Consultation

This has been subject to external consultation including groups with
protected characteristics:-

Council Members

Older Persons Council

Council for Voluntary Services (CVS) Social Care Forum
Disability Network Access Group (DNAG)

Black and Minority Ethnic Forum (BME)

Community Transport Association (CTA) Wales

Bus Users UK

Community Transport Group DANSA

Community Transport Group Neath Port Talbot Community Transport
Members of the Public via the Internet

Older Peoples Commissioner for Wales

Local Service Board

Town and Community Councillors

Local Assembly Members

Bridgend County Borough Council

Page 46



Carmarthen County Council
City & County of Swansea
Powys County Council
Ystalyfera Transport Forum
Local Member of Parliament

Page 47



Appendix A

Service Location Days Current Service | Savings | Comments
No. Service as from
5/4/15
224 Port Talbot to Swansea | Mon to Sat 08.19 No service 6,589 Remove Subsidy. These
to Baglan services will be withdrawn.
224 Swansea to Port Talbot | Mon to Sat 18.06 Ty Canol Baglan Ty Canol a.m, p.m.
158 Neath to Banwen Mon to Sat 19.30 18.30 14,504 Re-time to depart one hour
earlier to operate
158 Banwen to Neath Mon to Sat 20.23 19.23 commercially
158 Neath to Swansea Mon to Sat 19.43 19.43 28,712 Will be re-scheduled to
operate commercially. May be
158 Swansea to Neath Mon to Sat 20.40 20.40 timing variations to those
shown.
158 Neath to Swansea Mon to Sat 21.13 21.13
158 Swansea to Neath Mon to Sat 22.05 22.05
121 Ystalyfera Mon to Sat Daytime Mon, Wed, 50,000 Combine services
(Circular) 8.52 t0 16.48 Fri. 121,150,153 and 155 to
operate alternative days.
150 Leiros Park Mon to Sat Daytime Tues, Service 121 will be extended
9.15t017.13 Thurs, Sat to include Cilmaengwyn and
153 Fairy Land Mon to Sat Daytime operate Mon,Wed,Fri. The
9.00 to 16.58 Times to 150, 153, 155 will operate
155 Llandarcy Mon to Sat Daytime be Tue, Thurs, and Saturday
9.30t0 17.29 confirmed
157 Forest Hill Mon to Sat All Times to 40,402 Reduce to off peak two hourly
be service from 10.00.
Confirmed Provisionally last bus to
operate 17.00 from Neath
X22 Neath to Pontardawe Mon to Sat | Ex Pontardawe Ex P’dawe 32,235 Late services reduced and re-
Evenings 17.45, 18.40, 17.20 timed to operate commercially
19.40, 22.12 19.20
Ex. Neath
18.10, 19.05, Ex Neath
20.05, 21.10, 19.10,19.3
22.35 5
21.15
X60 Morriston Hospital Mon to Fri All No Direct 12,190 |Pilot due to finish 27™ Feb
Service
946 Rhos to Cwmtawe Mon to Fri All 10,405 Service will be provided by
School Service am-—pm commercial operator
9 Resource Centre Mon to Fri All 8,491 Possible alternative provision
Day time from 1% April when Baglan
link bridge opens
X63 Neath to Ystradgynlais | Mon to Sat Daytime 6,273 Cease contribution to Powys
Impact to be determined
32/36 Croeserw to Cymmer Mon to Sat Ex Croeserw 6,236 Cease contribution to
19.11, 20.11, Bridgend Impact to be
21.11,22.11 & determined
23.11
Ex Cymmer
19.24,20.24 &
21.24
216,037
Cost of renegotiations 6,878

Page 48




Net Savings

209,159

Page 49




Appendix B

Report Settings Summary

Event Bus Services Reductions Consultation
Total Responses 44
Total Respondents 7
Questions All
Filter (none)
Pivot (none)
Document Name
T Created on 2014-10-27 17:20:51
g Created by Laura Pack
% Table .0.1



TG obed

Options
Question responses: 35 (79.55%)
Ranking by preference

Preference 1

% Total % Answer Score Count

[77 OPTION 1: Withdrawal of evening and 31.82% 40.00% 42 14
selected day time services, renegotiating

selected routes with operators to maintain

skeletal services wherever possible.

[ OPTION 2: Withdrawal of bus services 21.27% 34.29% 36 12
with a subsidy higher than £1.40 per
passenger head.

OPTION 3: Withdrawal of bus services 20.45% 2571% 27 9
with a subsidy lower than £1.40 per
passenger head exploring with operators
the future commercial viability of these

routes.
[No Response] 20.45% — - 9
Total 100.00% 100.00% - 44
Table .0.2

Table .0.1



Appendix C

Report by: Laura Pack (l.pack@npt.gov.uk)

Reported at: 27/10/14 17:23

Events: Bus Services Reductions Consultation

Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
r-qagotiating
%ected routes
wiih operators to
ragintain skeletal
Pyices wherever
possible.

60-74

No

British

Male

Christian

Heterosexual

Welsh

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal of
bus services with
a subsidy higher
than £1.40 per
passenger head.

40-49

No

British

Male

No religion

Heterosexual

British

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating
selected routes
with operators to
maintain skeletal
services wherever

60-74

No

British

Male

Heterosexual

English




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

possible.

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal of
bus services with
a subsidy higher
than £1.40 per
passenger head.

50-59

No

OtherOther
OtherOther
Other

Male

Christian

Prefer not to
say

Welsh

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating
sa@cted routes
V@ith operators to
intain skeletal
services wherever
ridsible.

50-59

No

British

Male

Christian

Heterosexual

Welsh

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal of
bus services with
a subsidy higher
than £1.40 per
passenger head.

If we wish to make
savings- then this has
to be an option.

Can community
transport (DANSA) be
offered as an
alternative.

60-74

No

British

Male

Christian

Heterosexual

Welsh

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating
selected routes
with operators to
maintain skeletal

OPTION 3:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
lower than
£1.40 per
passenger
head

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
higher than
£1.40 per
passenger
head.

60-74

No

British

Male

Christian

Heterosexual

Welsh




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

services wherever
possible.

exploring
with
operators the
future
commercial
viability of
these routes.

G abed

Please see my
following response to
the above
consultation:

My first reaction is
one of
disappointment, this
could lead to many
areas not only have no
evening services but
possibly during the
daytime too.

| believe our authority
need to look at
alternative Options to
mitigate against the
worse effects of the
budget cuts, such as
the provision of a
'Demand Responsive
Bus or Taxi Services',
S0 at least, there
would be some sort of
adequate service.
Also, | believe we
should consider a mix
and match approach. it
may be better to run
some evening services
Mon - Friday or just




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

GG abed

Friday and Saturday
evenings and
alternatively, they
may wish to support a
better service during
the Spring and
Summer Months, than
in the Autumn /
Winter.

Getting back to the
various options - none
are very palatable but
for our area, the best
option would be
Option 2, so far as |
can understand, but
we should NOT
consider cutting the
Cross Boundary
Services between
Cymmer and
Bridgend, as this
would totally isolate
the Afan Valley!

| am amazed that this
service is listed for
withdrawal in all
options, especially as
no Passenger Numbers
are given and no
Subsidy per Passenger
figure is given, as they
are not available! (the
Contract for this
service is administered
by Bridgend Council).
I could only
understand it's




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

9G abed

inclusion, if Bridgend
Council were going to
withdraw their support
for the Bridgend to
Caerau section of the
journey. | have been
advised, that they have
no plans to do so and
they have no idea, that
NPTC are planning on
withdrawing support
for the Caerau to
Cymmer section and
are naturally
concerned of the
impact this may have
on their contract
costs!!

I am really
disappointed that we
can't continue to
support the operation
of a service covering
about 2 miles and of
vital importance to the
Upper Afan Valley.
Surely, the cost is
negligible?

As regards to Service
23 - For convenience
sake, this is supported
financially roughly
between 09.33 and
16.33 (between 09.05
& 16.05 in reverse
direction) but only
between Blaengwynfi
and Pontrhydyfen




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

)G abed

(despite most of the
revenue being earned
on this section.
Subsidy per Passenger
19p). Option one,
proposes renegotiating
the contract for these
services, which could
mean using another
company and possibly
an inconvenient
change of bus at
Pontrhydyfen at these
times and could also
involve additional
expense, if tickets are
not interchangeable!
Services between
Cymmer and
Glyncorrwg would be
unaffected, other than
the additional expense
and the
inconvenience!

Option 2 for Service
23, would mean no
change (the best
Option for us but not
necessarily for other
communities!) Again
no change to/ from
Glyncorrwg - subsidy
per passenger 14p).

Option 3 for Service
23, would mean
complete withdrawal
of services between
Blaengwynfi and




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

gG abed

Pontrhydyfen between
09.33 and 16.33
(09.05 & 16.05 in
reverse direction) and
the withdrawal of 5
services between
Glyncorrwg and
Cymmer, including
one vital service for
Workers / College
Students!

As well as the
question regarding the
inclusion of service
36, being withdrawn
in the evening's
between Cymmer and
Caerau. How much
we are currently
spending on
Supporting all these
services throughout
the County Boundary
and what would be the
new cost should we
accept Option 1,
Option 2 and Option
3? - Will it'll be more
than the required
4.5%?

I would like to thank
you for your
indulgence in reading
this email and will
look forward to
hearing from you.

Yours sincerely




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
origin: (please state) state)
Councillor Scott Jones
Elected Member for
Cymmer
OPTION 1:
Withdrawal
OPTION 3: of evening
Withdrawal of and selected [ OPTION 2:
bus services with | day time Withdrawal
a subsidy lower services, of bus
than £1.40 per renegotiating | services with
passenger head selected a subsidy 50-59 British Male Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
exploring with routes with higher than
operators the operatorsto | £1.40 per
future commercial | maintain passenger
viability of these | skeletal head.
rdkes. services
g wherever
[9) possible.
% These options are
extremely vague, and
OPTION 3: | would depend on what
Withdrawal | the 'selected' services
) of bus would be. With the
OF.)TION L .| services with | X58 route seeing
Withdrawal of OPTION 2: ;
. . a subsidy brand new buses
evening and Withdrawal - .
. lower than provided, it would
selected day time | of bus .
; - . £1.40 per seem a little odd to
Services, services with assenger then stop that service
renegotiating a subsidy ﬁead g at all thr%u h the da 17-24 No British Male No religion | Heterosexual | English
selected routes higher than .  througr Y
. exploring considering it has now
with operators to | £1.40 per :
L with been halted after half
maintain skeletal | passenger L
. operators the | past 7. Also bearing in
services wherever | head.

possible.

future
commercial
viability of
these routes.

mind that the number
of students attending
College using this bus
has sky rocketed, with
some buses now over
capacity simply due to




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - c B Age: | disabili origin - %thher i Gend Religion/ Sexual Nationali Olther
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 omments Box ge- Isability Ethnic I t e;’ t ender Belief: Orientation ationality (pt eflse
origin: (please state) state)
student numbers.
OPTION 3:
Withdrawal of
bus services with There needs to be
a subsidy lower better services
than £1.40 per available in the OtherOther
passenger head evening to areas such | 30-39 No OtherOther | Welsh Female | No religion | Heterosexual | Welsh
exploring with as Swansea. Other
operators the Particularly on the
future commercial weekend.
viability of these
routes
It has been very
U difficult indeed for me
jab to have to make a
% OPTION 1: \(/)VITJ]IdCr);\IW:;I choice which either
o Withdrawal of bus prevents my residents
o of evening services with from the social
and selected a subsidy housing estate from
OPTION 2: day time lower than | 9€tting anywhere
Withdrawal of services, £1.40 per without using taxis- or
bus services with renegotiating passenger _prevents those people . -
. . selected in my community 50-59 British Female | Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
a subsidy higher . head X
than £1.40 per routes with exploring from getting home
operators to . from work of an
passenger head. o with L
maintain operators the evening if they work
skeletal future in Neath. However,
services commercial in the end, being
wherever viability of aware of the number
possible. these routes of households without
" | their own transport on
the estate | have
prioritised their needs.
OPTION 1: Please see a copy of
Wlth_drawal of my Ie_tter to Mr David 50-59 No British Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
evening and Griffiths, Head of

selected day time

Engineering and




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

services,
renegotiating
selected routes
with operators to
maintain skeletal
services wherever
possible.

T9 abed

Transport:-

As a local Bus user
representative and
resident of this County
Borough, | recently
had the opportunity to
examine the three
proposed options for
cutting our authority’s
financial support for
local and Socially
necessary bus
services.

To begin with, | have
got to say, that |
appreciate very much
the predicament you
and our elected
representatives find
yourselves in, having
to make do with an
ever decreasing
budget from the
Welsh Government
and ultimately, the
thugs at Westminster!

Nevertheless, | was
disappointed that local
bus services are yet
again at the forefront
of budget cuts and
especially as we have
already endured so
many service
reductions over the
years, since local




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

29 abed

government
reorganisation in
1996.

These proposed cuts
are quite severe and
could devastate many
communities, leading
to social isolation,
further unemployment
and depopulation.

I did wonder too, why
there wasn’t an option
4 & 5, as the options
outlined, in my
opinion, show a
complete lack of
imagination on the
part of the authority to
consider alternatives,
such as Demand
Responsive transport
systems, possibly
utilising Social
Service buses, in
much the same way as
Swansea Council have
done for the residents
of North Gower, or a
‘Taxis bus’ service?

A service such as this
could be very
beneficial, for such
areas as the Afan
Valley and Bryn,
Pontardawe to Neath,
Neath to Pontrhydyfen




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

g abed

and in the Dulais
Valley!

In addition, in a worse
case scenario, instead
of proposing the
complete withdrawal
of some evening
services, why not
consider in some
areas, a mix and
match approach, such
as continuing to
provide services on
certain days, such as
Friday and Saturday
evenings and possibly
a different service
during the Winter
months to that of the
Summer?

Why not talk to ‘First’
to see if they can
assist, in much the
same way as they did,
when Bridgend
Council withdrew
funding for Sunday
services, earlier this
year? ‘First’ decided
to run many services
on a commercial basis,
as they recognise, that
by withdrawing more
lightly used services,
you reduce the options
available to
passengers, to travel at




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

79 abed

times of their
choosing and as a
consequence, they
often decide not to
travel at all or they
seek alternatives,
thereby affecting the
viability of the
remaining commercial
services.

This results in an ever
increasing spiral of
decline, even more
congestion, lack of
parking space, death
and carnage on our
roads and ever
increasing response
times of ambulances
and the fire brigade!

With regard to the
proposals for the Afan
valley, | was
somewhat surprised to
see the inclusion of
the cross boundary
service 36, between
Cymmer and Bridgend
listed for withdrawal
in the evening’s and
especially, as no
figures were given to
justify their inclusion!

This service is
contracted by
Bridgend Council and




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

G9 abed

our authority make a
contribution, for it to
continue beyond
Caerau at the head of
the Llynfi Valley,
across the County
Boundary to Cymmer,
a journey of around 2
miles. Surely, this will
save very little money
and at the same time,
will ensure that the
Upper Afan valley,
becomes completely
isolated in the
evenings(as is
Bryn,since April 2013
and Cynonville,
Duffryn Rhondda,
Glyncorrwg and
Aber/Blaengwynfi ,
mainly since July
1996) and with no
transport for many to
access work and
leisure opportunities
in Maesteg, Bridgend
and Cardiff (via the
rail connection at
Maesteq), as well as
the Princess of Wales
hospital.

Even more
concerning, is the fact
that Bridgend Council
were not aware of this
proposal and the fact
that many of us in the




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

99 abed

Upper Afan, have very
close links to the
Maesteg area and not
forgetting also, that in
a few years, we will

all be part of the same
County Borough.

| beg you, to
reconsider this very
short-sighted proposal,
which surely will only
save very little money
and a lot less than we
currently pay towards
the 2 Chauffeur driven
cars, used by members
of the authority! The
Chauffeur’s could be
redeployed on
‘Demand Responsive
schemes’!

As regards to the
proposals for service
23, which operates
between Blaengwynfi
and Port Talbot
(Financially supported
between Blaengwynfi
and Pontrhydyfen), |
can understand your
desire to re tender
services but my main
worry is, that a
different operator will
be used, as was
previously the case in
the early 2000’s,




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

/9 abed

which resulted in
more inconvenience
and increased cost to
bus users by not
having interavailabilty
of ticketing and
people having to
change buses between
operators!

The 3 "™ option for
Afan Valley services,
is completely
untenable, with
services being
withdrawn for the
biggest part of the
day! There is possible
scope for some
savings by
withdrawing a few of
the additional journeys
that operate between
Glyncorrwg/Bl;aengw
ynfi and Cymmer
only, thereby reducing
service frequency to
hourly, at these times?

| intend writing to the
Welsh Government
Minister, Edwina Hart
about these cuts and of
the inequality of
public transport
between East and
West Wales. Some
areas of South east
Wales, have had their




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

g9 abed

public transport
improved and not only
have good bus
services but rail
services too(which
I’m not against,
especially with their
often larger
populations) but for
those of us in the
West, life is becoming
more and more
unbearable, with
public transport facing
a collapse in
confidence, amongst
those of us, using the
services.

Additionally, she
should look at re
prioritising her
department’s spending
plans, such as
stopping the massive
subsidies for the
North/South Air link
and ‘Wag Express’
(the daily Holyhead to
Cardiff train,
especially for AM’s
and businessmen) and
diverting the money to
local bus services,
until we see better
financial times (I’'m
not normally against
such initiatives but
when the chips are




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

69 abed

down, | feel that
anything, is fair
game!)

| also feel, that money
could be saved by
increasing the age of
eligibility for
Concessionary passes
and introducing an
annual charge plus a
small charge for it’s
daily usage, which |
feel many pensioners
would prefer to having
their bus services
reduced or withdrawn
completely!

So, come on Neath
and Port Talbot
Council, defend the
residents you are there
to represent and show
some bottle by making
similar representations
and also looking for
new and innovative
ways to mitigate
against the worse
effects of these budget
cuts, I’m sure if the
will was there, we
could achieve much!

| say to everyone,

please don’t make the
mistake that it doesn’t
affect you or members




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

0/ abed

of your family
because you have a
car! Remember, any
of us can be stopped
from driving at any
time, due to
unexpected events
such as ill health or
financial misfortune
and may come to rely
on bus services.

I know of many who
have lived to regret
not taking an interest
because when this has
happened to them,
there were no services
left for them to use
and they were the first
to mourn! No one ever
appreciates what we
have got, until it’s
gone!

Yours Sincerely,
Jim Maggs.

Bus User and
Representative.

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating
selected routes

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
higher than
£1.40 per

OPTION 3:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
lower than
£1.40 per

I would prefer to lose
option 1 first as | feel
that the uptake on
evening services is the
lowest and the service
is less important

50-59

No

British

Female

No religion

Heterosexual

Welsh




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
with operators to | passenger passenger during the evenings.
maintain skeletal | head. head
services wherever exploring Option 2 would in my
possible. with opinion save the
operators the - | authority more money.
future
cpnt:_rpfrmil Option 3 is the
}[’r:a 1 yf[) selection that | would
€€ Toutes. 1 \yish to keep as it is
the less expensive and
has vital ranks for
shopping centre access
etc.
OPTION 3:
=y Withdrawal | OPTION 1:
Q of bus Withdrawal
(@) services with | of evening
@ a subsidy and selected
QﬁTION 5. lower than day time
- £1.40 per services,
Withdrawal of .
bus services with | PaSSenger renegotiating N N N
. . head selected 50-59 No British Male No religion | Heterosexual [ British
a subsidy higher . .
exploring routes with
than £1.40 per .
assenger head with operators to
P ' operators the | maintain
future skeletal
commercial | services
viability of wherever
these routes. | possible.
OPTION 1: i'll tell you what heres
Withdrawal of a suggestion for you!!!
evening and why don't you just
sele<_:ted day time stop the b_uses coming | 55 aq No British Female Prefer not | Prefer not to Welsh
services, build a brick wall to say say

renegotiating
selected routes
with operators to

around us and just
forget that we even
exist!! from a very




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - Comments Box Age: | disabilit origin - %?hegr- Gender | Religion/ Sexual Nationalit (Olte?;sre
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 ge- y Ethnic Belief: Orientation y1 ®
L (please state) state)
origin:
maintain skeletal angry Afan Valley
services wherever Resident
possible.
OPTION 3: )
Withdrawal | OPTION L:
of bus V\f/lthdre}wal
services with |2 everlung
a subsidy and se ected
OPTION 2: lower than S:K,H;?se
Withdrawal of £1.40 per renegoti’ating
bus SEIVICes with | passenger selected 50-59 No British Male Christian Gay Welsh
a subsidy higher | head routes with
than £1.40 per exploring operators o
passenger head. with mpaintain
Y operators the
Q p skeletal
«Q uture services
[9) commercial
S wherever
~ viability of ossible
N these routes. | P '
OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating 60-74 No British Female | Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
selected routes
with operators to
maintain skeletal
services wherever
possible.
OPTION 1: No option is really
Withdrawal of acceptable for our
evening and communities but White and Prefer not
selected day time option one is probably | 50-59 No Black Male to sa Heterosexual | Welsh
services, the best way forward Caribbean y

renegotiating
selected routes

if we have to choose ,
however | also believe




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - _ - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual - Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
with operators to that communication
maintain skeletal with operators to
services wherever provide services for
possible. the most vulnerable of
or wards is also very
important, looking for
other ways to provide
a service that is
essential to most
valley communities.
OPTION 2:
Withdrawal of
bus SETVICes with 17-24 No British Female | No religion | Heterosexual | English
a subsidy higher
than £1.40 per
pddsenger head.
Q
L% these options do not
refer to the needs or
a deprivation within the
communities that are 50-59 No British Male Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
served by these
services. What
consideration will be
taken of these?
OPTION 1: |OPTION 3:
Withdrawal | Withdrawal
of evening of bus
OPTION 2: gnd f_elected servtl)cgg with
Withdrawal of ay ime a subsidy
bus services with Services, lower than . .
a subsidy higher renegotiating | £1.40 per 60-74 No Female | Christian Heterosexual | English
selected passenger
than £1.40 per ith head
passenger head. routes wit cad
operators to | exploring
maintain with
skeletal operators the
services future




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

wherever
possible.

commercial
viability of
these routes.

v/ abed

| am against any
reduction in transport
services especially in
rural areas. We have
virtually nothing in
our communities and
to cut our bus services
would be the last
straw. People who
recommend these cuts
should try living in
our communities. We
are fighting to save
our local school at the
moment - our link to
surviving as a
community. We don't
have a bus link to our
local GP surgery!

Look at the towns
instead of rural
villages If you need to
make cuts.

thank you.

50-59

No

British

Female

Christian

Welsh

I have received copy
of your consultation
document and, whilst |
don’t wish to select
one of the three
options (as most of the
proposed changes
don’t really impact the
tourist/leisure market),




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

G, abed

I would just like to put
down a marker re the
23 & 159. | would be
most unhappy to see
any cut to the hourly
daytime service as this
is critical as the main
access for visitors to
the Afan Forest Park.

I am currently in
discussions with your
RDP colleagues re
possible funding to
improve information
for walkers, etc, at
more bus stops on the
main routes into the
valleys and the AFP
services are key.

I will be grateful if
you can pass on my
comments to whoever
else is involved in the
decision making.

Kind regards,
John Davies
(Baytrans)

OPTION 1:
Withdrawal of
evening and
selected day time
services,
renegotiating

OPTION 3:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
lower than

OPTION 2:
Withdrawal
of bus
services with
a subsidy
higher than

25-29

No

British

Female

Christian

Heterosexual

Welsh




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - Comments Box Age: | disability origin - %Thegr Gender | Religion/ sexual Nationality ((slte?;sre
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 ’ Ethnic Belief: Orientation
L (please state) state)
origin:
selected routes £1.40 per £1.40 per
with operators to | passenger passenger
maintain skeletal | head head.
services wherever | exploring
possible. with
operators the
future
commercial
viability of
these routes.
The Sunday 160
Glynneath to Neath is
a necessity for some
people who don't have
U choice but to work
g weekends. It's already
[9) OPTION 3: very difficult for many
~ With drawai OETION 1: pec_)p]e to get to work
(@) of bus Wlthdra}wal as it is and these cuys
services with of evening would have a nggatlve
a subsidy and s_elected «_affect on their lives. It
OPTION 2: lower than day time is espec!ally bad for
Withdrawai of £1.40 per services, night shift workers
bus services with paésenger renegotiating | and could cost over Prefer not Any other
. - selected £40 to get to and from | 25-29 No Female 7 Heterosexual | Welsh
a subsidy higher | head . o to say religion
than £1.40 per exploring routes with work which is totally
passenger head with operators to unacceptable when
' operators the maintain th(_ey_ only earn
future skelt_atal minimum wage and
commercial | S€Tvices unlilke some cannot
viability of wherever claim travel expenses.
possible. The Sunday service is

these routes.

also important for
tourism because we
have many places of
interest in the Neath
Valley. The Council
should not be looking
to cut services but to




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
make the, profitable.
There is currently no
incentive to get people
out of cars and onto
public transport which
is again unacceptable
when we are all trying
to cut carbon
emissions and our
roads are already too
congested. The
Council have already
failed Public transport
users and these cuts
are further proof that
o this council do not
Q believe that public
{®) transport is important.
@ The Council should
~ have consulted bus
~ users when creating
the Sunday timetables
but instead created
useless services that
were never going to be
used to their full
potential.
OPTION 3 Withdravel
Withdrawal of OPTION 2: of evenin
bus services with | Withdrawal g
. and selected
a subsidy lower of bus day time
than £1.40 per services with seK/ices
passenger head a subsidy . 17-24 No British Male Christian Gay British
h X . renegotiating
exploring with higher than
selected
operators the £1.40 per .
. routes with
future commercial | passenger operators to
viability of these | head. perato
maintain

routes.

skeletal




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
services
wherever
possible.
OPTION 1:
Withdrawal
OPTION 3: of evening
Withdrawal of and selected | OPTION 2:
bus services with | day time Withdrawal
a subsidy lower services, of bus
than £1.40 per renegotiating | services with | I am not willing to Prefer not to
passenger head selected a subsidy rank None all services | 60-74 Yes British Male Christian sa Welsh
exploring with routes with higher than are required y
operators the operatorsto | £1.40 per
future commercial | maintain passenger
v-'Q)iIity of these | skeletal head.
@tes. services
[9) wherever
~ possible.
0
OPTION 3: | o710 1:
Withdrawal .
Withdrawal
of bus .
- . of evening
services with
; and selected
a subsidy day time
OPTION 2: lower than seK/ices
Withdrawal of £1.40 per D
bus services with | passenger renegotiating . - .
L selected 50-59 No British Female | Christian Heterosexual | English
a subsidy higher | head .
. routes with
than £1.40 per exploring
) operators to
passenger head. with A
maintain
operators the
skeletal
future :
. services
commercial
S wherever
viability of ossible
these routes. | P '
OPTION 3: OPTION 1: [OPTION 2: | Options are given as 3
Withdrawal of Withdrawal | Withdrawal | choices 1 or 2 or 3. 60-74 No British Male Christian Heterosexual | British
bus services with | of evening of bus Surely the best option




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

a subsidy lower
than £1.40 per
passenger head
exploring with
operators the

future commercial

viability of these
routes.

6/ abed

and selected
day time
services,
renegotiating
selected
routes with
operators to
maintain
skeletal
services
wherever
possible.

services with
a subsidy
higher than
£1.40 per
passenger
head.

should be chosen for
each route?

What about other
options for very low
demand routes such as
taxi operators running
a service only when it
is required. Could this
be cheaper than
operating empty buses
on a fixed schedule?

Could car pools be
encouraged in remote
areas.

Where low subsidies
are required that
suggests to me than
with a bit of inovation
and given flexibility
private operators
should be able to
provide a profitable
service without taking
the easy option of
subsidies.

Where the level of
subsidy is very high
then the beneficiearies
of this service should
also make
compromises such as
only being able to
make the trip on
certain days.
Especially since the




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - Comments Box Age: | disability origin - %Thegr Gender | Religion/ sexual Nationality ((slte?;sre
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 ’ Ethnic Belief: Orientation
origin: (please state) state)
proportion on people
make the trip on
concession cards it
suggests these trips
are not for the purpose
of attending a place of
work.
As local councillor for
Ystalyfera | am
supporting the views
of local residents and
bus users -please see
separate information
submitted.
Q-? OPTION 1:
(®) Withdrawal it is important to
@PTION 3: of evening retain socially
\Fghdrawal of and selected [ OPTION 2: | essential services,
a9 services with | day time Withdrawal | which is the purpose
a subsidy lower services, of bus of grant-aiding
than £1.40 per renegotiating | services with | transport. The three OtherOther
passenger head selected a subsidy options in isolation 50-59 No OtherOther | welsh Male Christian Heterosexual | Welsh
exploring with routes with higher than | would be too rigid and Other
operators the operators to | £1.40 per local needs have to be
future commercial | maintain passenger assessed.
viability of these | skeletal head.
routes. services Option 2 would be the
wherever worst option, but if the
possible. authority decides to
explore option 1 i
would be pleased to
discuss further to
explore the maximum
service that can be
retained for the benfit
of the community.
\?Vﬁ;[wl(j?g\lwil of \(/)VT;Id?a’l\lwil \(/)VT;Id?a’l\lwil 40-49 No British Female [ Christian Heterosexual | Welsh




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - _ isabili origin - Othher i Religion/ Sexual ionali Olther
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
evening and of bus of bus
selected day time | services with | services with
services, a subsidy a subsidy
renegotiating higher than lower than
selected routes £1.40 per £1.40 per
with operators to | passenger passenger
maintain skeletal | head. head
services wherever exploring
possible. with
operators the
future
commercial
viability of
these routes.
OPTION 1:
U Withdrawal
TION 3: of evening
thdrawal of and selected [ OPTION 2: [ The existing bus
services with [ day time Withdrawal | service to the Upper
gsabsidy lower services, of bus Afan Valley is
than £1.40 per renegotiating | services with | skeletal. Sixth Form,
passenger head selected a subsidy college students and 60-74 Yes British Male No religion | Heterosexual |Welsh
exploring with routes with higher than pensioners are
operators the operatorsto | £1.40 per amongst the specific
future commercial | maintain passenger groups that would
viability of these | skeletal head. suffer by further cuts.
routes. services
wherever
possible.

OPTION 3:
Withdrawal of
bus services with
a subsidy lower
than £1.40 per
passenger head
exploring with
operators the
future commercial

113 submissions

from the community

of Ystalyfera

Bus service 121

I do rely on the bus
service to get about.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

viability of these
routes.

28 abed

A definite keep, those
without transport
would be sent into
social isolation, the
community would
suffer greatly.

Should be kept in
service, many old age
have no other
transport to reply on.

Many elderly
members of the public
rely on this service as
the other public
transport run every 2
hours only. It would
be devastating if it
was withdrawn.

There are no shops in
the village and to shop
in Tesco or Asda
transport is necessary.
Without this service
we will be completely
cut off.

This is myself and my
wife’s only form of
transport. Also many
others in the village.

This bus is the only
form of transport we
have. Losing this
would completely cut
us off from the
community.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

cq abed

A small annual charge
yearly might help to
keep the service

going.

Finish this
community.

Finish this community

It will finish this
community off for
good. Busis very
popular and well used
for all ages.

A big loss to the
estate.

What a sad loss this
would be to this
community for
everyone, especially
to old age and people
who can’t drive.

Marvellous for sick,
old age and people
with no cars.

Its good for the
village, elderly and
people with no
transport, its definitely
a keep.

Bus is really handy for
travelling local would
be a huge loss if the




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

78 abed

bus stopped.
Always on time.

We need ‘Bobs Bus’
as he makes our day.

Invaluable

Just forget about
Ystalyfera yeah.

This is a very
necessary service and
is invaluable to
Ysterlyfera.

A good service

The 121 service
provides a necessary
mode of transport for
residents of
Ystalyfera.

Without this service |
would not be able to
do my shopping,
surgery, visits friends
and day to day living.

I use the bus regularly,
its awful the bus
stopping, | reply on
this and can’t walk.

The 121 is a life line
for me

Please don’t stop as it
is used regular. I can’t




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

Gg abed

walk up the hill. Old
age rely on this bus. |
don’t drive.

I don’t drive and reply
on this bus, try
dropping buses in
Neath for a change.

I always use this bus
as [ don’t drive and
live on the top of
Penyween | would
not be able to shop
without this service.

This service needs to
be kept as it is as its
an invaluable service
to the residents of the
village.

It’s a valuable services
that serves people that
wouldn’t get there
otherwise.

The village would be
lost without this
service as it covers a
lot of area that other
buses don’t.

We desperately need
this bus it is a lifeline
for many people.

Should be kept on.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

9g abed

Well | would like the
bus to keep going as |
suffer with
enthuscemia and can’t
get up the hill and will
be lost without.

I would like to the bus
to stay as [ can’t
manage to walk up the
hill.

Please keep this
service.

| use the bus every
day to get my child
from school.

Such a good service
for Tesco and Asda.
Reliable and helpful
drivers.

Please do not stop this
service.

I rely on this service
for my
banking/shopping/
doctors.

I rely of this bus most
days.

I rely on this bus to do
my weekly shopping
and banking.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

/g8 abed

Should be kept on lots
of people rely on the
bus especially old age
to them it’s a lifeline.

As service 125 only
comes every 2 hours.
Suggest if bus 121 is
withdrawn the 125
should be reinstated
every hour. Very
awkward for Penywen
residents.

Bus services 121
urgently need bus 125
every 2 hours. Very
awkward for getting
about.

This bus is useful for
elderly passengers as
this is their only form
of transport.

We need the 121
because it’s the only
regular bus to get to A
and B.

Service is a ‘life line’
to parents of the
village. If withdrawn
hardship with ensue.

The bus is very
helpful to us locals.

Rely on bus for Asda
and Tesco.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

g9g abed

The people of
Ysterlyfera and
Godregraig need this
bus to keep running.

We use Bobs Bus
frequently. This
service is a necessity
for us, we would be
lost without it.

Since my husband no
longer drives because
he is losing his sight |
need this bus daily to
shop as I can’t carry a
lot because | have
arthritis of the spine,
hands and feet.

Old age pensioners
shouldn’t be expected
to pay for taxis to get
around when they
have a bus pass.

This is my only way
of getting to school to
pick up my
grandchildren and to
go to the bank to pay
my bills.

Without the bus it
means having a taxi to
fetch pension etc at a
cost of about £7.

I am going blind and




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

68 abed

need the bus for
surgery and the
appointments.

| suffer from many
health problems and
need Bobs Bus for
appointments and as
well as to and from
the shops. We need to
keep the bus.

As non-drivers my
husband and I rely on
this service for doctor
appointments.

No transport.

It is a very important
means of transport for
myself and my wife as
we both don’t drive.

Itis a vital link which
enables me to get to
the surgery as I don’t
drive.

This bus is a lifeline
for the community.

Why don’t you take
buses off Swansea
they got buses every
ten minutes.

Non-driver rely on the
bus for Asda every
week also for visiting




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

06 abed

daughter in
Ystragynlais, the bus
is used a few times a
week also runs at
regular times.

Non-driver age 71
must have bus to get
about to Drs, bank,
library, chemist, food
shopping, also have
hip problem cant walk
far, also bus runs
regularly.

As a pensioner who
does not have a
driving license | rely
on public transport to
do my shopping.

The people of
Ystalyfera and
Godregraig need this
bus to keep running.

Bob’s bus is the
lifeline of the
community.

Bob is needed for the
elderly, Pen-y-wern
and all the
community.

The community need
this bus service.

We need more
services not less.




Ethnic

Options - Options - Options - origin - Other - Religion/ Sexual Other
Preference 1 Preference 2 | Preference 3 Comments Box Age: | disability Ethnic Other Gender Belief: Orientation Nationality | - (please
L (please state) state)
origin:
A lot of people will
not be able to go out
of their houses
without Bob’s bus.
No transport.
Have no transport/no
car
Good service for the
community.
Must be kept for
Hogdson road and
9 Pen-y-wern
m .
(@)
@ This is an essential
(o) service for residents in
- Pen-y- wern and
Hodgesons road, as
these areas are’nt
served otherwise
(OAP’s Primarily)
OPTION 1: OPTION 3: Route 66 Gotre
Withdrawal | Withdrawal | Service is the service |
of evening of bus do not want to lose as
OPTION 2: and s_elected services with over the years the
. day time a subsidy service has been
Withdrawal of .
bus services with | SE7VICES: lower than repeatedly cut. There - o
a subsidv hiaher renegotiating | £1.40 per are many elderly 60-74 No British Christian Welsh
yhig selected passenger residents and others
than £1.40 per . : .
routes with head without thier own
passenger head. .
operators to | exploring transport who rely on
maintain with the bus as do people
skeletal operators the | from all over Port
services future Talbot who regularly




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

wherever
possible.

commercial
viability of
these routes.

visit the cemetery.
Cutting the service
will cause great
suffering to the people
of Goytre which | will
not support.

Councillor John
Rogers B.E.M.J.P
Member for Goytre,
Taibach and Margam

26 abed

Message from CllIr
Huw Williams
(Powys Council):

The 121 service is an
important bus service
for people living in the
upper Swansea Valley
whichever side of the
border they live. The
Council border is
invisible. As you are
aware access and
communication are
essential issues for our
residents particularly
those living in our
most deprived areas.
Besides the social
connectivity afforded
by this Service what
about access to
facilities such as the
community Hospital,
banks, supermarkets,




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

e abed

work, job centre, GP
surgeries etc, all
located along this bus
route and accessed by
both communities?
The community
Hospital is of
particular note. As
local Councillors we
have/are lobbying for
a wider range of
resources and
functions to be
provided at the
hospital and | strongly
believe this facility is
for the upper Swansea
valley. Access is
essential and transport
is key to this matter.

Whilst | understand
the budget pressure to
deliver cost saving
and appreciate that
Neath and Port Talbot
have to make difficult
decisions | would
support your efforts to
retain this Service.
Representing a Powys
ward | would not
which to interfere with
Neath Port Talbot's
decision making
process. Of course,
we have our own
financial problems to
address. However, on




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

behalf, of the people |
represent, | feel this
proposal would cause
difficulty and hardship
and | would be happy
for you to express
these views.

76 obed

I'm writing in
reference to be
proposed cuts to bus
services in the Neath
Valley. The 160
Glynneath to Neath
and return is a vital
service for workers
going to and returning
for work. Cutting this
route will mean it's
financially unviable to
work Sunday's or
Saturday night shifts
meaning that those
already suffering will
be hit harder. This
service is underused
and that's largely
down to the timetable,
why weren't potential
customers consulted to
ensure this service
was given the best
chance possible to be
profitable? Also it was
impossible for people
like me to get to work
in Port Talbot due to
poor timetables, |
could only do a half
hour shift in Baglan.




Options -
Preference 1

Options -
Preference 2

Options -
Preference 3

Comments Box

Age:

disability

Ethnic
origin -
Ethnic
origin:

Other -
Other
(please state)

Gender

Religion/
Belief:

Sexual
Orientation

Nationality

Other
(please
state)

G6 abed

This service also takes
tourists to our areas of
natural beauty which
would help the
economy if the
council started
thinking out of the box
and publicised this.
It's about time the
council stopped letting
bus passengers down
and started to
introduce a workable
and profitable bus
service in Neath and
not cutting something
that could be
beneficial to the local
area.

Thank you for your
time.

Yours Sincerely,

Miss Angharad
Griffiths.




Page 96



Appendix D

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Report Form
for Budget Proposals 2014/15 - Stage 1

This form should be completed for each Equality Impact Assessment on a new or existing
function, a reduction or closure of service, any policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project which
has been screened and found relevant to Equality and Diversity. It is presently being piloted for
proposals for budget reductions in front line services.

Please refer to the ‘Equality Impact Assessment Guidance’ while completing this form. If
you would like further guidance please contact the Corporate Strategy Team or your
directorate Heads of Service Equality Champion.

Where do you work?

Service Area: Integrated Transport Unit (Local Bus Services)

Directorate: Environment

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(€)

This EIA is being completed for a...

Service/ Policy/
Function Procedure Project Strategy Plan Proposal
B [] [] [] [] X

Please name and describe below...
To reduce revenue support to local bus services which are not commercially viable?
It was initially screened for relevance to Equality and Diversity on

The reduction of subsidised local bus affecting hospital journeys, Evening services and non
statutory school transport.

It was found to be relevant to...

AGE.cooeeeeeeeeeeeereee e X RACE oo []
DISADIILY ..., < Religion or belief ...........cocovvervcereseeeeeeeenne. []
Gender reassignment...............ccccoerevenns [] SBX .ttt X
Marriage & civil partnership ...................... ] Sexual orientation ...............ccc.eeeeereeerererennns ]
Pregnancy and maternity .............c.......... ] Welsh [anguage ........cocoecveeeeeveeeverrrerrenen. ]
Lead Officer () Approved by Head of Service
Name: Peter Jackson Name: D.W. Griffiths
Job title: 1.T.U Manager Date: 15" September 2014

Date: 15" September 2014

Page 97



Section 1 — Aims (See guidance):

Briefly describe the aims of the function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan, proposal or
project:

What are the aims?

With savings of £234k to find it was identified that any services with a subsidy of over/under £1.40
per passenger head was no longer sustainable. To negotiate with bus operators to reduce
subsidies to realise the efficiency savings.

This will affect the service listed below:

Who has responsibility?

The Council administers the revenue support grant to local bus operators, this grant supports bus
services which are not commercially viable. The bus operators remain responsible for providing
commercial bus services within the area.

Who are the stakeholders?

Residents of the NPT area.

Section 2 - Information about Service Users (See guidance):
Please tick what information you know about your service users and provide details/ evidence of
how this information is collected.

AGE..cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e X RACE oo []
DISADIIIY ......ocvvevecree e X Religion or belief ...........cccoovveeecverrieeienenn. ]
Gender reassignment...............coc.ovveerenns [] SBX .t X
Marriage & civil partnership ..................... [] Sexual orientation ...............cceceeeereeeirrnens []
Pregnancy and maternity .............c.c......... ] Welsh 1anguage .......c...cooeeecveeveecrerereennnnee, ]

What information do you know about your service users and how is this information
collected?

Surveys were carried out on all subsidised bus services during June, July and August 2014.
Passenger numbers, boarding and alighting point identified including a demographic of the
passengers using the bus services.

The Council also gathers data regarding number of passengers etc. which is provided by the bus
operators.

Any Actions Required?
Could any of the equality groups be affected differently from the original aim of the
function/policy/procedure?

Whilst all groups could be affected no disproportionate effect is expected on any individual equality
group. It is noted however that there are 35,793 concessionary bus passes issued in the Neath
Port Talbot county borough area of which 4,393 are for the disabled or visually impaired.

Further breakdowns of this information has been requested but there is no guarantee that the bus
operators will provide it. Although this number of concessionary fares/passes are recorded as
having been issued, it does not mean they are being used to access these bus services.

Page 98




Section 3 - Impact on Protected Characteristics (See guidance):

Please consider the possible impact on the different protected characteristics. This could be based

on service user information, data, consultation and research or professional experience (e.g.
comments and complaints).

Sexual orientation
Welsh language

Positive Negative Neutral Needs further

investigation
Age — [ ] X L] L]
Disability — [ ] X [] L]
Gender reassignment — [ | X [] L]
Marriage & civil partnership e ] X [] []
Pregnancy and maternity b [ | X L] L]
Race — [ ] X L] [l
Religion or belief — [ | X [] L]
Sex — [ | X L] []
m— [ ] X [] []
— X [] []

Thinking about your answers above, please explain in detail why this is the case
including details of any consultation (and/or other information), which has been
undertaken to support your view?

Members, partner organisations and bus operators are aware of the current financial climate
and that budgets are under pressure.

The proposed changes will be presented for decision to EHB on the 18" December 2014.

Any actions required (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in
knowledge)

Reduced bus services could impact on the quality of life of disabled if they have no access
to other transport. The adverse impacts will however be shared equally across the
passengers/services affected, taking account of local circumstances. Again no
disproportionate effect can be expected.

S:
Please consider how the initiative might address the following issues.

he
r
Im
pa
ct

You could base this on service user information, data, consultation and research or professional

experience (e.g. comments and complaints).

Foster good relations between Advance equality of opportunity

different groups between different groups
Elimination of discrimination, Reduction of social exclusion and
harassment and victimisation poverty

Page 99




Please explain any possible impact on the above.

The reduction in service would be across the board affecting residents throughout the
whole area. The impact will be unpopular with residents and passengers, including those
with protected characteristics. However, the reduction results of the savings needed to
be made by the Council, which has to be passed on to the bus operators, who will then
have to decide how they respond.

What work have you already done to improve any of the above?

We are meeting with the third sector community transport schemes to identify gaps that
need back filling.

Actions (to mitigate adverse impact or to address identified gaps in knowledge)

Community transport providers, NPTCVS and C1st partnerships will be asked to help
promote community transport to communities/groups affected.

Section 5 - Monitoring arrangements:
Please explain the arrangements in place (or those which will be put in place) to monitor this
function, service, policy, procedure, strategy, plan or project:

Monitoring arrangements: Complaints about cuts in Council revenues subsidised
services will monitored and analysed as much as possible.

Actions: We will continue to monitor for any disproportionate effect on equality groups.

Section 6 — Outcomes:
Having completed sections 1-5, please indicate which of the outcomes listed below applies to your
initiative (refer to guidance for further information on this section).

Outcome 1: Continue the initiative... 4
Outcome 2: Adjust the initiative... []
Outcome 3:Justify the initiative... []
Outcome 4: Stop and remove the initiative... [] %

For outcome 3, detail the justification for proceeding here
With the current financial pressures facing the council, it has been determined the contribution the
council makes to subsidies local bus services will be withdrawn.

Section 7 - Publication arrangements:
On completion, please contact the Corporate Strategy Team for advice on the legal requirement to
publish the findings of EIAs.

Page 100




TOT abed

Action Plan:

Objective - What are we
going to do and why?

Who will be
responsible for
seeing it is done?

When will it be done
by?

Outcome - How will
we know we have
achieved our
objective?

Progress

Reduce revenue funding
to local bus Operators

Integrated Transport
Unit

March 30" 2015

Reduced number of
Hospital, evening and
non-statutory school
transport, services
through negotiation
with bus operators to
minimise the impact
to residents of NPT.

CMB 3™ December,
EHB Board 18"
December. For
implementation from
Sunday the 5™ April
2015.

* Please remember to be ‘SMART’ when completing your action plan.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT
- D.W. GRIFFITHS

18™ DECEMBER 2014
SECTION A— MATTER FOR DECISION
WARD(S) AFFECTED: ALL

JOINT TRANSPORT PLAN FOR SOUTH WEST WALES — JANUARY
2015

Purpose of Report

Members are requested to approve the current developments in the proposed
Joint Local Transport Plan

Background

Following a brief consultation, reported previously, the Welsh Government
issued guidance on production of Local Transport Plans in May 2014. The
guidance, and subsequent legislation, removed the requirement for Councils to
produce Regional Transport Plans in collaboration with authorities in the
regional consortia. Instead, Councils are now required to produce Local
Transport Plans relevant to their own administrative areas. However, the new
guidance gave authority for Councils to work collectively to produce Joint
Local Transport Plans whilst still retaining individual programmes of projects.

During the last 18 months the Swansea Bay City region concept has developed,
which includes the four authorities in the previous consortium, disbanded at the
end of 2013-14. Subsequently, these four authorities have agreed to work
collectively in a Regional Transport Forum to progress transport issues in the
City Region.

The draft Joint Transport Plan for South West Wales (JTP), attached as
appendix 1, is a result of this collaboration. It will come into effect from the 1%
April 2015, when the current 5 year Regional Transport Plan (RTP) expires.
Due to time and budget constraints the draft JTP builds on the current RTP,
rather than starting from a clean sheet.

Page 103



The draft Plan sets out a strategic framework for improvements to local
transport, connectivity and access through the period 2015 -2020, together with
longer term aspirations.

The driving force for the City Region is delivery of the objectives and outcomes
of the Regional Economic Regeneration Strategy (RERS) and this Plan reflects
those aspirations. As well as this, the draft Plan targets both the National
Transport Plan and Welsh Government programme priority areas of economic
growth, access to employment, tackling poverty, sustainable travel and safety
and access to services.

In compliance with the WG guidance the draft Plan’s programmes do not
contain any references to projects that are outside the potential delivery remit of
local authorities, e.g. projects delivered by the Welsh Government, such as the
A40 improvements, and improvements to railways and stations.  However,
such schemes are intrinsic to the overall development of transport policy.
Consequently, an overarching letter is proposed, to be submitted to the Welsh
Government along with the Plan. The draft letter is attached as appendix 2.

Also, in compliance with WG guidance, the draft Plan has to be endorsed by the
Swansea Bay City Regions Board.

The deadline for submission of the final Plan is 31% January 2015. However, in
order to get final approval from all four authorities, the draft Plan has been
introduced into the political process at this stage.

Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in discharging
its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010. After completing
the assessment, it has been determined that this function does not require an
Equality Impact Assessment.

Financial Implications

There are no financial implications. Schemes identified in the draft Plan will be
subject to a future, evidence based, bidding process at the appropriate time.

Consultation Outcome

A preliminary consultation workshop was carried out with invited stakeholders
in July 2014.

Page 104



A draft of the Plan was issued to stakeholders for consultation between 1% and
21 October 2014.

The outcome of the consultation is included in the draft Plan.

Sustainability Appraisal

Community Plan Impacts:

Economic Prosperity, Environment and Transport will be positively affected
due to an improved infrastructure, which will improve the community safety,
whilst better health and well-being will be assisted by the funding of the Road
Safety proposals.

Other Impacts:

Welsh Language is promoted by the use of bi-lingual signing, whilst all the
proposals contribute towards improving Equality of Opportunity and Social
Inclusion.

Reasons for Proposed Decision

To support and progress the key themes and objectives of the Community Plan.

Recommendation

It is recommended having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment
screening, that:-

The draft Plan is accepted for submission in January 2015 subject to further
minor amendments and endorsement by the Swansea Bay City Regions Board.

List of Background Papers

Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form
Guidance to Local Transport Authorities — Local Transport Plan 2015

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Joint Transport Plan for South West Wales — January 2015
Appendix 2 — Draft covering letter to Welsh Government

Page 105



Wards Affected

All

Officer Contact

Brian Biscoe, Programme and Commissioning Manager
Tel No. 01639 686915
Email: b.biscoe@npt.gov.uk

Page 106



COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

JOINT TRANSPORT PLAN FOR SOUTH WEST WALES — JANUARY
2015

(@) Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call-in
period.

(b) Sustainability Appraisal
Community Plan Impacts

Economic Prosperity - Positive
Education and Lifelong Learning - Positive
Better Health and Well Being - Positive
Environment and Transport - Positive
Crime and Disorder - No impact

Other Impacts

Welsh Language - Positive
Sustainable Development - Positive
Equalities - Positive
Social Inclusion - Positive

(c) Consultation

The item has been subject to external consultation.

Page 107



Appendix 1

Joint Transport Plan
For

South West Wales

January 2015

Photos to be added

Page 108



CONTENTS

Section Description Page

No.

One Background and Infroduction 3

Two Issues, Opportunities and Interventions 13

Three LTP Programme 2015 - 2020 23

Four Medium and Longer Term Aspirations to 2030 35

Five Statutory Checks 40

Six Consultation 42

sSeven Monitoring and Evaluation 44

Fhotographs

Glossary of Terms used in the Local Transport Plan

AQMA Air Quality Management Area

ATA Active Travel Act

CIL Community Infrastructure Levy

CRB City Region Board

DWLA Driver Yehicle Licensing Agency

EQlA Egquality Impact Assessment

ERDF European Regional Development Fund

EV Electric Yehicles

GWVA Gross Value Added

HREA Habitats Regulation Assessment

LAs Local Authorities

LTF Local Transport Fund

LTF Local Transport Plan

MCH Mational Cycle Network

NTP Mational Transport Plan

RDP Rural Development Plan

RERS Regional Economic Regeneration Strategy

RTP Regional Transport Plan

SEA Strategic Environmental Azsessment

SuUpP Shared Use Path

SWTRA South Wales Trunk Road Agency

WTS Wales Transport Strategy

WG Welsh Government

TEN Trans Eurcpean Metwork

Page 109




1.0

SECTION ONE - BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION

Section One provides the context for the City Region Transport Plan. It sets out:

The role of the Swansea Bay City Region Board and the Regional Economic
Regeneration Strategy in driving forward the regional economy

How the Joint Transport Plan builds from the Regional Transport Plan (2010 — 2015)
to support a vibrant, skilled, growing and connected regional economy

A review of relevant changes since the 2010 plan submission

Emerging trends which may impact on access needs

1.1

1.2

1.3

Background
There are four Local Authorities in South West Wales, namely:

Camarthenshire County Council

Meath Port Talbot County Borough Council
Pembrokeshire County Council

City and County of Swansea.

These authorties formed a transport consortium in 1998, This consortium was
responsible for working with partners and stakeholders to prepare a Regional
Transport Plan (RTP) for the period 2010 — 2013+ This plan set out a vision,
objectives and a long term strategy for a 20 year period and a five year programme
of projects. The plan has provided a strategic framework for improvements to
transport and access over the last five years. A copy of the RTP executive summary
is included as Appendix A and a copy of the full RTP is available on request.

Curing the last 18 months the Swansea Bay City Region concept (which is co-
terminus with the former Consortium which has been disbanded) has evolved and
the City Region Board now has a role in developing strategic transport priorities and
prioritising transport schemes across the region. The driving force for the City
Region is the delivery of the objectives and outcomes from the Regional Economic
Regeneration Strategy (RERS)z.

Local Authorities have prepared Local Transport Plans (LTPs) for submission to the
Welsh Government (WG) at the end of January 2015. This LTP replaces the RTP
with effect from 1% April 2015. The four authorities in South West Wales have
worked collaboratively to create an overarching City Region LTP, with four local
programmes of projects. A plan of the joint LTP area is shown in Plan One on page
four. The joint LTP will provide the framework for improving connectivity to, from and
within the region for the period 2015 — 2020.

Page 110




DT TRETTO0N N0 Iy Ay oo i Ol 1y ilaldn wein O

UOIBaY SI|EM 1SOM YINOoS - auQ ueld

‘3-!.3&
= . oMo ey o UOBay APISING NUALNNIS R
SAPMIOIOW s .
POy ¥, —om SRMULIS AN
SPEOY YUNI| e RV waseyt pionin]

SI|EM 1S9 YINos 10} uejq podsuea) €207 juiof

Page 111



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Much of the baseline work for the RTP is siill relevant and has formed a solid
foundation for the LTP. This approach of building up from regional plans was
endorsed by the guidance for the LTPz.

Introduction
The City Region Transport Plan is intended to support the following national
documents:
« One Wales — Connecting the Nation, The Wales Transport Strategy (WTS)
issued in May 2008
« The National Transport Plan (NTP) 2015

The NTP has been refreshed by the WG to coincide with the introduction of LTPs in
2015. This LTP will help to deliver NTP priorities at a regional and local level.

The City Region LTP is also targeted at addressing both the NTP and the WG
Programme Priority Areas and in particular:

+ Economic growth: Supporting and Safeguarding jobs in the City Region

+ Access to employment: Reducing economic inactivity by delivering safe
access to major employment sites in the City Region

# Tackling poverty: Maximising the contribution that transport services can
make to targeting improvements to tackling poverty and target improvements
at the most disadvantaged communities

+ Sustainable travel and safety: Encouraging safer, healthier and more
sustainable travel

* Access to services: Connecting communities and enabling access to key
senvices

These priorities have clear synergy with the City Region Board vision, which is:

‘By 2030 South West Wales will be a confident, ambitious and connected City
Region recognised intemationally for its emerging knowledge and innovation
economy”

Providing integrated and affordable access to businesses and for residents and
visitors can help to stimulate sustainable economic development, reductions in
deprivation and social exclusion and an increase in well-being. The City Region
Authorities will work collaboratively with the WG, transport providers and users to
plan, develop and deliver good quality access in South West Wales.

Review of Regional Transport Plan

The Authorities in the City Region have carefully reviewed the RTP and are
confident that the overarching policy context is still valid and that the LTP will help
facilitate the aspirations for a “Connected City Region”. The geography and
population issues remain largely unchanged although the population of the City
Region has increased by 27,500 (4%) to 687,000+. The cument transport issues are
also similar, although road traffic volumes have slightly reduced in the last five years

Page 112



by between 4-6%s, largely due to the economic downturn, rising fuel prices and
improvements to alternative modes.

1.11  The economy of South West Wales continues to lag behind other areas. Overall
growth in the last two decades has been consistently below that of the United
Kingdom and of Wales and this has been the catalyst for the collaboration on the
RERS. The underperformance of the regional economy contributes to continuing
pockets of deprivation across the region.

1.12 The strategy (RERS) drives the Swansea Bay City Region and in line with WG
priorities seeks to drive up economic activity as a key to unlocking the potential of
the region. This is an inclusive vision which seeks to up-skill, encourage lifelong
leaming and eradicate deprivation through the creation of sustainable employment
opportunities. Good connectivity is essential to achieving the strategic aims of the
RERS and the LTP provides the strategic framework for transformational projects
alongside more local connectivity projects designed to improve access.

1.13  The four Authorities have continued to consult and work together with stakeholders
over the last five years. This has included partner attendance at regular quarterly
meetings, the issue of quarterly newsletters and more project specific engagement
across the region.

1.14 A Travel Pattem Research Survey was commissioned in late 2013 to provide an
update to earlier surveys in 2006/7 and 2010 and to inform the LTP development.
Further detail on the Travel Pattern Survey and the results are included in Appendix
B. The outputs from the survey align well with the transport and access trends set
out in the NTP. Key points are as follows:

= Car ownership has increased slightly since the 2010 survey with 80% of the
population having access to a car. However, almost half the 80% have one
car per household, which may indicate reduced accessibility in areas not well
served by public transport

= There has been no change in the number of trips made per week and work,
shopping and leisure still make up the top three purposes for all trips made

s Almost 60% of all frips were made by car (as a driver). Bus use in the region
has not changed overall since 2010 with approximately 6% of all trips made
by bus. However in the context of an overall downward trend for bus travel in
Wales this is positive newss. In addition some services where LAs and the
WG have invested in improvements have seen significant growth for example
Service 460 between Carmarthen and Cardigan. There has been little overall
change in the proportion of trips by train, cycle and walking trips, although
there are variations at a Local Authority level

= The % of respondents who indicated they never use the train, bus, walk or
cycle has fallen since the 2010 survey

+ The level of satisfaction with the road and rail networks remains at similar
levels to the 2010 survey, whilst regular cyclists are less satisfied in 2014
than they were in 2010

1.15 Key gateways into and out of the region remain important and as the economy
becomes increasingly globalised, good connectivity beyond the region and country

Page 113



1.16

117

into and beyond Europe becomes more critical. Key gateways to and from the
region are shown on Plan One and include:

The Strategic Road Metwork — including the Trans European Network which
links Europe to the Republic of Ireland. The M4 motorway, trunks roads and
strategic local roads are all vital gateways to the region for freight and
passenger movements and are the most commonly used entry/exit routes to
South West Wales

The Strategic Rail Metwork (Great Westem Mainline) which is also part of the
Trans European Metwork (TEM) and is due to be electrified as far as
Swansea by 2018, bringing benefits in terms of time savings and
environmental impacts

Ports — There is one trust port (Milford Haven) and a number of commercially
operated ports (passenger and freight). Milford Haven is the third largest port
in the United Kingdom and makes a significant contribution to the regional
and Welsh economy. Port Talbot Docks is a deep water Harbour and imports
iron ore and coal for use at the Tata steelworks

Ajrports — there are three airports in the region at Swansea, Pembrey and
Withybush (which is in the Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone). None currently
offers scheduled services, but there is potential for further development in the
future to serve potential needs for business or leisure travel

In the last year new regional Rail and Bus Strategies have been developed and
adopted. These help to feed into work currently underway at a national level. For
example the Long Term Planning Process for Rail in Wales and preparations for the
renewal of the Wales & Borders and Great Westemn franchises. For public transport,
the regional strategy has helped inform the output of the Ministers Bus Policy
Advisory Groupr.

The Strategic Lewvel Accessibility Assessment camed out to inform the RTP
development has not been repeated. However, some assessments have been
undertaken at an All Wales level by the WG. These have been disaggregated to a
regional level. Key points are:

Access to main hospitals has improved slightly - 72% of residents can
access a hospital within 60 minutes by public transport (compared with 71.1%
in 2009}

Access to higher and further education has decreased — 72.5% of residents
can access an HEFE establishment within 60 minutes by public transport
(compared with 81.2% in 2009)

Access to Tourist attractions (which does not directly comelate to a 2009
measurement) - ¥7% of residents can access a tourist destination within 60
minutes by public transport

Access to jobs is approximately the same — 89% of residents can access
employment locations within 60 minutes by public transport

However, these assessments are simplistic and do not take account of the range
and variety of joumeys people currently make to access services and facilities
across and beyond the region.

Page 114



1.18 An LTP consultation workshop was held in July 2014 and delegates were asked to
review the bamiers to and opportunities for improving connectivity in the region
which arose in the RTP development. Many of the current barriers were similar, but
there was a more positive attitude towards potential opportunities ansing from
development investment in the region (See also Section Six)

1.19  Owerall our review concluded that the research and evidence on the drivers for
change set out in the RTP remains valid.

1.20 Review of Policies and other Plans

There has also been a review of other relevant Strategy and Plans which may
impact on the connectivity of the region including: The adoption of the Climate
Change Strategy for Waless — This Strategy and the associated Delivery Plan
confirm the WG's commitment to tackling climate change by reducing
greenhouse gas emissions by 3% a year in areas for which they are
responsible. Transport accounts for approximately one fifth of the 3%.
Interventions in the Delivery Plan are consistent with “Smarter Choices”
strategies and policies set out in Section Two

The Equalities Act 2010 — This sets a duty on the public sector to advance
equality of opportunity, eliminate discrimination and foster good relations.
Whilst the RTP was submitted prior to this legislation, and a post submission
Equality Impacts Assessment (EQIA) was undertaken, the degree of
engagement undertaken in developing the RTP did include many of the
requirements of the new legislation. The EQIA has been updated as part of
the LTP development by camying out a screening as set out in Appendix C
The introduction of the Active Travel (Wales) Act (ATA) — This Act was
granted Royal Assent in late 2013 and came into effect in autumn 2014.
Statutory guidance, design guidance and an Action Plan have been issued.
The Act places new duties on Local Authorities with respect to mapping
current and aspirational walking and cycling routes and also to make
progress towards delivering aspirations and promoting more active travel.
The intention is to create a step change in the way people make short or
medium distance journeys and is focused on improving health and well-being
as well as contributing to a reduction in congestion, single occupancy car use
and improvements to air quality and urban environments. As well as the
requirements relating to mapping the Act also requires the WG and LAS to
include provision for walkers and cyclists in any new road provision. This is
critical in ensuring a move away from creating developments which are car
friendly and anti-walking and cycling

The establishment of the Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone and Strategic
Growth zones such as the Cross Hands zone in Carmarthenshire. The
intention is to create the rght physical, economic and technological
circumstances to encourage further growth and agglomeration within the
these zones

“ibrant and Viable Places™ programmes — Both the City and County of
Swansea and Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council have been awarded
grants under the Viable and Vibrant Places for Swansea City and Port Talbot
town respectively. This funding includes elements of urban infrastructure,

Page 115



1.21

1.22

connectivity improvements and public realm. A further £1m has also been
released for Llanelli Town centre

+ The evolution of the Local Development Plans in the four Local Authorities
and the Pembrokeshire Coast and Brecon Beacons MNational Park Authorities.
Each of these plans is at a different stage ranging from adoption to deposit
stage. Details of LDPs can be found on the four LA websites. As the Local
Transport Plan is developed from the RTP, those LDPs which are adopted
will have synergy with the LTP and for those still in development close
working between transport and planning colleagues will ensure the synergy
continues and is strengthened

+ Single Integrated Plans — These Local Authority level plans are prepared in
partnership with other local agencies and have replaced a number of discrete
plans. As for LDPs the plans have been prepared taking into account the RTP
and thus there will already be a clear synergy with this LTP.

LTP Vision and Objectives

The Vision and Objectives for the LTP are based on the RTP, but have been
amended to strengthen the focus on the WG priority areas and the City Region
Board's priority of sustainable economic regeneration. The LTP vision for a better
connected region is:

To improve transport and access within and beyond the region to facilitate
economic regeneration, reduce deprivation and support the development and
use of more sustainable and healthier modes of transport.

The LTP objectives for a better connected region are.

1. To improve the efficiency and reliability of the movement of people and
freight within and beyond South West Wales to support economic growth in
the City Region

2. To improve access for all to a wide range of services and facilities including
employment and business, education and training, health care, tourism and
leisure activities

3. To improve the sustainability of transport by improving the range and
quality of, and awareness about, transport options, including those which
improve health and well being

4. To improve integration between policies, service provision and modes of
transport in South West Wales

5. To implement measures which will protect and enhance the natural and built
environment and reduce the adverse impact of transport on health and
climate change

6. To improve road safety and personal security in South West Wales

Page 116




1.23 Objective six relates to improving road safety and this includes all road users, but
especially vulnerable road users including:

+ Pedestrians
* Cyclists

+ Motorcyclists
+ Equestrians

Whilst improving personal security refers to private and public transport users.

1.24 The vision and objectives link directly to the NTP and the Welsh Government
programme priorities as set out in Appendix D. The vision and objectives are also
aligned to the barriers to access in the region identified in the RTP and which remain

relevant today as shown in Figure One below.

Figure One — Barriers to connectivity and desired outputs/outcomes

Poor access to

Em ployment and —_—
Training, Healthcare,

Education and Leisure

Lack of integration at a
policy level and
operationally between
and within modes of

transport

Inaccessible,
unattractive and
infrequent public 1
fransport opfions

Lack of interchange
between modes, poor
safety and -
accessibility, services
not user friendly

Lack of Innovation in
transport development,
Poor marketing and
information on
transport options

1.25 Emerging Trends

A vision for a better
connected region

and the
Six LTP objectives

—

Access to employment and
training from deprived areas
leading fo an increase in skill

lewels and more and higher

value job opportunities

Access fo health care,
education, social and leisure
activities for communities
leading to improved health and
well-being, reduced levels of
sickness and increased
economic acfivity

Increasing levels of active
travel leading to reductions in
carbon emissions and
improved health and well -
being

Increased awareness of
access options leading to
appropriate choice of mode
for joumeys

There are some trends which may impact on future connectivity in the region as

follows:

+« (limate change adaptation — the weather is becoming more unpredictable

Page 117




with more extreme events for example coastal or river flooding affecting key
strategic routes (road and rail) and local roads, high winds closing bridges
and storm damage to highways. The impact of this on connectivity in and
around the region needs to be considered at the scheme development stage
to build in resilience for the future. Without building in resilience at the start
there is a likelihood of severe delays to jouneys and the economic impacts of
delays together with increasing costs of maintenance

Increasing use of social media — both for work and social purposes this has
the potential to change the demand for transport as people become
connected via intemet services and less often face fo face. There is also
increasing use of downloaded entertainment media. This trend could reduce
unnecessary travel (with a reduction in carbon emissions) and reduce social
isolation for those living in very rural areas.

The introduction of the Universal Credit system - This may have an impact
on low income families especially those without access to car and who
cannot afford to use public transport

Public sector financial support for improving connectivity — this has reduced
significantly during the lifetime of the RTP and is unlikely to improve in the
immediate future. There is going to need to be more radical partnership
working with a range of public, private and third sector agencies to make sure
connectivity can be enhanced and economic regeneration can drive up the
regional Gross Value Added (GWVA)

New Technologies — including electric, hydrogen and driverless vehicles. The
use of electric vehicles has increased (cumrent estimates show approximatehy
10,000 electric vehicles registered in the UK.) and more areas have
introduced public charging points. Electric power is likely to increase in
importance as a secondary power source. Research continues into hydrogen
and driverless cars both of which could lead to a step change in connectivity
and the function and form of our transport networks

Internet shopping — Increasing numbers of consumers are opting for internet
shopping and this has potential benefits and downsides. It can provide real
choice in terms of quality and price for those without access to private
transport. However, it may also lead to more free time being used for leisure
or social purposes which also include travel. This could result in an increase
in small and medium sized delivery vehicles on the road network

Fuel costs — have shown short term instability and longer term increases in
relation to incomes. This may be exacerbated by future tax policies, by
depleted oil wells or by further unrest in oil producing nations. This could
provoke a significant modal shift towards public transport, walking and cycling
or car sharing

Re-organisation of Health Care services — increasing specialisation and
maintenance of high clinical standards is leading to the concentration of
specific services in fewer locations. This may lead to an increased need to
travel for some of the most vulnerable residents in the region. The ongoing
collaboration across public sector boundaries which is beginning to bear fruit
will need to continue and intensify to ensure that the need for good access
transcends systemic, operational and financial barriers

The closure of smaller schools and the creation of new larger schools — as for
health care there is a move away from small community schools towards
larger combined catchment schools where more specialisation and expertise
is available. This means pupils having to travel further and will impact on the

Page 118



proportion of pupils walking/cycling to school and the provision of free school
transport

» New flexible working arrangements — such as home or remote working which
may help to reduce peak hour demands for road space and parking places

 |local Govemment re-organisation — the creation of fewer, larger Local
Authorities, either in line with the Williams Commission or a revised format
will bring together different policy and financial frameworks in the next 5-6
years. It will be critical to ensure that momentum on delivering improved
connectivity is not lost during the period of change

s FElectrification of the Great Westemn mainline to Swansea — this could result in
even stronger growth in railway travel in the region. If this is combined with an
ambitious Wales and Borders franchise from 2018, it is feasible that local and
longer distance rail access both east, west and north of Swansea, could
increase rapidly

* Increases in cycling — there is already a trend towards more cycling for short
and medium journeys — the improvements to routes, facilities and enhanced
promotion of sustainable travel which will be delivered as part of the ATA
should support and encourage further increases. The reguirement to provide
facilities for walkers and cyclists as part of any new roads should also start
the process of “building in” sustainable transport options

1.26 Longer Term trends and challenges
There are longer term changes in demography, the economy and technology which
will need to be considered and planned for over the next 5-10 years and there may
be other systemic changes to the way services and facilities are accessed which
impact on travel demand in the future.

Page 119



2.0

2.1

22

2.3

24

SECTION TWO -ISSUES, OPPORTUNITIES AND INTERVENTIONS

Long Temm Strateqy

The RTP built from the data sources and the stakeholder engagement to a long term
strategy designed to improve connectivity and achieve the vision and objectives up
to 2025. The strategy was reviewed, remains a coherent response to NTP and
RERS priorities and has been carried forward into the LTP. That strategy is:

Improving strategic east'west road and rail links

Improving linkages between key settlements and strategic employment sites
Improving the efficiency of the highway

Improving the integration of land use and transportation planning

Promoting integration

Improving Strategic Bus Corridors

Improving safety in transport

Providing more and better information

The strategy recognises the diverse nature of South West Wales and is based
around four specific approaches to developing enhanced connectivity in the context
of the Swansea Bay City Region RERS as follows:

Swansea City Centre

Strategic cormidors

Key settlements and their hinterlands
Rural areas

Each of these areas has much to contribute to a strong and growing economy and
each will benefit from different responses to poor connectivity, within the framework
of the long term strategy.

Policies
The policies have been refocused and updated for the LTP as seen below. The
policies for a better connected region in line with the RERS are:

Improving access between Key settlements and sites — City Region partners
will:
= Policy K31 - work collaboratively to develop improved public transport
services, 1o link key settlements and their hinterlands with strategic comidors
and employment sites

» Policy KS2 - seek to improve the joumey time reliability between key
settlements and strategic and local employment sites

Page 120



« Policy KS3 - improve walking and cycling links within and between key
settlements, as part of delivering the ATA Action Plan

Enhancing International Connectivity — City Region partners will:
= Policy IC1 - work with the WG through the NTP programme to improve the
TENs and the Trunk Road network to facilitate joumey time reliability and
support the economic regeneration of the region

= Policy IC2 - work with WG to seek continuous improvements to the rail network
in and beyond South West Wales to facilitate inward investment and support
modal shift

= Policy IC3 - work collaboratively to facilitate more reliable, effective and
sustainable movement of people and freight to, from and through our ports.
Also to improve access fo our ports

« Policy IC4 - work with the WG and other parties, to support the development of
good access to regional and national airports in the UK, especially by public
transport

Integrating local transport — City Region partners will:
« Policy IT1 - improve interchange facilities to reduce the barriers to multi modal
journeys

» Policy IT2 - support and encourage the development and take up of multi
modal ticketing opportunities

« Policy IT3 - work with agencies and organisations to reduce barriers to more
sustainable travel behaviour and develop sustainable travel information which
meets the ATA requirements on promotion

« Policy IT4 - work with agencies and organisations that provide transport fo
ensure it is accessible to all users and that innovative solutions are developed
for those areas with little or no public transport

e Policy IT5 - integrate Long distance coach services, strategic and local
networks to promote sustainable access including that to the coast and
countryside for visitors and residents

Reducing Greenhouse gas emissions and other environmental impacts from
transport — City Region partners will:

» Policy E1 - work collaboratively fo ensure that new development is located
where there is sustainable access. For existing land allocations the emphasis
will be on securing realistic alternatives to single car occupancy as part of the
development process and to meet ATA requirements

« Policy E2 - facilitate and promote improved rail and bus services, walking,
cycling and car sharing to encourage modal shift and improve air quality

Page 121



« Policy E3 - encourage the take up and development of travel planning to
reduce single occupancy car commuting

« Policy E4 - encourage more sustainable freight distribution through better
access to and use of rail, intermodal facilities and ports

Increasing Safety and security - City Region partners will:
« Policy SS1 - seek to reduce the number of road casualties and collisions
through improvements to highways and traffic management

» Policy 52 - work collaboratively to promote the safety of and safe behaviour
by all road and rail users

The link between the LTP objectives and policies can be seen in Table One below:

Table One — LTP policy links to LTP objectives

LTF Policy LTP Objectives

1 2 3 4 a 5]
KS1 +++ ++ ++ ++ +++ ++
KS2 +44 +4 +4 ++ ++ +
KS3 + +4++ +++ ++ +++ +
IC1 +++ ++ + M - +
1C2 +++ ++ + + + M
IC3 ++ + N + + M
1C4 +++ + -- + + M
IT1 ++ +4++ ++ +++ ++ ++
T2 ++ +4 ++ +H+ +++ +
T3 + + +++ + +++ +
T4 + +4++ + + M M
ITS ++ +4++ + + ++ +
E1l + +4 +4 ++ +++ +
E2 + ++ +++ + +++ +
E3 ++ ++ ++ M ++ ++
E4 ++ N + N ++ N
551 ++ N N N - +++
552 ++ N N N N +++

Where:

+++ = Strong contribution to LTP objectives

++ = Contribution

+ = Slight contribution

N = Neutral impact to LTP objectives

- = Slight negative impact on LTP objectives
- = Megative impact

-~ = Strong negative impact

2.5 Matrx of 1ssues, Opportunities, Interventions and Outcomes
In the LTP guidance issued by the WG, a series of fourteen common transport

Page 122



26

2.7

issues was included. All of these issues are relevant to South West Wales and there
are also a further nine issues which have been identified through consultation as
shown on Table Two.

Table Two matches potential bamiers to good access with a number of potential
interventions and the type of schemes which would address the barriers. In this way
it provides a logical step by step response to barmiers to good connectivity, including:

What the problem/fissue is

What evidence is there for the problem

What the prefermred ocutput/outcome is

How this could be achieved (high level interventions)

What action is required (what sort of schemes would deliver the change)

The reference numbers in Table Two are explained in Appendix E to the LTP.

Page 123



wodswer AJUnuuecs

skawnal [aneq angoe
w saseasou ySnoag

uoiendod-ap Jayuny o3 pes|
UED S| CsEuEs ASY 0] 553006

Buipnjow podsuery Jog SpUBWSP 3RS MO 0} | SUSPISY  JBIEESH YoowEU Buppnpss ssowsss sng  EDD| o
UMINNSELUI HIEUIELSNS PanoudUymEU SUDINIDS SAJEADULI LD Sauled Y Wop ¢ Bunsi| pUE Epmos | kodsueq oggnd o uogeEnUOD e+ | upgonpas E Ul YNS=U UED SuoqEdod
fq sapow spgeulElsns auow afemosug uoiBas | ‘yueay ‘uonEsnpa uoifiay Buwmpsg o aeasd S uo
aw=aps Buweys 185 sajEpA (B 251|ang a1 w Buisigauely yiomgsu moje o) sssmod | ‘weudodws se gons | AU W sAAnns waged [BARl] ¢ | souenm Jseal sy @ asey)
sAWRYTS asudmus un sBupEd U0 pUE DAL YW Pop T | seouses A3y o) sERUE eepugds Epoy  + | ARy ss9) @ podsuer sggnd ajges
E@R0s jUodsuel] AJUNWLYT - SDUELLSD Buwueid | oo asow w Fs0U Aysuap pue wogemnded pue Aypgissssoe  Jay  suocgesidun [
SSEI0E [AN3] MO O} SESUCds3N SAJEADUL] podsuesy pue 35N pUE| Uc AYEI0GE|I0D L | Jop sseooe panceduy | @ suosuedwos EEp snsURD e | aney swaped Juswspgaes peaadag | pueg
SAPUNLILICD panudap
swsys Buueys J1e] SajEM ||B 2521100 wauy asoy 108
SpUelLBp S5300e sued | AEioadsa aogyiom
[As Mol o sEsuDdsal angEAOUU) [anen dopeap o) sbodwa abeinooug ¢ | peqiys AjBuiseasou
SIAUDS FEL SO SNG PISEAUIULMBN siswEg anpa | ue woddns ANGIEIYE 53| pUE X3dwon
Aaijod uopELLC) JUBISISUOD pwe ucqeLLDpE apiaoad o ruwdn suiEpnel] | pue AJALOE DILUDUCOR e auow ‘Apson asow shawnol Buiyew
PUED) FRELL SRER, IY pue suojessdo podsuen oygnd s pops T | peEsESEU aEppoe; | Wodsuen Jjgnd woy ¥IEQPS34 e | sduy sopessdo pw pue sBueyousmul
spuswabuewe Bunyan pejesbai) Gugayay | o3 Buues pue sgol UoOEUUGIUl SoEl3wl] o« | saanbay s3I5 uwhgdws
IUSTOEASD LB [3WE] | p=jeabaiu dopasp of diyseuped u o L | 01 ss320e pancadug sdew yowgau erpuesng s | o) ssacoE uodsuen  ogngd £
SOUDHITM
Bumsen | pays  ABuiseasaul
DUE YoM 55320F o) séawnol 1o) suogngos | ue woddns
#wayos Buueys JeD SIIE M || 2521190 aalesoull dopaap o) seuled Y pop e | pue AJALDE DILUDUCOR
UBLWHOREASE LB [SREL)L SEIN USUM SSOINSS | DSSEIIUI SEPpEIE]
Azijod uopEULoU) JUSGSISUOT) pwe ucgeuuops apaoad of ruwdy suiEner] | o snoy  Gunpowm Bl UEg 1@gew qol Gog LT
uodsuen pue sumpersdo podsuen oggnd Y yop 7 | Euou  jo apsino | [PAEIL WOl SUSDIAG RISy e | aip Ag pepuope saqunpoddo  au)
Ayunuauco  Buipnppul spuewsp  ssaooe wEwdoEaap ueld Erer] uo suogesiuefio | Buwen  pue  sqgol uonEuLGUl SpgElEwl] « | Buissaooe fynowp o spes| podsuen
e mo] o) sosuodsal  angEAoUY] e | sojoes pug pue sjesud toggnd we wops L | o1 ssesoe  pancsdug SUEW Yionga IEJpUE SNE = | oygnd pusyaem pue Buiuass pauwn T
wajsAs Buueys Je7 saepy Iy @551and
SuogEX PEUOLILDL 3IE S530IE UD o aio
Euuenom  puE  SUILIMES ARG suoiedige waswos Buivwerd fue aunsug g NS yers safojduiz
Jayaq o) 5301Asas sng pue s 3esBagy) ] o .m._nms. AISYM SBAINES SESUE
uodsuen PUE UDNEULoY SpAod 01 MULEAD SUIBREL] yraosl  Busnoy  yum  paule sapunuoddo
Ayunuauca Buipnipul spUBWSEp  S53208 pue siopEssdo podsuen oqgnd ypm SLoRL b ou seae el usudopws . qol ssaxoe o) sabuo) Jog pue Jayuny
[ensy mo] o sssuodsal  angesoul] e WSUEOEASD UBld [BAEI] UD suoqesiuefio BOUDUYIOM SUIISSISSE [BRNEN 01 PESU SIED UBM 8S0U)
Aanod UDNEUNGW] WEISISUOD  # | ogsse oy pue sseasd sgand . siopne | pEgys ABusesssu | BuivuEd Aupqiss=esy o | canumundds Buen pue qol Swos
swawdaEnEn SIPOLI [SAEL SAGOE PUE podsuer ognd | ue woddns seyses golo shanms e | pow papmiors ag Aew podsuen
soy wswawbe g0 ved se Buuuely |SAE1L  * | poddns og asay) ss)s weunsaau afsEns | pue Ayanoe Swwouooe EjEp diyssaume 1B o | meaud o) ssacoe nounm apdosd
WELWdoEAaP Jo poddns 0} ping pEM MaU pEuM 7 | peESESEU SEPEIE] uonesudap jo xapu| d3NW = | snuy pue podsuen oipgnd A pawas
HE]S JE W J|INg 20 0] SN0 [BAEL SR Buued | o Bumuen puE UCHJELLLAOYLI 3 qEj2LLm) o | Apood =g Aew saps uawdodws | || pue
sa0uas sng Aousnbay paseasnuimap e | podsuen pue asn pue wo apesoge|og] | sgol @ ssaste poog SOELL YIOMBU I pUE SNE » | auuso o Jno pauweld pue Bugsieg t 'l
SLU02IN0
paunbal uonay uonuaAIUl [2A3] UBIH p=41s=0g =JU=plAd SNS5]AU=q014 lal

s1oeloid pue asuodsay 21Ba1e11s ‘sanss| Usamlaq yull — oMl ajgel

Page 124



woddns 0 saunseaw aeudosdde Jana0

skawnol wlay EY)Ioe) wilma ABzqens wbieuy saEp, sy poddng ¢ uoiBas gy
SAEIEY 3nauduul ol s UL I SUopN Syul| peot yung wou :BaEns | v sugsaME  puEsMU renay ABiens whimg
sals Bwdo@nap Bunsies o) sabueys so JuswdoEasp mau Aue | suow CanBesncoua uonEYnsLaD
aifzpens pue spod o ssaxe f|enadss w sapyaa By o spasu s sepisuon T | pUE ssausng oy | UBld uodsuer) [euaifiay seopuweod AemyBny wbaens
PUE YIOMSU PEG) Jund) O} SjusuEnosdu uvoisiaoud u) sdefl [eogus stusiap | siso0 Buisnpay sssaoe sdnoufi Ay Jo Jequnu e uo 3enbspew
dogansp pue ueyd of oy A WO, = | 0 WHIMS puE OpA yum amsogeqon ) | jybisy panooduy | Jasn el woy wyoegpesy e | sspiyEs  pufiey  gop  uoisinosg £l
sAEEp NPl o)
sjuSWEAcsdLLE ¥uIp Jo uogaun] pasEs N0
Sas aply pue yre pue
aleys pue yied '‘Buueys seo aBemooug syun Asng uo pue
SIADE FFREL LM S3IN00 suogounl £33 B sjuswanosdus pagafue; Ag | wowmgsu peos mbaens
peisabuos ue Buiubes pancedun dojzaag » | sacunosau Bunsma o asn jsaq oyl ¥EW © | =W 1o ApgeER
suonesiuvefio Buueys Jea wo paen aaoe | sus; fswnal pue sharns Aqenss awg Aswnor “spoal pue sgdoad J0 USSR B
sopoes g pue spenud topgnd s abeincous 0y siafodws B yum yeop T | Aousiga  pESESEIU] JED o) ApgeEnsy swny Aswnol paonpsu
ul wawdopnap wed |aeen sfemotug sueday Aousfiswa 4q | Ag apew sAawncd jo woquodouy s | pue  sawg  Aawnol  Buiseasou
pajEpdn o A3 Sonpss o) powgsu oifsiens | psioRigE  quausaAUl usgsabuoo Rl UETH AeEsayBig fimEens
AUE SUE| 4 Wewsbeuey 1essy aunsug « | 3y o scususpeEw Jenbs pue angoemld | | puesas o spea) seybiy | womgau fesyBay ofaens e |8y wo  uogsabuoco pesEaRIg) Zl
suonesiuedio
mpes pg pue apeasd Cougnd Bupnuauos spgewE)sns Ao
u wawdopnsp werd |@een sfemosuy ¢ | aBeunoous o siadoidws BB Y oA S sanss| ApEnb SEQMUSS
abeiois ssagogo scopno séawnol | me  pue  wogsabuoo sng [eoo) o Appgein 3y Buiseausa
fBunped spfc> se yons  aningseyw [BAER SARIE JO] SIP)DEL YL PUE 0 SJESUSY | SONpsU o) pue uailizu sniy “podsuen oggnd Buisn Ag o
[BhER SAIE DLW sfemooug o | oy aowosd o) diyseuwed wowopy 7 | Buagem pue ygesy | Y W SABMNS WSREd [SABIL + | sapow [RARN anoR AQ USYELSQUN
SAQUNLALOD US3MI3Y DUE W SIS ssoqessush owen Aoy oy seqnou Bupado pue | anosdw) diEy o) ERER Elep 2] PNCY DUE WHG UELL 553 UE 1]}
[BREN SMWIDE FBAIED pUE do@EAsp UEL] Burgies 1ayaq pue auow doj@nsp pue weld ') | AN w sssesey] | mds Epow pue jeom op [BeEr] s | sdug Bunnuewoo jo vomsodosd yBiyy | pue g
sAawmal
spewdoudde w0y [Ereq aagce aBemoosug
poddns dnaugy Asosiapyr
podsuen oggnd sop  suoneso|e  Jead Aoijod sng [ SEISIUY Sy A0 DEPUSLLILLGIEL
g0 ¢ o Buunaas uo S YyIM PO+ | se podsuen opgnd  Jog woddns  sopnes | s3mUnWWsD paasdap
SICEISAD USSWIS] PUE |IE) PUE SN agnd w AupgEs wes) ssbuo] sonpogu) g | Buwy  =sou oo
ssouoe quewsbueue Bunayon pageiBau) Bug=yeq Jojessdo pUE [Epow oW | 5oy Sspamoe Eoos | 9W U shauns weneg Eeed] Buiag-j=m g
apdo=d pafojdwsaunBunad pjeifizpn dopeap oy diysisuped wopopy 7 | pue sunss “ueIygEay s3|0e) el podseR Silgnd o« | yyesy Bulupsp puE uonEjR= O] pES|
a0y SpUEIMEWS yeomGuues Bamuenrysom 225 o) Bupaen padfodwsaun | 'Buneen “sgol UIBULQIU HAEIIAWI] e | uBD SHY| CSSMENWALGD 0 SISqWEW
oy Equaod Ayl wo opy yEs sopy s | o Bunod s ssge) ARRunissaoucD Sonpanul] | o1 sseooe  pancsduy Sdew yiowgsu IB1pue sng = | swos oy podsuen SQEIOYE Jo §IE] !
sued
Eren dognap o) sadodws aBeinocoug _m Buiaqg |Ee pue yyeay SRAPUNLLILCD 30 SISQUIELW
podswen funuwoes | w wswseoidw) we FgesEuns HNE0S LEW S| CBAED
Buprzu podsuern Joy sSpUuEwWSp [Ana] mo| 0 | Bugnsay sapow Eaesn siapirod podsuen fpunmunuo JED FEaud U0 SOUBIRL 3 FSESUDU
sWw=gos BuLeys 18D SIER IE 359N * | suognos snenoull wo sisuwed s o 7 | sace pue oggnd Ag | W04 TP [ElopIsUy PUE [BREQ O} SAEY SISSN SSOUEISID
podsues] ANUNWWS T SE YIS SPUEWSD safwey pasodoad | sampoe) ssed YuESY 0) UCOEULQIL SHEElRWl] o | sseasou o) AEy) SUE SUED WESY SE
S53I0E [BNE] MO O} SSSUCOS3) AMjEAOUL] s | o pauuepd s1 ssasoe poof aunsus | pue Bunwen pue sgol SOEwW Yiow=U |1 pUe SNE = | IS S30IUES A3y 40 (LOnESIRIUSD
sanmas sng fousnbay pasesuoumsy = | o) S30poq wiesy ywe diyssuped o pops | | o3 ss3coe panceduy suepd UCQEpOSUCD SHM puej LonEDo] w sabueys [+]
SN0
pausnbal uonay uonuaniiul jsa3] ybiH paJis=g 2Ju=pird SNS5|2|q0ld | 1=y

Page 125



"3 SROpLIDD
aeudoudde 1oy Segnd  pmel  ayeaun
0] seado pes pue sng afemooug

sjuawanoedun [exsfyd sy sswayos
Jo yed se osgE pue Buiuwerd Eaeq o ped
SE [BAEL 3MIDE Aol egowoud o opy

swawsEsnbay 1y au o ped

sE Suondo Podsuen 3jPEWE]SNS J0Wold §
sucido podswen

S|JEUIEISNS JO SSSUSUEBME 3SIEJ O] SUE|J
[paei] jo swdoEsap sy abeinooug g
sfawnal

[FRES SALIE J04 SIE|IDEY SU PUE 0 SJUSUSG
ay wowod of dyssuped w yom 7
sjewuny ajeudoudde Ul uope Lo

aoioya
SpOW [ERED S[EIA
[eal apimoud o) RBAED
Snoe pue  podsuen

HIYS FEpOLL O} JSLUET B S3|ERID pUE
S3SED AW0S W 100d suiewRl suondo

sainijod woneuwagu| AjEnk seunaoe Ayenk spinoud o) naufo suEees) | opgnd o AgEIEAE sdnouff 13N woy ¥oeqpaasd ¢ | paen aagoe pue wodsuen oggnd
pUE JUSSISUCD JUBWRdu pue doEeag e | pue sioqesado podsuen oiygnd g j0RY | | UCOEULOMU SSED JSN4 | UODEYNSUSD 4] WOy ¥IEQPSAY e« | INOJE UOHEWLOME Jo uoisinosd 3u) =
SA[EKY Ul SUQEIRdo 30IASS SNG paYsgElsS 20 0] suon|os podsuern SpUBLER mau poddns o) saowas
o sabueys (eaipes sonpoqu o) AEssaosu sdiysauped Ayenk moje 0y sweans Bupany | oggnd SJEUIELSNS SAITEASLLI [T Bunuawuadxa
simod 2moss Ol Of WM Wop e | sunoes so woiBas sy w Busipowey yomiau | pue SUDIFEASLILL 54 O SIOpERd0 Wy ¥OEqpaay PUE  SEMWAUES W Bamsanu)
dnasy moge o ssamod sop OAN U e yiops 7 | asow @ Gupea) | UOREYNSUCDT 47 Woy ¥xEqQpead e« | way siapisoud podsuen afieinaosip
fuosiapy £xjpod sng ayl Ag papuUSwWILInDSS yodsuen sygnd | ‘Joyses podsuen aagnd {#LEL) Aew Saly[ioey BampkoBuryem
se  wpoddns  wodsuen  oggnd gy sop poddns Jopas sggnd w Aupgels wes | By w souspmuoo | ABmEns womgay  EuociBay pue podsuen apgnd W jUBLLS3A
SUOREDD||E JE3A G U0 § J0L A YiMospony  » | seBuo) sy aunoas oy gan AU UM op | | Eruewiwes pesessoy) | 0 Wewdopasp woy ¥RQPI34 + | sojpes oggnd e SaqEpSOUn) I
Ell
0] siswmeq m:._u-w._“_u_”_ ssapuvoud
SINIES SIAUSS JIBU) UD S5300E I4-1\| 32 | PUE  UDQEULOME 0} 10 s13sn uo e Aew ABopouyosy A
1Byl U0 SBwaenbay SSE00E I4-IAK 33 Ul apmaosd o] sigesado podsuey afieincous 7 | suoanos jexbopuwgpa jo S500 3y) -afesmaoco puegpeosq
peng of si0jesado sng pue e afeanoouy e uoiBay Buipineud sood jo SERUE Ul 3|gEIN 39 10U ABW
puEgpeolq 3Yl S50UTE pUBQpPE] 0} 553008 jsEpadns | uoiBas s soy susisds abesn podsuenq oiggnd aBeuncoua
JSELRANS 40 N0 P08 BU} UD DAL UM HOM @ | 4000 ||od SUY) SUN3SS O} DAL 34 UM Yo (L | 11 o) 55900 wspgeoxg | UDIEYNSUOD 41 Wy ¥TEQPRAY ¢ | o) swewssaudwl  ExiBojouyos) gL
PUET) [SAEJL
S3EN IV UE SINPOQUIN OF SRR L SIORL Buaq gam pue
s3I AUBYS § Yed dojeag wodswen xpgnd Jog suondo Bugayon | yesy Jo spEAa| BReg
saiy|ioey sbueyossm panasdw) pue palefiaqu doprap o) dysisuped woypopy £ | @ pee  wvogsabuoo
swawsbuene Sugsyon el Jopusciess sfawnol podsuen agnd 1oy suogiawwod | s53| o) Dampiea)
w0 SIojEsRdo podsuer i o, . panosdun afemocavs o) sielado podswen | sfawnol pepow  gnw woifiau séawnol [EpOW BiNW SpgEUIEISNS
s=bueyoE Joy SpUEpUElS AJUNUWSs pue sng” Bl yusm mops 7 | 4o ped st jaseg angoe | A W sfawuns wageg jBeed] e | mow Buyew o JBWeg B S oSy
auwwexs o dnoug [euoifay ysiqes3 shawnal | ascw W ASEIEW pUE sdnouc sBsh) SEMUEISUl AWDS Ul 00d SUELWRI
spaaloxd Epow  opuu  ajEppoe; of safueysssqul | aBesn ses fouednooo | wodsues) oygng woy ¥pEqpea4 s | podsuer; 0 siepiosd | USSWGEQ
shuegn=iu spaEp pue dojsasp ueld * | pyodsuen amosdwn o0y Bupuny aumoeg | | abus W suogonpay UONEYNSUDT 4] Way ¥3eqpaad e | pur sapow usamiaq  uogeiBaqu) gl
SLONEDO| SUNSIE|
PUE  [EROS  “RED SRAPEILALCD
PUED) [SWEL] PESY OF SE |[BM SE panudsp  @ow oy Apenoped
S3ER IV UE S2NPOOUI 0L DAL LU SO0 sapgunpodde  Buiwen SUQZUOY [SAED SHUA] DUE  QIYS
sjuawabueue Buayon wwiol mplcoieso) wodsuen spgnd Jog suondo Gugayog | pue wawiodwa [EpOW o) J3wmeq B sajeass Bunayon
o siogesado podsuety yim o paeiBayn do@nep 0 dyseuped wwop 'L | o ssecoe  pancsdug sdnouf Jasn Wwow Yoeqpasy e | ssowess pue aQIssIooE o ¥oE ¥L
dnausy
Burpropy, wliauy jeuniBay e ysiqelsg oz
ping mau Aue jo ped se uogeado By EL
SN0
pannbal uonay uonuaAISIUI [2A3] ybiH p=1s20 =JU=pIihg =NS5|=2001d | =2y

Page 126



&oljod podswel) ysqug Jop

woddns SNy UNDES O DR YA 0NN
Rages

w ppng o ulisap WsgsIsUoD unNsug
suonEsa) uaisos ybiy o

swaLsncdw pageie) anEp pue ued

uoiBay 3

Ul IOAEU [ U0 30 Wodsuel] ysaug
Ul JUSILLS M JSUHNG Sundas o oR, 7
SISST PEQU S|qESUNA

s|iys asn peou poob aBeinoous puE yomawesl{ Aja)es pECY WO SNO0y pue S WOH SUSDNG [EloDIeUy BARD
pUE S53URIEME f3JES pEo anadu S3NS5 A3 J0 SSSUSIEME SSES 0] SISpiaoud podsuesn uoifiau aaoe 10 sfesn podsuen oggnd
o saunseaw Aongnd pue Buiwen podsuen pue sucgesiuefio pue sisowg | wgnd o [Eaeg aagoe | Y Wl SASMNS  Wageg [SARI] abeinoosip ues funoas peuosed
‘uoneangs yBnomg yeom o aNURUoD Ayajes peoy ypm diysssuped wypop, c| | Buisn ayes jpay apdoay | UONEYNSUDD d) 7 Wl §rEQpaay 10 AJ3JEs pEQS JBAD SLISDUGD £
HodsuEn
ANEgsEyUl Seudosdde aggnd  spEEMO]  WIYS
apinosd PUE SIDUEA PAJEN SALELWEYE suswdogEnap | Epow safieinoous
0 BN pUE JUSWdO[EAEP SUY) S0Wid [Bry  aanewsyE  Japsucn o] sdnouB | yows Buo
Buueys 1o apowsosd Bunpom 1o juswdopasp = poddng 7 | podsuen mgnd apgEls
o} uoiBa aup ssouoe diysisupe g oK), uodsuen | o} spesy  suoessdo @sn podsuen aqnd o Jsweq sjsoo
yoddns podsuern oignd sy aggnd 10y poddns soypes oggnd w Aypgers | podsuen  oygnd oy au aseauoul wes Ajddns aumny Jano
SUGIEI0|[E JERA G 30§ JOp ST IR PONN wes) s2fuc]  amoss o) opf Wil pop) L | Ss00 PR w Aupgeps | wonEnsuoD 4] way yeeqpaad SAJUIEREIUN pUE S}s00 [any Bursiy ZT
swaldo@EAsD
P U SSIAdRS I pUE SN Buiag-)am
ajeudosdde pUE [SRET) SAIFDE S)0UI0IY PUE Sy SaSEAUDU
pRUnuUOW 38 suwsaiie sy “Apngoe
Busweyd yo ped se suogefigo aumsug sjuawdo@Eaap Ajeudosdde sy ued | jaren o0 asooys
W LBoEASD 3UI &G papUng |2#Eq B apnjoul o} sisdofanap abeinoouz 7 | wen sapunucddo
SA[EIEL [BAEL SARIE pUE (Suswdo@Ensn Wi Ul go ped se suswdoEssp | amss|  pue E@Dos
Jafie) 108} sueld Ener) nbwuesw mau u Buippdo Joy sanioe) pue £q 55800 | AESY DUE UDIIEINPS
am3as o] suonealdde mau uo sanfea)oo FEnbape amsu= 0 sanBea)oo joguos | ‘Bueen "R sdnaug sesn 1S40 sjuawdojanap mau jo wed
Buuweyd yym diysuauped w jiop) juawdasaap pue Buuue|d g yopy | | Buissasoe apdoay | WOQEYNSUDD g 7 Wy yoEqRSa SE S2gI|108) J0 555008 3pie Jo yoe) 4
HOTSUED
abesogs saEpNoYsaouss speudodde wo syoel | aggnd yus psia|dwoo
S¥Iq FAEY PINOJPINOYS SHN0L 2000 UM apdo apmoud oy sumessdo sng &ggon 7 | sfawnol  sbuo)  aog sézawnol yphua) wnipaw o woys
SUWIRYEP 0] SICERd0 SN M XIoN suonels Je Bunped apdo paseasu | ing siswnol poys oy Buiyew won sisgafs  sabeinoosip
shawnal pren ange My pUE SUER WO pSWED 20 o) sapda | Auo oU 'SIpoW BREL shauns puE MO S Bunped  apdo
waddng o S30|DE) apaaid S3SIyDUEY aow oy woisiAud Sa apnpul SaSyDUEY | SANDE  AUDW SpUEmO) | JBSN 3INA) WAy ¥oRQpaad puy o} IO S3SNg pUE SURL UD sapoho
[IEJ M3 SUNSUS 0 S8 U3 LWk I0AN IE] M3U B 2UNSUS O DA YL WM 0N L | 1SYs [EpOW B S| BuSy)| | WONEYNSUDD 4| woy ¥Ieqpaay  + | Aueo o Appge sy Ul SIUsSpuuod 0z
uoiBas 3y W SuUSWESSAUL sana|
3{eos afue| uo g =g ypmopop . e pue  [ewnba
SIASN o) suoqdo anjoeqE uoifial | EUCHEUL JE S3WSUDS
apnoud pue JuRusyos aue wolbag sy u Ay mu shemaed solew o suswanosdw [EUOELLLIOSUET papuny =3 youueD
SHIOMIBU SNG PUE Bl S 2UNSu2 ) OAY  » | payu)  ybnomg  woibau = eusq | 0 sgeeaE a3q suawanmdw) Juesyuls fewsda
umBas 3y o ues suawnsaAu 3Ess aBmy o sweusq | of ss=oce Buiacudwn e ueaw Aew syaaloud seB6ig swos
shemaied panosdus rEp pue dopnag  « | a4 1B Aunsus o) seuped e yopy L | w WEugsany] | woneynsuoo 4] woy ¥reqpaad e | ul usugsasma Jojaes dagnd sl AL
202IN0
palinbai oy uofuaAI3)ul [3A3] YbiH p=2a1s2d SU=2pIrg 2Nssiauaiqold | f=ad

Page 127



27

28

29

210

211

212

Many of the actions required to address the issues cannot be delivered by the
local authorities in the City Region in isolation. This is because they are:

» Related to revenue expenditure and the LTP is the framework for capital
funding bids

« Helated to Trunk road development’ improvement. These are the
responsibility of the WG via the Trunk Road Agencies and framed by the
NTP priorities

» About the railway network/service improvements, where the Westminster
Government, Network Rail and Train Operating companies have roles
and responsibilities. Railways are not devolved to the WG, Network Rail is
the asset owner and operator and the UK Government is responsible for
specifying and awarding franchises including the Wales and Borders
franchise. Since 2006 the WG has been responsible for the management
of the Wales and Borders franchise

» About other responsibilities not devolved to Wales, such as ports and
shipping, air transport, road safety legislation, public tfransport regulations

The role of the City Region Authorities in respect of these actions is to continue
to work in partnership to secure specific improvements which support improved
connectivity in the region and thus facilitate achievement of the LTP vision and
objectives.

Rail Priorities

Rail provides a vital connection to, from and within the City Region area. It also
forms part of the TEMN in south Wales It is essential to not only European
connectivity but also for securing inward investment, growing and sustaining a
vibrant and entrepreneurial economy and promoting modal shift for medium and
longer distance joumeys.

The LTP five year aspirations for rail are:

» Improvement to rail services to, from and within the region including
services which connect the main east/west flows and also the north/south
corridor

» Improved access by rail and to rail

» Future proofing rail services in the region

Trunk Road Priorities

Trunk roads provide the main corridors by which people and goods move around
the City Region and form part of the TEN in South Wales. They are the life blood
of the region and essential to connect, sustain and grow local and regional
economies. Trunk roads also provide national and international connectivity and
support road based public transport connections to and from communities,
settlements and employment, training, health care and leisure facilities.

The LTP five aspirations for Trunk roads are:
» Completion of current commitments set out in the NTP

« Regional priorities for improvement which add value to LTP projects,
especially those linking to strategic development sites

Page 128



213

2.14

2.15

2.16

217

» Collaborative working commitments, especially but not confined to
meeting the Road Safety Framework targets and ATA requirements
» Trunking aspirations

Revenue Priorities

Revenue funding is essential to maximising connectivity in the City Region.
Revenue funding supports guality maintenance for roads, cycling and walking
routes and public transport interchanges. It supports vital bus or community
transport links where no viable commercial solution exists particulary (although
not exclusively) in rural areas. The Bus Policy Advisory Group recommendations
in relation to revenue support and stability for public and community transport
are endorsed by the region.

The LTP aspirations for revenue funding are:

» Protecting and growing existing connectivity services including the Traws
Cymru long distance coach network and innovative public transport
solutions

» Develop community transport services where appropriate to meet
demands for lower density flows

= Supporting behavioural change

 Raising the profile of sustainable modes

SealAir Priorities

Sea and Air modes provide critical gateways into the region from the UK, Europe
and beyond. There is considerable untapped capacity which could be used to
improve access for people and goods

The LTP aspirations for sea and air are:

* To maximise the cument potential of ports and airports in the region
To improve access to and from poris and airports
To collaborate on potential improvements which improve connectivity and
support multi modal access for goods and people

Summary

Achieving the WG priorities for action and supporting the City Region vision is as
much about the rail, trunk road and revenue priorities as it is about the LTP
programme. The best results will be delivered by a holistic approach to
improvements and the creation of a series of step changes in the accessibility
across the region. The alignment of the NTP and LTP in the region and the
identification of joint priorities for action will help to ensure the step change
approach can succeed and create a sustainable cycle of improved access. The
City Region LAs look forward to working with the WG on all these issues.

Page 129



3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

34

35

SECTION THREE - LTP PROGRAMME 2015 - 2020

The programme of projects for the next five years is set out in Tables Three to
Seven on the following pages. All proposed projects have been appraised and
prioritised as shown in Appendix F to the LTP. There has also been a process of
Peer Group “review” within and across the four Authorities to validate and add
value to the assessment process.

Programmes for each of the four Local Authorities are shown separately, but for
those few projects which are City Region priorties, which offer the opportunity to
transform access around South West Wales and support strategic development
sites a separate programme is shown on Table Three.

The LTP is not a bidding document. It sets out the objectives, strategy and
policies for improving connectivity in the City Region area and also includes a
number of schemes or projects which will help to deliver the LTP.

However, detailed explanations for each scheme are not included in the LTP.
That level of detail will be included in bids for Local Transport Funding to be
submitted on an annual basis.

Any new schemes or projects which arise during the 2015 — 2020 period will be
assessed against the LTP objectives, priortised using the methodology adopted
for the cumrent LTP schemes and subject to regional peer group review prior to
inclusion in the programme.

Page 130



ERTIT]

Spuny Buryem pue Buafo 'sqny abueyoisiul sjuswasosduwn uogounp 'saue| SNg palENpa apU g el
[Epdes v U sapnoul 2Wayls 24 "suonnguuod Jadoppas Yobnoay peasiyle 2q os[e pnos Buipuny yajew jo
‘1ax3 o JUNOLWE [EQUEISGNS B 1Byl pejedionue s1 ) pUE Uoningy o} swod sjuswdoeasp se siseq paseyd e uo
‘gl uonasg palsAlap 24 [[IM S3WaYIS 2] easuemS Jo fjunoD g AN Sul pue iouncs ybnosog Ajuno D jogiel
‘pun4y wod yiesp ylog fg pesiopus puE JUSWWSAOS YSi2AL Ul Ag pedojaasp SEM UIIYM JUSWSSISSY | SO009D
podsues] [EUCHERN podsuel] feps UBIGE4 SUY) Jo SSWONN0 UYL JSAISP (1M SWSYIS [[BISAD 3Y] "SUS Juswdosssp pue 1opLIoD
E207 | ooo'sz pue jeucibay | mbsiens B 81 yoigm Joplucs sy Buoe Apansauuod saoadwl o] Swsyas Juswee ninw sbie) s sy 14K ABan UBIIEY
‘pEOQJ YUND JS]S3UIUBY Ol E2SUEMS 2U) 1o ued SE olapue|] of Woamgau Aemybiy 2y un yu Koy
E apiaod [w SWaYIs S ‘a0qe 2w o] Jayung tsuepd ssauisng sjesodiod o] pue uejdisisew 1seg
SpuUBH S5O0 O} S23INUIUCD Oy J8W 2q pnos ssagosligo g wry sibsiens Absjens onuoucog
uoifey A0 Aeg Basuems "gLISLOT W Hels Guipuny pue ssunpaiold Aoiniels of 1slans -sejsion
Spuny ur uogounl  sfem g, syl 1e Aaes anoadun se ||am B (SNTJL) Wosmyap uesdoing suel)] sy jo ued
[epdes v 1 Y2Iym INOGEQUNCY SPUBH SS0ID GFY Ul 18 uonsabuod ases Im Y3yl "sqol goo'L Baa0 o
‘10u3 uoneaId Ul S1ENNoE) di2y s S 1SES PUE 1SES YUoU 2U) Woy S35 1883 SPUBY S80U7) O] 53308
D 12eap B Builugy SEISI09 10 ON 92FY O PEOY UoIT ¥2E|g Wol) pEoY YUl JWouci] au) jo 7 8seld
‘gl uonasg S}I0M LonESHIW [BJUSWUUDIALS PS]EIJOSSE PUB SHIOM UONEDOWLLIOIIE
‘puny ypa 1ayiebol o1e Buubis ‘Bunuyb “sbeuElp ‘syJomypEs pIlRIDoSSE UM (Syiomyoug ufjwl 1B sus peoy
yodsues ) |BuUCnER uswdoasp 0] ssa20e [enualod Buluwoy) peoy ucpon § peoy ssoubfusd pue peoy uc ¥oe|g YU 2Iouoag
207 | ooo'sk pue jeucibay | 12 suongounl yuw sB1S105) J0 OM 9285 O pEoY U0 ¥orjg wouy femabewe ajbuis jo fesmybing smap 990 SpUBH 8040
‘desp wg| A2rewrxcidde 1na e sspnpul uswubge auy Sexps s, sehias
spuny WSz pue sdigspiey Wil yps TUips (2300 WET]) SSUB| WISTTE X 7 SABY pinom peod psuued syl
[epded v -abpugyaeg
‘4043 ‘aps (QWNY) lodag usweuly Asep |BACY JoUUO) 24 1B 2]BUILLS) O] 1SSm SpEay peol 21
o) Ana WSt Jayy "wocy o) swubnge euczuoy wbens 8wl vogaanp AJaynos B Ul speay juswubie
2IMDUISEYU| ay] -=0pugylE|g puE UCISISIEAN, USSMISG STCRE 2yl Buoie Aempilu S0USWIWOD (M pEOJ SUY]
Aunuwe:sy “gale 24y ul vonelauaia syowond pue Juswdosasp
‘ggl uonres J2yuny a1eyIe) O} S830I8 Sulog-eas saosdun 0] pue pogd aSpugyoe|g to4 sinou Ayenb ybiy e
‘puny apirosd o) swe 2wayas 2 (T NS 18l) uBld Juawdoaas |B20T RUno Ty AJUNo D) SaysSyoquus sjuaLuaacudu
podsues] |[EUCHER 2y} w paprenbapes sucy ssudisiug AEMUSIEN, USAEH SUl UM B3B3 Jo Juswdosasp S8320Y
[z=len] 0os's pue euoibay | sy =ewpzel O Wod4 SOpugyoElg O sluswsacidun ss300E awog-ess pue Aemybiy msp) a0d abpugyaeg
aouedIIubS
[euoIIEL
£22IN0% (43) 10 jeuom Bal awep
Buipung 1800 leso awsayos Jo ucipdussag Y1 awsysg

uciBay Aun feg easuems auy) Joj s1oefold Alanosuuos [euoneLLIojsUR] — 33l 3|qel

Page 131



sedodion "417

(ubisap
pue An

pqiseay)
GLL

reuoifay

"L FSEU WO 10 SlySuSq Syl asEs Ang M 20Oy Su
suopaunl &=y 18 uonsaBuco Buma)au se e sE (ssuocy ssudisiug spusy ssoun
‘3u|) sERUE K3(|EA UBWWY PUE QUOJUBWWNY 13pis 3yl jo ucoessuabau onuouoos
u sisse e pue suswascsdw) fesmybiy sBsiens 000 0 5 dol, sy ow o=
{zHOvY) T 258Ud peoy Jopnguis] puojuewwy uonesjdde Bumwueld jo umssiwgns
o pea| Apuanbasgns |w (USHEYNSUDD HIgNd 13YE) SIN0Y PRUSaLd, JO UoNI3|3S
‘suoppucs puncul pue [emBojoos § pEwswucunus oy Bunes ssipnys Burdoos ew
Yy J3ebol (ssouak) § ouegiusd - vouulfiued - 13E0S ed) pEoY Joinguisig
PIUELLIWY SU) Jo § 3SEYd Jo uswdo|aasp ) esiesdde spnou ¢ pmc Aupgisesd

g ssEyd pEoy

10NGLUISK] PACYUELLILY

=elodiog
" 40W3 410

005'E

reuoiBay

Q145 L0Z uu weys sienudde essasau
pue Buipuny o 1oelgns posfoud suoz yaoug aue sspea B jo wed se uoiBay
Ann Aeg essusms uiyps s3s Juswiodws enusied Joy SUT SSEAL )0 HESH S
[Ul EISUEMS - USYUELLED UD S30IAUES 1B 0] 552008 panoudwn Buipiaoud uones
neuer] o apesbdn -papniow jou e ssopuss [EuonEsSd] CSIUSWLONAUS UORE]LS
40 AJIUEDIA Ul SHIOSA JUSLWSoUEYUS Eiaush pue ssecor uonels o sepeibdn sspnpow
osfy  CAJENIUI SIOPLIDT ESSUBMS - PUDJUELLWY PUE E3SUEMS - USUUEBLWLIED
Joy Ajuo uonnios paseq |0 SIOPLUCT SN SPUEH SSOUD - SUE[] pUE (spueq
ssoun 18 abueyousin meu Buipmioul) SpUEH SSOUD) - UOJUELLWY ESSUEMS -
‘PIMUEBLLWNY — O3PUET "ESSUEMS - USUUELLET) o] Sjuawaamdw] g /gL0g W Hes
Buipuny o1 1=fgne uoibBay Ao feg ESSUBMS Ul SSUUSD Uew uges uswsodws
pue saoiaas o) ssa0oe Bunsisse sny suonnjos uoneuwoyu) seBusssey paseq | 0|
pue “{Buigsey) sasng Jooy mo| 0] S58%0F ‘siEEYs mau Buipnpul auysusyueweD
uypss  siopwiony  sng uew o sjuswsaaduwn  BuwBuo o uopEnUgUoD

—safiueyassiu)

puE siopicn Hodsues)
BB ERE SUIYSUSYLELLED)

paieBusaam
=9 01 4043
417

005°E

reuoifay

UE|d ssauIsng Juawdo@as] JWoUo0] pue ueld JSISER anUaD UMo)]
RIQUELLWY SE [[3M SE 13W 24 pinom sanqoslgo g wry mBxens ABsens swouoog
uoifizy Ano feg essuems "g1/GLO0Z W UEls o equsod Bupuny pue stuswasoudun
uopoun! sog spEesosdde opy Buppmpw saunpsoouy Loimers o slgng (suen
pepfal]l | wEens puips) vogounl £33y e wonsabuco paonpal yuss 3|Ep UBWWY
saddn pue gy woy pue o ssaooe aacedw) oy suswsBueve lcyesfBuonounl map

(neplarng
PUIAA] SUmonIIsEyL)
uonessuabay

UL PIOJUE LI

syeaodion
'SUOENGUIUCD
JedoEas]
{417
punyg t_u_u_ SUEl] |E207

0054

reuoifay

"did MaU puE g WUSUND Ul pSpnpoul
51 JuaweE A3y SE pEoY YU SSPNIPUl YHUs jsug JuswdoEas USUUELLIED
1528 “sucqounl A=y 12 uonsabuoo jo JanRd se |3 sE Jaug Wwawdo@Eaag W pajiEIRp
SE USUUEULIED 1S3/ W SEUE [Enuapisa mau jueoyubis jo wewdo@asp moe
OSE | pEoy yu sispenbpesy OFS MBU JO SIS SE |BM SE S3US uswlodws
pue uogeanpa o) ssa00e Bumsoye Aussamun spieqg 1 Apuu) pue JUES WE
e sesu peoy 36300 o (310 oN3L) AemabEluED [BEND OFY LWOLY DEDY NUl| M3N

pEcy

HUIT 1S3 /A USYHEWIES

s82Inos
Buipung

(43)
1509

saueaubis
Jeuoneu
lo reuoiBag
‘lenon

fuoud

swsyss Jo uondussag

sSlIEN aWayss

0Z0Z — §L0Z S3WayYds [12Unod Ayunod allysuayiiewes — Ino4 a|qel

Page 132



4043 ‘417 osg Jeuoibayy B 4@ 'SWasAs ucneuuoyu “sapelBdn dojs Buipngum
aunjongseyu sy of Bunesd 1dsouco sSNgEDmg 10 SYDUET ISR JO USWSS [epdes SNOEIME
-Apms
Aqisesy [ERUl Ul pRYRUSp SE uopeluswsjdun o) yoeoudde peselyd stuswascudun
Jopuiony smg o) Bunjuny sinou sy Buole susWSMSs USSMSD SS300F HOQEUIEISNS
Buipuny N3 EqUSIod ayes Buisoudun pue uopoeipe Jopsin mau B Guneass se jam sE (USUyUELLIED
-smiodion 00LE — s - opspuey) f=sEen Awo] ssmo Buoe ssqpoe __m._..__.u:mu_._ﬁm PUE  SUODERE
N wsunol £3Y o SISY|EM pue 5151940 Jog s53008 paaoudw] AEmIEY Mo PUE 30USD
441 g weEunoW BIaug omiau SRAD |EUoQEN O} SyUl [EQUHOd YIBHIEL JE
jooyos AEpUCDSS MSU PUB N 30 "SaseD wimsig e g wgsug Asuse|Begy
'SIEAL J0 USpUED Duelog  [Fuonep  Cwnasnyy  mBssgy  C‘ogspue pue JOpLUDD
USyUELLED Jo sumo] ew syl Bupnpw suonoeme K3y o syun yum Aemaolo podsues] Kapep Awmo]
0E/8 L0 woy suonde pausyaud jo uonsmuawsiduwn pue ubisap
J3Ypn BAUE J|SUE[T JSPIM SY) Ul SSONIDE) AUBYS ' B J0 SpIY § e oy (s) aps
jenuscd Buinuam Apms |Sesed e Bugesodiosu uswsbueue moy epn sdwess
=euodion oy gELFY 2y Buope peuen o1 Aesuciow gy a3y woy sawn Lswnol Buonpay
" SUCMGLLIOD GTL'L reuoiBay I pue ss=00€ Bumosdwn o Bunejau Apms Aupgisesq [eqiu| 19w ag pinos AB=jens
JadopEasp “417 HWoUsDg S Jo 5wy xBsens jo ssanosige sy uwoibay Ao Aeg easuEms au
UL SUoF ypsosn A3y B S1 Yy ([Eue] jo equsijod swoucos s Burgoogun Any
o) Jaweq g ae sawn yead 18 uonsabuos Bugnsau pue sanss) Apeden uswWamEs auEys/apu pue yed
uequn ysafie] pug S3(EM 1SS YINoS wouy pue of Sino mBsens A3y B S| 2ELPY FEue Bunelodicow
Byl ‘SI[EM JO Sjoym 3w sawnjon swen sayby pag sy sey suysusyuEwIES | BUET] Ol SSS00Y BELEY
SIFEN PEC] ¥SU JEB|JEISUNA "AI3JES DEQ [EIN “S|00YIS
411 o051 e300 o puncue f13yES SSIUPPE O] PSSU SUYl PUE SHER Ul S3Wwnos sen saybiy pg agq
SEY SuysusyuEwIET ey oy 3y Busiuboosss swwesbod spim Aunog B s1 sy sleyoed f1sges peoy
awwelboug
SN0 [BAEL] SARDY
misens Aemsoln L3)En
uELwwWY ‘Swwelboud
‘ABsens wsumo ] oSy SIS UL 40 G sanosigo yum 1y Buons afeyun pioyuswwry
417 05SE'T fe20 g ‘uoibfizy Apo feg essuemsc Ag pauspisuco swwesbosd Enu w papnpu soeloug 'SEN0I pRpUEL]
Mg [EAEl] A0Sy OpR W pauuyuco shemaiofo o) Buneps uogeBiygo Aommers usypeuwEes swwelboud
‘sapfysay) Ayeay pue wsuno} sBeunoous o1 B SE S30AISS IS0 PUE UONEDINPS sabeyu sue]
wawliopdws o1 ssso0e aacudwn o yJowgsp SA0 |EUORER SY PUE  SENoJU :Bunpngouw
wawdopdws anysuayueuwes “fesmajoda Aajen uswwy ay se yons saBeyun ‘safeyur) Bupdo pue
Bupfo g Bumyeps jo pomsu sasusysudwos B oo uswdo@Asp peEnUlUSD Buryieps anysusyuenUE D)
saueagubis
leucneu
s82Ino0s (%3) lo [euciBal
ﬂ_.__ﬂ.__._:u_ 150D n_ﬂ.._..co_l_ _-A._._hﬂ__._.n— SW3Y25 JO -__ﬂ_-_n__.—uﬂﬂﬂ SWEN =lU3Y25

Page 133



aetodios ‘417

ufijasp
puE :
Aunarsesy)
052

|jeac

ch

passauppe 24 o) paeu siuswsbueue ssauBajssaooe puepuElsgns JUALIND
3 “SIY] ¥2OUN 0] JSPIO Ul PUE 404 Jo Eenusicd snwouooss sy nopdss pue puedss
o [esodoud solew e s auay) (d0d) wed Aunog fsuqusd saedss AQUSIIND YUy
afpug e saa0 peo sue| 3Bus Bunsxs sy spesbdnyaoeiday o] SWSYIs B S151Y)

yed Agunos
falguiad o) 55230y

417

0ss

|jeac

ki

SSNOU [BAES BMEUIEISNS panuss uswlodws
‘syord spofo “suswasscudun sbueyousul ‘sswoz swoy paeliel ‘sumongseygu
Bulueys a3 spmpou few ysys swweaboud  epdes uso]  usyuewues
015 PRpUnE SAN S Woy s3wooino sapsod suyy ino Buou sepmpul swsyos sy

sanuag
[oABI] S[gEUIRIENS

yodsues |
10y Juswpedsg
‘4043 ‘417

0oo'L

JeuoiBayy

oL

“jiom o sEosd asau
woy GuisuE SUOREPUSLLLLIOISS SU) PIEAID) SHE] PINOM SWSYDS syl SuUnsas pue
fzges Kupgisssone “sBueyousiw o sanss syl o) suoconios (equsied BupeBnssau
USHELSPUN US3q SAEY SHPMS J0 JSqUnu ¢ Jsyo podsuen Aoloejsnes UEy S53| 8
o Buipes| saqoe) piEpUEISqQNS pue APIQISSS00E JO SULS] Ul PRIBYNS SEY ESIE SIU]
AEreunuoyun “Kupoey (ped) spu pue ywed B pue SSIN0J SNG [BEUSWLWCD £3Y "UORELS
Aemies sumo) sy Buipnpu sapow jo Jsqunu e usawgag 2Busyossiu podsuen
Joy yuod [esoy K39 B SUE IIBUE 0 SESUE pROoy syosmssddon/peoyd uonels Su)

abueyssau| podsues)
pajelbagul aue|]

$82In0S
Buipung

(%3)
150D

aaueaubis
[euoneu
Jo [euoiBau
‘leanT

fuongd

awayas Jo uondussaa

BWEN 3WaYss

Page 134



wawsbeusw pue ucnonpas paads syen Buipniow ‘siENWWCD

=SS
wawfodws misiens pue

417 sUERsnS ooz el g Joy vonesBau pue fages o) sIuswasoudun apisinogiey “Be saus wawlodws [UUSD UMD} 109|E] Lo
oifi31ens Y syu| pue 1oq[E | Hod ueqin ul sfem uewsspad pue sja80 DUl SSINCY [SRED SARDY
1043 417 000°0 - 8 uonessusba w._E.m.n_ uANO} Em.m..f suawsdwon “uwonessdo pue woneiBau vodsuen BUSD :.,_.._u._. yrEsy
signd sscudun o BNUST UMOL PUE UODEIS AEMJIE] O] JSSOR UDRE]S SNG SPIMOULS 10§ UDHELS SNQ PREDIOIFY
uanzunf JEau
417 09 [euoiBay 8 . 8% tagaun B
FIN FUL uD suspmwwoD oy weBuep w gy wo 3YS AUBYS PUE WEJ 10 UDISIAGY SV UD SUS MEYS T EH
uononpal paads oyen ‘s=no Bupfo pue Guiyiem Jayes Guipnpowm
o05d ‘411 o0n's a0 g sawsyss Mages peol Japm s sisbien osje 3y Csjoouyos punoue uswsBeusw
oyEen pHEIR0OsSSE pue ssuocz ydwpg o o o3 swwesBosd spes funoog sleyoed fAaes peoy
"PESIER =0 0 3Py pUE YEd =Ry puE
441 ooz reuaibay 5 Jo [enusiod ry Sjgeus ol uopEls AEmyiEd Joge] Wwod e Bunped jo uonsidwon | yed — Aemyied 109)E] Lod
sndwe] feg pue femyieq
417 051 [euoiGay g fepp uelge4 Lo sNdWwED AUSISAILN MEU 3 PUE LUONELS AEMYIEY J0G(E L 1008 ] HO4 usamniadg
Vo4 USSMES] SIn0d uo swn Aswnol sonpas o siuswsacedun sopuwod sng Auoud Jopwos fuoud sng
417 “(dISH) B
ey fpim.m? o0g [euoiBay t ‘uogessuaban aguao umoy yesy stuswsdwog CsSp0E) UCHES WESH O] SS300E
) asnuspow pue uoqesfsyn podswen ongnd JEPSq SgEUs O SUSWSAOsdL) a1 o spuswanosdi)
1043 417 0001 [euoiBay e . P uonEls Jamo) uo 3Bueyassim ..._._.w:. ElN H_..._.wEm_.n_ ..:_u.n. 0} UCHE}S SNg :_u_u.ﬂm sng oge ]
joqe ] pod e uoisiwoud uchewdoyu pue sfew ‘samoe) "SsE00E O SIUSWSAOsdLL| Hod JO JUSIYsIgInEY
LN EEEEED
ESSUEMST O] YIES N .
eSO Jogqe L vod .
joqEL
417 oL reuociBay z uod 01 webiepy -
EISLUEMST
“53Us Wswlopdws o] Jaq|e ] pod -
oiBspens pue SBQIUSWE ‘SSQIUNWWIoD usasaq Aajossuucs pascudun aposd oy ae
siopwes sng 2ifsens uo uogewloyw pue saquoud sng ‘saqEE) 0 SusWEAoedw) | sluswsncudw JopLLoD sng
4043
‘szoe|d 3pgE ] =g
._.._E_u_._._.__n_n_._..ﬂ.n.. oooy [E=e ; sAzwnol pageBayw Joy sanunpoddo paaosdu spusoud abueyoszqu)
) i 0] UORE}S WER Jng=d o3 Jusoelpe Aupoey sBueyausiul IBS pUE SNG MSU JO UDISIMGUS [EpOy 10gEL Hod
saueaubis
|eucnieu
$82In0% (43) | Jo jeuoibal
Buipun4 15090 ‘leaon Muoud awsyss Jo uonduasag SlWeN awayas

0202 — §10Z Sawayas [1ounoe) ybnolog Auno) joqel Hod UieaN — aAld 3|qeL

Page 135



“siy} Spelcdicou (e suswaacadun Aue os aul) urew
Syl Jo uoQEIUIDSE Joy pasiel 29 o) A3y 51 3Bpug syl -Burgoss 1ou sy USUs

1891 411 oot reuoiBay v p=|gesip Jog anoiap Buop e Bupepsssosu ‘ssaocoe aoy sy uo saEd ) SwS(goud sdwel ssas0e Jo uorsiaosd
Buidass usiBene00s Woy SISYNS PUE UIFUIELL OF SAISUSONS 51 SQUS0 UMDY SUL pue aBpuqiony peoy
puE uonEls wen sy yed Jeo py pue|y usesaq yu uemsapad Juepoduwn sig) PUBRIRY 40 IUSWISIgUngs

. . iEap

1897 40 oo [E== w WPESH T GO S WY yul| [EIUSSSS SI) 40 aunsop uaased oy sBuuesq soejdey ‘aBpug yur waynosg

wawdoaap

4043 "411 oon'E Lz ] il pediogue SEpowwosoe ol (0] 26815 4OJd) SPISINOQUEH PUE DEOY WOMELLA) spusuancadun foedes —

LT HY usamag AE A, UUOUQISH UD SINCOQEpUNO 3y o) suswsaoidun fioeden | jogel pod CAEp uuouqpsH

SUELST

“JONs .n_w_.n_ ook ez Gl LET[)
- 1oqe] Hod wauy es) AsfEs, Uefy U9 0} SIUSLUSOUELUS JSULIN S LBy — SSNCY [SAED] SALDY
uEnS cuciBe BNYSUSLELLIED WiM UOREIDGE]| D
411 =N oos ! o=y Bl Ul [[RJufjwm pUE UBewflg usemlaq QN [BAE] SA02E Jo uogadwon Kemapoho As|ep, uewwy
417 ool e . uoisinoud UoEWLOIL PUE SSS008 WES R Ul SSQIIDE) pUE
pEjQEesIp J0g SpUEpUEls wispow of dn Buwg oy sdoys sng peiosEs o] suswanoddw) | sdos sng oy spuSwanosdiu]
117 00z R m "SIFNWIWeD Joy sjuswanosdun A24Es puUE UCQES O SS300E yreapn
Buipnow &uss usmal ylesp w ssina 3[ofo pue uewsapad o] sjuswsnosdu) Ul SSN0U [SRED SALDY
417 0sE e il snou [aaen asgoe ses Buipnpou (aseyd _u.N__ [2OYDs SPEUPUES Maul sjuawaacddu
pue e d LBusug uejBeq © eaue Aus4 uoug Buiyuy Sinos ayes 0] sJUSLEAOEdW| peEou yulp fus4 usiug
JUBLLILLISADS) . ———
ysop adopasg | D00 [euniBay al USRIUN GEEYEN
wawdojasap fang,q paco 3jgeul wowy LoUEpUE] O S5300%
. KEpn usIge £ pecu
_u m : =3
1=eEEd oooL fEuBlEEy £l uo uswdoEasp JWoucod 1S1sse of K2 p, uBgES of Loy 0 PO Wwoy jul| peoy | yur] wewygnog Aouy,g pIog
117 OIS SPIBUPUES SUCNELS AUS4 uojug pue
R —— ooE Lz | £l M3uU 3y pue aps wawlodws wey ABisug uebeq o ssacoe paieiBaqul Joy 3sn uejBeqg jo uonowoud pue
: Jnay sowosd oy suonels Lus4 uojug pue uejBeg 12 sagyoes Jayo pue abueyassu) 552008 o) spuswanosdiu]
417 ool - el podsuen SUnwwoD Yis uosier w isaps Juswlodws sjUSWEACIdW JopLIoD
oifisiens pue seaue pabeluespesip usawgag YW SN aamdw) pUE MalASY sng Auoud yuy £3)ep
. . -aBpug pa1mnsas ybiea Buiploae siuawamas Aajes pue
18217410 oo el i Bimuoouf|s jo sabe|pa o) sayan Japo pue sasng o) SS90 0 SUSWSAO L) uoistanp aBpug Jawdo
417 pue 4aN3 SSRISISNIUN [EDC] B Ul JuFWdo@Asp PUE YIJEISAU YW PEIEIDOSSE
.mm_.__m._m_..__,_uj ooz [EUCREN i} Abojouyze) vodsuen uaboupdy Jo wawdoasap BuicBuo sy Wwawsdwoo
- : o} Jopuwlos iy 3 Buoje suones Bugeny waBoupdy Jo uswdoaasp pUE UDISIACIZ femybig uaboupdy 2y
saueaiubBis
leuolieu
£32IN0s (¥3) | JoeuociBai
Buipund 1509 ‘leao Muoud awayss Jo uondussag IweN awayoss

Page 136



“FibY AQ paianas

441 oos rE=e ' DUIUSD WMD) PUE BSUE AIUSWE pue AUUNWUWoD US3MS] jul) 2|240 pue uelgsapad U] SMERIEILD
" ] i3
4L7 susnsng oo% reuBbEd oe omap 380 eucne o ued se yiedao] [eues Buisieuusy pue Buuspigy N 328D |EUED YIESH
ad FiFY PH
AL7 seEEnsg oo¥ reee z swdojassp 3|geus pue wonsabuoo aasnal o UaWEAndW pEOY UnHOpEDPY Wap-A-uag
yieap w Aupgensa yieap
41 D5 rE=e sz sng paacsdwl I|gEUs O] SUSWSACMW JOUW PUE SISPUD DIYEN JO WOISIASY u sajnou sng o saBueyn
LiEsp
JadojEasd 417 oog' L feso Iz “sE0lAsEs 5N Gundrusip pue uswdo@EAsp DIWCUDDS “syuswsacsdu uooun]
Buuensuos fpuauns “yeay w uvogoun! vonsabuoco wesyubis jo uonEloEWY P PUE[SED JPY BLID
F . . FETN wed Afrsug uejBeg
4053 417 ooooL [FUSREN 5T peoyes wbisy asesuoun o ywed ABrmug ueeg wuo SSU) |IEJ JUEPUNPR JO SSN-3Y 1 Aoy saysuely wybemay
LEsp ul
4171 ool ] G -uonessuaban anuao umo suewsdweos tuopelado sieubis pue jJuswabBeusw
oiyen pue uonessdo sng Jensq S|geus ol yesl ul juswsbeusw oyen anoeduw) DIEL] JO MIASY
saueayubis
jeucneu
s32Inos (¥3) | JoeuociBas
U_.__ﬂ._.__.-u_ 150D n_Nn".ﬂl_ btﬂtn_ SIS JO _.._O_E_.—umﬂﬁ_ SlUEN aWslY2S

Page 137



PE0Y qunil ose |BUChEN z pECs jurng dns shjuay
‘ayesodion ‘oan :
= spiony “Boysue4 aupula4 pue waasp “nemBufm e osje syul CZENDOMN JO UEY I=se D o} podsmap
. a0pug
ayeundios ' BuonE = dns a0p
! 241 0o _ 12N ¢ peou-uo dasis Aan splony CZE MOM J0) SIN0U B34 MYEnD SISSI00E NeysEsysy | UApSUIID o) Jasyafue]
. . Fnoy dns
=Eiedio) "417 0s¥ [EUOHEN L peou-uo dams s SpIoAY T8/ F NON J0) SIN0U 534 JYED S|QISSE00E NEEIUM Jaeyofue] o prenbysiy
pECY junil
1D ‘00 uonaeg GIE [euoifay i aNUaD) SUDjSaN|g puE el ELLTETT )
serediod "417 SNYSIHUGUS L "WON Y Buiyu) sumo 3 usamiag nal Buiafog Buiyiesy 31es | YUSQUEN Of ISSMPICLISAEH
Guipuad gt
MM SE UCHEMISSED —
. mm”_uw_ x_.:.__””_.__._._. - . saue| Jainb jo asn 3[B(Q / SIFEWYS| 15 O pUE
..__r. 001 ..uu.mr. 00&'1 ISUCREN L [yl pUE SUPNIIPRIW JEaU uaseH Apues 1o BuissouD B SIENSS3I00U A JUI| WSISaM | USISUYOT 01 USAEH PO
aescdio:
¥ 241 BY] UCISPUENGEH ElA SIBEWYS| )5 0] USAWEH RIGpy WOy PUE (SampIopsaey woy (sdns Bupnjzaun)
o} uasEH pioyy woy nou Bupds ages jo suonoas peuy apinosd  ppg | @Inoy sk jo vonapdwen
{yooy) s=ano SEMPUDHEAEH
..tm.w: .m.w_En.E._uu W.n_._.n_ 00E ez 1 Yooy 01 s50uD) suosdwns pue ‘ssoeD quodad ol 36pug quood “31 1sam o yul (dNs) wed
' -ypou 2U) 0 sapUnWWos Yy usol Buyu gns jo suonoses Bussiw ssdwoo o] 35 PRIEYS 158M-YUoN
I TuoiBipauag s diysisuped
S .H_m_n _w__..__u_.h_.wn. - 2007 s u) spewbBog 15 pue jooysispunes ¢ Agua] yD0Q SNUQWRY CINouqay
.MFEOEOU_ .|.7_ = ‘puElfan CuSAEH  PIOYIN WOISUYOr  UUSUEN ISSMDICUSAEH  'NIIMPOOS)
= 5w mpenbysi4 1® sseowd uopgeynsuco yBnomp dn powlom ag O] SEWAYDS | SIWSYDS 10V [BAEL] SAL0Y
=R uaWdo@asp JIW0U0IS SEY|IDE) 0) YoASU uodsuEn (5200 2|QELIEISNS
o0 “o0) venses oos't o =1 s umoy funos sy Bumoudwn 1oy uejdisisep 1ssmpuonaaEy 33 jo wed se ssnou pUE Supenm Jrg jun)
“Fescdies "417 yed =sn paueys pue sng Bupnmipul AARSSUUCD SUUSD WOl OF SIUSWSacsdu) ue|dizsep ISSMpIoUSAEH
1D 001 uonoas . eo0 SuaWwaACIdWI SPISUSICIUUS3IS PUE "pEOY YU S[3MUspIER
‘spescdiog f417 ooLe feao £ i Spnod yo uons|dwos Suswsoueyus Jopwos sus ABisug o 1sodisBuy ysen :noy wBxEns waynos
R T “SpInE] 35 W Aqissacoe 31280 pue figyes wewsapad aaoudun [peoy
qkﬂEWm..ﬁuU F“n_._.n_. ose e = oy funpoddo ue apvosd e siy) cssedfg B owuoy pnom Yyorym peoy ulyse)s ufyse|o) 1osloug sssooy
= Bunspta syl saue| ome o) Buwspm £ SplREQ 1S J0 SNUSD Y] 10§ J3E0 DEL] BQEUIEISNS SPIAE]] 15
. T “amangseyu podsuen wgnd o) SJUSWSIUEYUS PUE SJusSAcudun jucd eooy sng Buipnpour
J_PWEW_HOHV nw_hn_. oos'lL oo z fzges ‘uoiswoud ped asn-paseys pue fesgooy Spmpul e poas poenBysig sjuswanoedw] s5500y
= Jo anuas sy w wod eoog sng pue waisds Kem AUD B 3|QEUS O] pEOJ julrl anguag umo] prenbysiy
©) AR SENIUNWILLIDT "SSYUNLUWCD Ul SN0 3JES LM abeyoed
Ul sEInoY ES 005+ ez 1 sayieboy saunseaw jpuoneonps pue BuusawBus jo vogonponw 3 yBnouy ssesn SBUNWILLCT Ul S3No
el fiayes peoy pecy ||B soy SUswuonaUS Jayes Buipweoud 18 pawie swweiBoud spe funog Ees pue fjses peoy
soueayiubis
|[euoieu
s22Inos (43) | 4o jeuoiBau
U_.__ﬂ_._._:u_ 150D ._Nnvﬂl_ _.m.._._LD_En- allayag jo —__O_E_hﬂmﬂn— ILeN WaYyag

0Z0Z — S510Z Sawayads [19unod AJunod allysayoiquiad — XIS ajqel

Page 138



D g0 uenoesg

{
2U0Ys Waypou) suoy asudislug AERUSIE ) USAEH S LILIM

aeaodion 41 ooe'od [euoifiay ¥z SEEJE uonessusbeu 01 J by SUL BN OMISN PEOY NUML] QFO0FYI0RY 241 useamag
Apanoauuos Kesmybiy anosdun pue aplaocud o) umsimepy o 2Bepn ay Jo ssedég ssedig uosIETE A

"ERUE 3L} O SI0NSIA

i \ pue sieso| Bumususq sisgofs pue suelgsspad aog ANIDE] B OSIEPOWLLODISE O
siesodio "1 DsE Feo] ET os[E ng Aupqisia aacudwn o3 Auc jJoU SQENISSP PRISPISUDD SI SWaYos wawubneas GJ0FY uawanoadu)
JoUI SIY|  INOQEpUncS SUcisan|g S0 o yuou isnl pspeso) 51 2Bpug asnoyma abpug ssnoymap)
=1ei0dion “417 oogL - -z . mEqum UOESIVEL]SSpa4 PUE SpiY § WEd 3 of sjuswdo@nap poalol 4
yuny Bupniouw umor W UIgUM puUE O} SS820F  3gEUEISNS aacudun o) | sss00y apgEuEsng Aqus)
. ] ] WEL |[E18d PESH SUSAEH PUNCUE SYUI| 35N pRJEYS pUE UELSapad abueyusu) podsuel]
stesodiod *417 ooe'w [euoifiay iz pancuduwn Buwpnpow sbueysin elsng USARH pICY ©] SSS00E  pancudu) H|and UsnEH paogi
1O0SS SEALd , ‘BUoy asudisiug FENISIE g, USAEH uoIsuap g
‘apesodion 4] ooLz [EUCREN oz ayl o wed se uogesauabau poddns o segoe; BuipesBdn pue fesuny Buipuspeg poding 1SampIopase H

1055 SEALd ~adoun3 jo 158 Sy pue
Mo ‘B0l vonses ooo'oL [euoBay Al PUEEJ] "HOoMIEU | ML S 0F syl anosdw pue vopesausbag snoqey pienbysiy jusdo|aszg
=l 1T Ry | poddns o S5920F SWOGE3S pUE  aUMonseyul podsusl) o) sjuswaaosdu) Inoquey paenBysiy
. -abeuaned GUuISESEDUl Sl JUSWSdWoD 0] SUDRE]S SUDELS AEMJIE]
=eiodios "1 oo¥ reuoiBay gl |red 5 funos syl o sjuswsacudun ssac0e podsuen) angnd pue Bunods ‘Buiype o Juswaaosdul) ssa00y

uDIssIWEd Duluue|d Duiney Apeau peds S| SWBYDs 3] e [IE1SY
spelodiog 417 oogE'L reuoiBay Il PUE BUJUSD UMO] ¥OO0] SNOUQSJ 01 Syul 3sn puEys pue ueulssped pascudun abueyusu) podsues)
apnoul o} uoRels fEmiEy ¥oog jouquad of Jusoelpe aBueyossiu podsuen opgng 20|qNd ¥ooJ S¥oUQUIS 4
Aueng any
s1E0dI0D *41 T - — - pue juswasBeuepy swes)
" “BMUED UMD) S§ouquad uigum Apenb e aacudun - awayss vonersuabay
pue ucgssbuco aonpay “soy owen 1SIsse o) suswasoudun uswsbeusyy owel] Aunuwwoeg ayougquad

“S|qEDnoEld FISUM

. UORELLICYU] U [E3) Jo uoisisoud S puE SISEYS SnNg mau “suswasueyus dols
T2 0L woge=s =] Snq Spnpou uswanmdl]  CRIUSMUSEES WEW s AunoD SUl USSMIS] SSS00E suawsnosdw
“apEsodion "4 0Ll [EuoiBEy 5l q SENRU o 5 e I E. ! ’ el q |
9 Auagzeuucs ancudun o "pAagsiiegy O] ISaMpUOUBAEH WO 31N sy smel] Jopuion sng
maU sy Bupnjow ‘sainou Jopuios sng A3y o) sluswaaoedw) semanaseyu doms sng oifisiens anyssyouqus 4

INOQERUNG 0OUHE A JE3U sBulssouo suonEDIpOW
PEOY YURL] “SIAN GZG reuoiBay z dNS SSpNpU|]  Cpus WISISES 1B S4NS AUnuwucd pIysiqelss ol §ul| puE pus 4ns
WEisaM 18 £ KON 01 §ul| e i pyd) Buope swsyos pssidwos fped spuspxg LDy O oo S¥ouquuE g

¥ MOM se pajeubisap

. agq pnoo padojasap J yomgm s Lesmjiel Jauuc) yuam soepsuu o) Aunpoddg pus
PEGH HML =0 [ELSREN ‘ WSLMOU 18 £8 F LF " NN C1 jUIl YU Gt MON J0 Ued wucy usy) pinojs “aimng (z =seydldns
auy u g aseyd o vonapdwes uo Opydl spisBuoe | sseyy peisdwon spusmg umyssanaT o prenbysiy

aaueaubis
[EUucileu
532IN05 (¥3) Jo [euciBad

m_.__ﬂ._._:n_ 1502 n_Nn”.ﬂl_ _-ﬂ___LBEn_ =225 10 _.._O_Hn—_.-umgu FLUEN 3WaY2s

Page 139



10995 a1BALd

-KEopouyos
pasipuepuels Buisn suoneoso) ;bsiens e sous mau Esul pue uoisiaosd Bunsoos

Mu.;.m._n___a..__uu 4043 (0005 [euoiBay pauswhey sayebo; mElp 01 ¥29S QM SIY) CSS[EAA 1SSAA UINOS ssouoe siuicd Womjap Bulbieys
T2 9015 4147 BuBieys apiyas sussE o yomiau B uswsdun pue sjeBnsaau o] awayss v apiyas, a3
[sucneunsap =uow fuew dn uado pinoms yui
w0009 3053 | o | no S o e e P e = e
: 1 S 407 005k I 1 Pl Pl 151 sl s p £ on SIgnpp d oy qu|
D 80Ls E JONGSUSD pnoM SWSyos syl oM Bunsmxe sy opun yu Bunads pue Burypess Hur 31340 puasIs0ID)
pEIpSp B WOy ysuaq o] jou Aunwwes s|Bws 1sabie] sy s senppuewod 0] slenppiejucd
|zoyos o] aynod Buryes
[YES, B JO SUS] SUY] SAEY 10U Op Ous USUpIyD Joj ssnot Bunads pue BuiyEem
sesodiod 4043 . coo SESED SUOJEISY] PINOM SWSUDS SIY) CUUpIYD 31 oy sapfisay| Agyeay sjowdoed
2 'g0Ls ‘411 oos's reaa O] A5 10U S30p PUE [EDUNCST SUl J0y USPING SNUSASN B S3IEAUD SIY| ©j00yos o]
aqnau Bungem ayes, e Buieq 1o0u assy Jo spunoub s uo podsuen sjpoyss a3y oy
enb fuaund essuems Jo Aunos 7 A0 SUl UL USUR(IYD [D0UDS JO JSqWnu sjooyos o) syur Bunpe p
b K Ay Ay G
"ELONDSULCD 253U SJERUD
apesodiod 4Ou3 . pue aoueyus o} syjed 33u-0WEN JO SSUSS B JINOSUCT PINOM SWSYDS s1y) Jood
o sors ‘417 | OBOE [E2e USYO S| SSRUNWWED [EJUSPIS3 O} APARSEULCO NG (EFNON F PNON) Mowmsau S2NoY NON
spds mbBsyens fuent pooB B owoy sysuRq essuems jo Qunoo w Ao syl | o syun Bunodo 5 BuyE as
ayeaodion 1o . eaa uswube Feapel ;sunoy e Buisn vowwon piogers Buissouo 3BpugsBury pue
‘o0Ls “dax 411 005 Ll UOUSMOD) US3M]aq YJoM3U Hofo au ul yul Buissiw B Jan@p pinom SWsYds s yur ok abpugsBury
“sanoe) Bunress
aesodion . . .
i . oS JeuciBay sebBuassed pue sswm |Eaen paacsdun pgenss Swn Aswnol spoweoad o) SaEs Jopuios sng
40u3 4 [ UM SINGd SN ESSUEMS O] USUUELLET) 3UY) UD SIUSWSDUBYUS Jo S3U3s W EISUEMS O] USYUEWLED
amodiog {119) . . “sapnou Bupfo pue Burgesm mau .tu FECTTLITEENT]
uononnsucs 3y Bugeypoey pue wawdoEasp Jop pue) dn Buwade “sinos msu Sy
Kaz aunjonnseyu) . ) ) ] . ]
ALnLLen ooa's JeuciBay o sen Bupeidsip g yWow poyeH a9 w Ayjenb ae Busscudun “Apo Sy jo ino pue
o o opul ApgeEd #wn Aswnol Buwscudun ssucqoung Swud Jnoy Lucyssd s peEod WY |
8Os 410 ay] -anuas Ao 3y Yy peoy Weay Jolvy 2 Bunosuuoo sqnou [EUSUE MEU W pECH JOINGUISH] EpoW
sanua D) uswfojdwsg
petodion "4 0D0'z [e2a7 "BUUED KU0 ST Wy 530S WswAopdws o) seoes uodsuen 0] SpUSWRIUEYUg
apgnd Joy Auaposuucs sacudun o sjuswasueyus podsuen oggnd po sBeysed v wodsuel) Hgng o«
ayeladios "417 ooa’L B30 Apenk ne aquso S0 sacedw o] ssunseSW uswWwSBeuBw Jen 0 SIUSS abeyoed AUEND Iy
2Ny uodsuEl]
dion I SUManISEeEyUl SAIEDILY 1
seodiag 417 0000 o vodsuey oygnd uswasueyus siepowwsase o AemsBury Wy jo voneanByuocosy ogngd fAemsBury e
-ucqessusBay pue wawdopEasapas anuas Ao oy sjesodoaud Juswsdwos Homiay
#esodio] T - . :
‘40M3 8475 40 i pue siseq paseyd e uo pasasjEp 3q o paloadia S| awWayos 3] “anuad D 3Pk anuasn 1D .
= . ool fEDa] ESSUEMS Ul 5151|340 J0) YIOWSU S54-DWED PEQ-YD UE JSA[EP ([ YOI SWayss ¥ along agua] Apg
asueajubis
leuoneu
S32IN0S (43) 10 [euoibiaa
—w:.-_—u_.-_._n_ 1807) ‘leaxo] allal2y Jo _.-@_Hn__.ﬂvﬂwﬂ e allalylrs

020Z - 5102

saluayds easuems Jo Aunod pue D —uanas a|gel

Page 140




101385 alBAld

-KBopouyos)
pasipuepuels Buisn suoneoo sfsiens 1@ saus mau Esul pue uoisiaoud Bunsma

EEO.&.._DU u__n_m_m_ ooo's leuoifay 5 pauswiey ssy=boy melp 01 4335 M SIY] CSS[EAL ISSAN YINOS SSOU0E Siuiod wiomgap Bulbieys
N2 30Ls 410 BulBueys apiyan omos@ o yomsu B uswsidun pue sebnssau o] swsyos y ajyas, Juaa3
[sucneunsap siow Auew dn uado pjnom yur
spe1odion '4Ou o _ spfn sbpugsBury sy yo Lsmeg) =6pugsBury pue wouEsion O] APARDSULOD
D B0LS ‘AT 00s'L |e207 g spwvoud pinom uoisinoud Bupsmxs ..w._w:._s PUSSSACIC) O] SIEINPRIEILC wow 3Beyuy
£ JONASUCD pIneM SWayos siyl CNoN Bugsics sy o yuy Bunads pue Burjem Hur] 21240 puasaaoig
PIENPSP B Woy Wausg o jou Aunwwes 3Bws 1ssbie) sy 51 sienppieucg 0} sIB|nppJelusd
|o0Yos o Snod GuiyEm
[YES, B J0 SUS] SU SAEY JoU op oym usap(yo Jog sEnod Bunofo pue GuiyEem
sjEaodion 403 o0g' —— 5 SEAID AMNEISY] PINOM SWSYDS S1y] usuppys sul doy saplisay) Ayyesy sjowosd
1D 'eals 4L = 01 BAJSS 10U S0P PUE FOUNOT) Ul 4O} USPING SNUSASI B SSIESUD SIYL " J00UDS O}
snou Burqjem syes, e Buieq 1ou ausip jo spuncub sy uo podsues s|DoYDS B3 Joy
Aenb Ajusuns eSsUEmS Jo AUnod 5 AT SUL UM USIR|IYD [D0YDS J0 JSquinu § s|ooyos o) syur Buype ay
"EUDIOSUUCD S53UL HED
Fesodion Qa3 f— - . puE SouByus o) syjed 33u-OlYEN Jo SSUSS B JONASUCD PINOM SWSYDS sy Jood
2 '8s 410 USLO 5| SENUNWWOD [ERUSPISSS OF AUARasuwed Ing (EFNON B FNON) Homsu SEN0H NOM
spfo mbsyens Apentb poob v woy sysusq essuems Jo Qunon 3 Apo syl | o syur Bunado g BuiyE s
aesodion 10 00g - ¥ awubne feayel Jsuwoy & Buisn vowwes piogers Buissouo sBpugsBury pue
'90Ls 20 410 = USUISMOD) USSME] Yomau 3oko au ul yul Buissil B JSAIBP DINGmM SWSYIS SIYL yury afy abpugsBury
_“M“_mm_ona.__M_WJ oS |euciBay £ Jefusssed pue sawn jBaen paacsdwn “Aupgensg swn Aswnol spowold o) SASS lopuios sng
== [l LA SIN0S SNG ESSUBMS 0] USULEUUED Sl UD SIUSUSIUBYUS JO S3USS ESSUBMET O] USYLIELLIE D)
] . ~s=pnou Bupfo pue Burgem mau jo lsquinu € jo
mwwm._hw._n_._..___wuu_._._u_u_m._um"_:_ uogannsucs sy Buneypoe) pue wawdoEasp oy pue] dn Buwsdo “sinos meu s
[ — oo0's JeuciBay il o} awen Burpeidsip A YWDY poseH 3wy w Axenb ae Bursoudun A0 sy3 o no pue
L L oyl ApgeiEs 3w Aswnol Buwoadun sucqoung swud Jnoy uopsd [ pEod Wiy |
BOLS 410 Y| ERUSD A0 SUl Yyl PEOY WESN JO0FY 34 Bunosuucd Sindu [BUSUE MaU Y pEOY JOQNquISK] BHOW
SEUa) wswkodws
apesodiog "417 000'E [eao Zl “ENUED AUD SR WIYUA S3Us uswdopdws o) sSolaes podsuesn 0] SJUSWSIUEYUg
ongnd 1oy Auaposuuco saoudun o spuswesueyus podsuen oggnd jo aBeyoed w podsuEl] mgng e
apesodio] "417 oo [eao Il “Apenk e aquso £p0 sacudw o] saunseaw uswsbeurw Jyen jo ssuss § abeyoeg Ryenp iy
- ' "BIMONUSEYUl SANEIU| UOdSUET]
eiodiod 417 oooa. 2o L uodsuen oypgnd Juswasueyus SEpowwooe o) AemsBury sy yo voneinByuooay Mgng AemsBury e
siesodion -ucqersusban pue uswdo@Easpay anuss A oy s|esodoud Jusws|dwos ETLTRETH]
B .mhnwr..n._.._ | puE SiIseq paseyd B uo pRUSAISE S0 01 pHoSddE 5 SWSYDS B SsnusD Ao iy anuan D e
o0l feao L ESSUEBMS Ul S]SI[9AD J0) §IOM]SU SSW-OIUED PEQU-L0 UE JSAIED (LA YOILM SWSUDS ¥ yoalong aguag Kpg
aoueoijubis
Jeuoneu
S30IN0s (33) 10 [eucibal
Buipuny 1507 ‘2o fuoug awsyag Jo uonduosag alue) SIS

0Z0Z — SLOZ Sawayas easuems Jo Ayunod pue AuD —uanas s|qel

Page 141



“Buipuny 41 7 Joy 2|qiB= 29 su0yisy} 10U

ayesodio] ‘417 | oot [eumBay \E few pue Bulpuny snussss aanbas Aew Apnis S|y EssuEms Jo Aunoo T AND Sy sW=Y2 S
g psued] ey wir-enn o ey win o veneodde aw sspisuco 03 Apms ey b syebnsaau|
"B|qIs50d =0E SUCHNOUUoD
apesodion ‘4043 ; sadojasaq Juswuble pausiaid B pauusp aaey saipngs AeuifEld Sy} S1EHEDE)
: : i ooo's [eugifay 174 . B0
2 ‘o0Ls 417 o] [ERUFSSS 30 PINOM PEQI SS3I0E MAU Yy "S3Us Juswhopdws o uoisivoud aacudun peoy
o WE4 SSIUSNE 1S3, EISUEMS SU) 01 55300 sacudwl O PISU B oS as3y] | S92 1SSM ESSUBMS
oo [B907 6l ‘pagnusp 2q 03 13K S1 s pausgaud v tanuso Ao syl Jo 1ses apiy
ayesodion "417 pue yuou au o sucisinaed Bunsis sy wswspdwoo 01 Sus spu pue yued yunoy y T e 1S3AL BRSUBMS
“RIE4 S5=2UIsng DIDHEAS SUpUE
ayesodios ‘417 | oog Ieson 8L By Uo WAO SYl yuam paueys Amoey Lesodwsy sy aoejdal 0] pUE JOPLISD By suonaunl ¢y 0} 235012
313 o} soelpe SI9SN AUEYS PUE yiEY Joy Aupoe) Jusueuwwad e apioud O] SWsYss v s UBYS § YIEL
SIEI0dI0D) ) 90 — G E =]
N0 'e0ls ‘417 oooz (B30 9l Bunsma aup Wawapduco 0] MOUSAD UE SE pasn AQusuns si SUs paunuspl a3yl apiy ¢ Wed siopue]
ajeiodiod - “wyg L — ybus) siewnosddy ppamepusy pue
‘a0 ‘417 ooy reac Bl UOUSMOD USaME] Jomiau Soko aur ul yu| BUISSIW B ISAEE DINomM SWSYIS S| JIBd] Jamoy YUop
ey Bureas
ayesocdion ‘417 | ooo'z [eumbay Zl sabuassed pue sawg |aaeg paacsduw “Aupgersd swn Asuancl sowosd o] 3ES M E3sUEMS puUnoe
YDIYM EISUEMS PUNOIE sainocd sng Asusnbay yBiy uo susweousyus o S3Was W | SIOpLUOD sng J10eens
“saoE) Bures
ayesocdion ‘417 | oog'L [eumbay Zl sabuassed pue sawg |aaeg paacsduw “Aupgersd swn Asuancl sowosd o] 3ES M JoplUol) sng adu=0
yoiym FNod sng EIsuEmMS OF AB|EN EISUEMS U} UOD SIUSWSIUEYUS 0 sBuas w | A0 0] A3|e), ESSUBMS
. DY) seany wawsBeueyy Ayenn abeyaEd
ayeltodio BI0
' 9 dL1 | 00e i 0k g Ay wgus ApEnb ge sacudun o samnsesw uswabeusw owen jo saues W Aenny Iy easuems
S|00UDS o}
. . , SN 0 pUnoUE Spdwexs 10 YSU PISESISUN Jo SESIE JSUJ0 puE sjodsioy uomsios
4171 JHS 05 | 0054 [2acn 6 1afiey |m yoiym pue ss(EN Jo) jomswely fsges peoy Ul jo saguoud Syl
Y 3ul Ul Aayes peou sacadul A Yomgm SUSHUSMSIUL PUR S3WaYDs o aBues w abeyaed fjajes peoy
soueayiubis
|euoileu
£32In0s (¥3) Jo jeuoiBay
Buipund 150D ‘leanT] fuoud awayss Jo uonduasag SWEN sW3Yy2g

Page 142



4.0 SECTION FOUR - MEDIUM AND LONGER TERM ASPIRATIONS TO 2030

41

42

There are infrastructure aspirations which are unlikely to be delivered within the
five year LTP lifetime. This is for a variety of reasons including:

Future development and the growth of the economy
Mo imminent likelihood of funding to support project
Barriers to delivery relating to land or statutory processes are predicted to
delay the project start for several years
+ Project still needs developing to address emerging transport issues

Table Eight gives an outline of these schemes. It is hoped that during the 2015 —
2020 period some schemes may well make significant progress and be ready to
be adopted into the LTP programme. It is also likely that some schemes will be
withdrawn and others will come forward, to ensure the plan remains reactive to
changing demands for access.

Page 143



ESIEDTE]
paieredas speaf Buipngoul wogoun 3y po uBisspay g B U0 3MQONGSEYU SY) o) SWSSAcidWl pPISIEID] SIUSWSIUBLUS mu_umtw_%
apnzul pinos pue Wy uodn psoed saunssaud psgedionue so Buflews 3y o) Sewonsodosd g M wogounl sup 0 SIURWEDUEYUS
‘Kydeibodoy daas sy Ag papunodwos 51 sy pue passBeoo uayo 51 anuen AND AU) SSOEIE PUE 0JUl SSIN0J [ELSUE PECY USULEULED
PUE PEXH WESR 4 Wouy Jyen s3nguisip uogoun| Agegig ay) vonsssisiul £sng siyy o paipdde aq pinoo SUSHUSASSIUL Jo S3USS SIGEEIS Y

juawsascadw) vonsunp fpelig

paebigsanu
20 o} os[e saue| Buiwm pageaipap moge o) s3bueys appssod "uogoaunl ASng s 18 SHIEWSEE 50 Juswabeusw auyl snoudw) o) JuswEswEyug

Juswaacidl] USIUND Py POOMJIIE /DY SS|quunpy

paiebinsaau
2Q 0} os[e saue| Buiwm psjeaipap moge o) sabueys appssod "ucgounl Asng sng 1E sogewsE 10 uswsBeusw syl snoudw o) JuswEswEYuS

JusLasosdiu] SUORIUND P S{eAB/DY S2|qunpy

‘wogaunl Asng syl e sEwSE) 50 uswabBeusw sy anosdus oy JusWEDwWEYUS

apesbdn sieubis nyel) ssoin ARsys

ezue Fsng siyy yBnouly sgen po indybnomg S0 ancodus o) 39S 0S|E FEW
SEAIE [ESEEDD Ul pEd 34 o Buipesf-ay -apqissod asysm suawsadun sogewaE) pue Buiuspm DSSIED0| LWOY. JUSUSG DINOM SN0l 3y |

wawancadw) yooak ] 0 InogepUnoy aue] ARsys

“pannbal aq few swodsioy vonsabuoo
18 suonuaAsE saEwaE] pue Buiuapm pasieoo “pea soinquisip jeepoduwn sy uo sieuBis o ndyBnong sy swowosd o) sjUBWEEEYUS

wswsaoudw) peoy auds aje), BasUBMS

"DIET J0 JNdUDNGRE J0 JUellEf=g
auy soy Aemabewss enp e 1saEp AEngoees o) peoy yur) Asges-s50] 3 pue sabpug swe ) usamgaq femslewes Mmau e Jo LogongsueD

femabeLuEs [BUDIIPPE UM PEOY S[0Yx04

“suanaunl pue sferybiy ;bsens uo sFawnal 252 o pedu
aly =onpas 0y asubyoug pue YIEaN 'USMAENS WOY EISUEMS 0jUl S2piyaa Jo ndyBinagy japeg mole o) Aemabelwnen ag o JuBwEMEYUS

Juswaaosdw) peoy Wwijuns

“sL=]SAs JUSLWRBELEW PSIEID0SSE PUE SIUAUSIUELUS
SONEWS(E] J0 UWLoy 3 ul 3 s S Jey) papedia s1 )] owen apafaa Mogow o Moy Riesl apEpounucooe o) suewsaodun fpoeden

apeibdn (#F Ur) INOGEPUNOY U315 [BIUSH

(enoudde g o algns) 31 o) Juscelpe wewdoEasp Enuapisay S8 appssod B pue ey
ssauisng oifaens aupuE auy 1e peysqelss Dusg wewdo@esp mau Ag paressual owen jo spEea) el slepowcooe o) siuawanasdu

JuaLuaacadu)
spEOY Wayuop yed sssusng abajens apuljay

“uua) Bhuo| su Ul pasepisuos 2q osiE AEW Sucqnos pSqEledss apelg) s[eulis
auyen A pebeuew 10U AUE Yorgm SILBWBAOW MOJE DIN0D yoiys sdis-yo o) sjuawancedus pue sogews@) po uswsbeuew ay ascudun o
sabueys spnpul ARy e pue oges o ndyBnong Jspesub anes o) 4325 (s uonaunl g o seswsaoadw) -seue Jusselpe uuswdoEasp
[EQUEISINS SE [|BM 5B ‘HUEN Wl saseseul Eseual o souanbasuoo e se uogsabuor Buiseauow jo 2amos B awodaq sey uogounl sy

apeibdn 2ioufD PRIoIYPY SIBINPRIEIUSY £OFY

"pomdudlg unyed [ELgsnpul JS|[EWS pUE YIE4 S5auisng sifsiens
aupula4 2 o Apagosuucs Hjowosd o) JSpU0 W OF Wogounr Hy o) posiuellg woy pue oy Angsauucd peacidun powosd o) Swsyss Y

apeibdn (94 wvogaunp) Nogepunoy pomfufag

aqewdoudde uaym SLoNEPEISUl SHEWSE] pue saue| dis paenpse Bupngu #5420 Buoe suonaunf 1 sjuswsacsduns feeden

Wswahcldil] SIN0GEPUNDY FEFY

"EBFY 9 U0 DIIER 10 MOp-yBnou
all oy AeEp 3U] aonpal os|E pinom saue] dijs Ya| pageaipag “wegounl ayy wey puewap ay) afeurw BISY 0] WAWSILEYLS SBWARE |

apeibdn uonounp lsebiajuad 1Bd CobY

JuauLEgag weawubis e spiaoud pinom uoisinoued pEC-Po UE puE E3SLUEMS J0 Aunog g 1D 33 Ul & SIN0Y oma) 2oho) [Eusaen
Blf} JO UONDSS PECU-UD AUO ) SULO) PECU SIY| JSSW SU] 0 SUOREUNSSP pue Joufino 'UoWSSI0n 0] LOUSMOD) EIA JBM0S) HOU WO pUE o)
BuyEnen owen soy fpenoped ‘seaue ayy ul sfermybily pue suogounl Asng su o aunssaud NS O SAUIS DINCD PEDY SIYY O) SPUSWSAoduw
Apsedes womgsu Aesybiy 20630ens usceipe s vo IN2o0 swegoed U oYEr) JoIOW J0§ YUl SIUSPS3) 3|GENEAL] WE SLLCY pEOU SIY)

Juswadueyug py qoo £ ued

vopaund s wo peoeld pUBWRP AUy 3sEAUTW o) pejoads ate suopendse wewdoEnap pue ssseasou vonedod
paalong -ssead juaoss u pagssbucs ABuwseassul Bunwoosg sey yogm wonounl B o sonewsEl 3y Duifeuew 0 suPaW paoweyul

Juawaacaduw)
UoIunr 35 [APY BU0LA/PY PRANICS

suawanardun Ayoedes salEp o) B0 U sjuawsAdwl sanewsl3) pue Buiuapim pasijeao

apesbdn Ayoeded peoy EUOIIA, 96Z+D

sjuswasosdun feeden

uswaacadw] uogaunp ppRufpy |0aHAR50S SWM

‘papades
sjuawanasdwl sapewalE pue Buivspm pasiEDo sienppeEjund W ysosl uogeindod papsiosd alEpowwosse 0] Suswasudwn foeden

JUSW2IUEYUT SIBNPRIEILOL O} UOUISSI0N) 967 +D

EasUEMS

uonduossp auIpno

SWSYJS JO sWEN

{oeoz - ozoz) sswwesBoid wus) Buo] pue wnipaw 417 -Bi3 s|qel

Page 144



AUYSUSYUELIET) Lo woy Buipes| $3#y Wou J0MISU DED) YUl JSpIiM PUE gy 0] S5300€ 0 Juswanosdus

uswasoadw) femybiy — yui 1583 UayUBLIED

puuLElap 29 0} 3)Is 1 podsuel) sgeEUElsns ayoweoad o) Ayjne) apiy g WE Jo JuswdoEasp Buung

3pIY ¥ Wed UsUeuley

funog ayy ssouse sabipug prepuesgns apesBdnuedasmnowar o) suawancudus pasieao

abeyoed suswaaosdw) abpug

DSUILLSIAP 31 O] SJ0U — 3I0MIEU DEOY YUNI | PUE &4 0] 553008 aacudwl o) pEoy JoInguisiq jo aseyd Buuny

JuaLasoadu)
femybiH — 7 258Yd PROY JOINUISH] PIoUBLLILLY

paUIULEEE 39 O} 3)s JE wodsues a|geuleisns apowod of AIEDE] 3piY ' WE Jo Wewdojanag

Spiy PUE WiEd lISUE[]

U % UM juY 0} SPUEY SS06] 40 15aM o) (G SBpug smopesp woy WS 4o sseyd sgng

wawaacadw) femybiy
— ¢ 3SEU4 PEOM YUl JIWoUDIT SPUBH S5010

ENI T [y )

}=2q [EISECD
UD SaYS JUAWAndWS 0] SepunWAUcD 3B UELY JO) SS300F UIEJUIEW DUE #3JEs aoueyus of Weydna 18 J0ly ¥ o Wweawsnosdus peoy

sjuswaacaduw Wweysye oLy

S| UIEW 3 0} §ui| ped 3540 3y Buwsinn #sn ajdiynuw Jog mogquey Jiem da3p W1y ] #0 0 WeWwdoEnag

2EN papusxa INogqieH Jaie g, das( joge ] vod

vodsuel ying o suesw Jueyodul
ue apunosd yoiym ssam ies By sy osE ogE ] Hod wesy papuendages a9 auogsusyl ([EYS puE suoiSsnua pue uonsabuoco saonpag
yoiym pecu &Q wey) ey sweaw Ag papcdsuen a9 of spocd moge pue Awouooa [Eso| sy poddns Asy) spEaY|El pue spod JE paanba
2UE SEJBUIW 10} Samiioe) Bwssacosd pue abeios ‘uosisoud slEnbapy “sSULOL OO0t SYE] UED JEW SSMUEWM SEU LIESN SRR [P SYL

suod 220 18 sappae) Jaypsuel) by

215 awdoEasp mbsyens Ae gy UEIQE S YIM SSIUNWILLCS A3@E A WESK YUl 0} [EUED JUBUUE] Jo swewss Buoe yuy apds sbsens

FEpN UBIGE] 0] SIBINpJ20y jUl] 21042 [SAEL 2ARY

AEAN INOQIEH PUE JOqQE ] WO 1SES “A3g[ES, UENY uSaaag jull Aemiybiy panosdus

sabeyul femybiy joqie) vod

joqiel Hod yiesn

“3|q15500 SE 1B SB [y 2L 40 USWUEIE 31 Mogty 0] A=Y PUE 32U-0WER DUE DEGH-L0 29 O}
paladie 9 8N sy yoepEwbueT pue sefisguad EIn UDISLIOW PUE UOUISSI0N USSMIa] AnosuunD spinoud o) apnou SpA0 pRIENDAp i

1aeblajuad Bl UOISLUCK O} UCUISSIO

‘yregsaun4 pue ssefis)uad uaswmag Auagoawnos spinasd o 3gnos 3K0 DSIEDIPSP Y

Uoepsai0l] 0} Jeebisuag

"YIERSAUN]] PUE UOUSMOD UaSmlEg Apnnoauucs apinosd of 3jncs 3jpho pSjeDipap

U2BAS2I0)] 0} UOLSMOD

‘wogels 1@ans ybiy pue yoepsaung4 uaswiEg Apanoawuc apinoed o) 33nou ajodo pSIEDIDIP Y

uonels 1224s ybiH 0] pEoy PPN

12045 o) ANl
Buriem 3ES € BN[SD pUE [BAED angoe Sjowad o) ancufiyoug pUE SIES) 10 SSIUNWLLIST 31 USSKG3q pajonysuco aq o) wed asn paueys y

Jury aacubyauig o} sIg9

“|O0LEs Of Spnod DU[Em SJES € J9A[Sp pPUE
e angoe spowasd of uojsojYsg PUE SIEAER 10 SSIUNLILLIGD 318 USSWMIS] Uownuos) auk]]) Ssome psjongsuns 2q o yied asn paueys y

HUIT L LIS Ty _.m.:._A_U_

"I53M DUE ]SER SUONELNSSP O [SNEL 10) USMINS
u sucesivoud Bugsoe ypm g o] “aewubyong pue uamays usasmiaq ainoy Buipdo pue Bunjiem san-oylen ‘peos-jo UE apinosd O) SWBYDS Y

yul 2pd 0 asoubyong o) uamays

"NUED Jahld WASES AU Lo Uoisinoad S JUswS|dwos pue siEad DUILLDD SU) JSA0 JUE] JaAU SIY) J0 USWdo|3nap =) j0 SOEJUEADE SXE} [IW
sy “¥aoy Sy AL pue s3Bpug smE] usamiaq aME] JRATY SUY) 4o yueq waissam Sy Buoje 3inou SSu-oen peQS-U0 UE YSEOEISS Of SWEYDS Y

aInoy 9|24 SpIRIaAY ame ]|

‘55240 4oy suoioun] yBnouy paen paangsgoun pue ApAnsaunes pancedus apowaosd o) SUoNUSASEIL

SUOQIUNT 18 SaPE] Sk

SUDUSIISIUI pJEIEdSS apedl pue apedb j8 10 XIW E 2 |IM sUnengseEyul sy juswdo@asp
JUCIPSIERL | WS B4 PUE WELUS | BOSEWSY| 15 10 SN 3y usaagaq B, UEIGE SS0UoE APANoauLcD Sjowoid o) sunpngseyu

Aepp ueiged uo sBussclD) 2240 § uBLlSSpad

WeLwuEigE SIY) SMO|ICY OS[E YDIUM t+ SINCH JO0MSN 2040 [EUCHER SU) 40 WwSuwsnag Esuab
ay Joy osgE ng ‘sndweny vopsbuis pue anuen Ao ‘sndwes feg eyl usamgaq Ereq apowond Apedouud o) yuy Bupods pue BunyEes y

yur] 21240 sndwe s Aeg o] sue Agsys

[ EAENTN BNy
ul 5| puE pagquapl uaaq SeY aps pauagEud v jed 3sudisiug au i 53SSSWSNG [ED0] PUE WNIPELS AUSq Ayl anss Auewsd ge suogoauny
apu g wed sy peoy swds 3je ), BSSUEMS 3 0} Jusaelpe SEp BISUEMS Ul 3PS 3pU pue yed § sueys pue yied B YSOE]SS O] SWSUS

2IS BpIY § WEd B[E/ ESSUEMS

"UOE)S JSLPS 10 Woq JOj PRyIUSp 0 WED PUELLISP JUSIDIENS § SWayos sug oy Jauped juiol e 34 o) y83s
PINOM ESSUEMS J0 Aunod g Aun S Jasamoy ‘slueyn sy 1oays o Auoyine weladuwioo SU SE pEY yomap Ag pa) aq pinow 1oaelosd sy

SUoNES AEMIEY 18420 7 2J0pue] usdoay

uondiasap auIRNO

aLUaYos JO BWeN

Page 145



auo7 asudmug Fesu=ep, uaneH 2yl Bunuausidwes podey 1sempiouaneH Buipnioun usog sa jo yuou
pUE 1538 34 0] syus] Lodsuen § ssacoe peasdw) Buipinoed Ag wonesrsuabau Bueyioe) Agausy) (SampuopsaeY o) @R oen apiaoud o]

ssedfig WayuoN 1sampiolsrey

[=0pug s upa) »Epuq mo) & pue [uoyswger] SprepUEls AEMUDIY JOURJL SE NS YOMI3U AU U SUDQILISSN O [ERDLLIRI
Al pw Jaabo) seaue uoisSIIEN, DUE YOOH LNOS Syl puemo) uonessuaBal sjeypoey o) saps aiflayens o) ‘Buods g Buiyers yum Jswpaboy
'DLET) PASUOOLL Lo Joy ANARISULCD pue ssacoe ancedus e oslosd BY)  WIOMJAU PEOJ NUNE SU LW PUE JBLR0 YOES UM 0g 'BuoF
Fsudisiug AEMISIE || USAEH S J0 300UYS LSUPoU 3uy3 wo saus ABiaua A3y ayp Buryu) yIomiau [@ren 308 § DECI JOINGUEsID B Siapwos 0]

T 22Byd — WOMSN JoInguUISI] WISyUoN

auoz asudiajug
AemuzEp) USAEH 3 o) Awngosuucs pue 553008 Buincedus (7 pue | seseyd) siosloud wonessuabay Aminunuog syouquad REWUcD 0]

yswubie-21 ucjuow 0ZEFY

BQUSD WMo | 3yuquad yo uoneseuabal ayy jog samunpoddo apincsd ospe g oaloud 3y suwez asudisqug AEsUSIE N, UBREH
alf o seuwsscdw Apagosuucs Buipngul epsusy ajfuy su pue vopUOR 0] SS3T0E Sn0udl) PUE SYCAIWSJ 0 IR0 Swen apisoad o)

ssedfig waisapy Duipnpau - 7 aseyd
13aloig uonelausbay Apunwwos ayosgquwsd

"BAIE LOPYUDRY SU uigae uonessuatal pue uswlopduws o sssaoe “saqunpoddo ewdoransp Buneupoes
Agauayl suoy asudisiug Aewusiep ushey sy 03 Aungosuuco pue [uonesudsp spdginw Jo BAUE UEB) UOIUCRY O} S5300E anosdul o)

uoisiang =0els] puabpug - | 2seyd
198loi4 uonelausbay fpunwwoT ayosqusd

allysayolquiag

"S|EISS [EUISNPUI 34 WOl DUE O 1) ), JUERN IE 0FY
B} WO Y| 122ap B apisoud pinom peos Meu 3y sssooe Jood £ pRssouly S uoisueds sy AQUSLIND USyYUn ppe o} [enuslod Su pue syun
S50 paxIW Jo Jaqunu abie) e aue s Aunog s wiges Alagoe uewdojdwaiwouoss ko) uaneso| weawubis e 51 uayueuuen vl deusdypy

pEOJ S53308 Yed [euysnpu| deusiypy

NJjauef] jo anuss uedgm [eucifian juepoduns agy o) Fy 24 Buyun AessyBiy jo Yyogans ayy Jog vonesdse wis) sabuo) gy

gEL¥Y 2ul Buyeng

S3USD 34} PUNE PUE L WO 0} /20
yodsuer sy ancedun o) siuawannbas apniow Agelnaul ma ow s1yl Jo sawone 2 ABsens vogersusbay nwoucso] Aeg essuems
S L S il s3pnys wonessusbial pue JuswdoEasp Jwousss 1o P3lgns syl APUBLIND SUE AUIYSUSLUIELLLIE ) Ul SSIJUSD UBGQIN UIEW § 3y

pUOJLE LY
pUE uayuewlte D 'jsue ssueidissey vodsues)

"BINSUILS] A2UUEd B3 WOl PUE 0] 553002 p=acidill 0 Sususq
Nwouosa 3u pojda o suonesdse ay Bupoddns se (jam se A3E s, YiSBIpUAMES) 34 Wl PUE o} 553208 pancuduns Bupiioud yeosgau
3w juI £24 B 5B SAJSS PINGW )| DEOY YU 2IW0USYT SPUBH S50 AU o) usisuaps AUS)sa A Inos B 3q ppnoe AemyBiy Jo uonsas sy

pEOY YU (e, USBIPUSMS) J3M0T

-sysanbay BuiBuel apm asay) Jo JAQWNU B S52UPPE 0] YOO PINOW SWaUs siY) “wowgsu Kemybiy
s Ajunog ay) o) siuRWwesweyus ExsAyd Jo) sisanbas wow panuap sawayss Jo awwefosd pesipuoud pue peysigelse uwE sEY Aunog 3y

SwwelSoud
uswasacudun femybiH pue femiood ‘Alales peoy

uoiBay fuo Aeg easuems ungm sapunuoddo Juswhopdws o) AqissE0oe aamdwl o Suonels A3 18 SJUSWSAoUHLL] SUNEONIISELU] | SOIES

FOFY 0} 55200y — BNSUIUSd falgqusd

sndwWes [EUoREINDS J0 uoisuedea [equalod o) payul suawsaodwn AesmyBiy

2ANJINASELU|
vodsues) Ay — pAMmumgld f uwesuad oy

SIUBWSIUEYLS UGBS

UONE}S PUBHIUA

ased gsauisng Gupoddns Buogs e pERSUOWED Y2IUM SIIPNIS JSD30 J0 SWOMNG 3L Wik 3ul) Ul uoiels Aemjiey sieal 1 Buiuadoay

UoREls slesld 1S

51| pue sgeubiis suyen yo sapeaidn

sapeibdn — sjeubrs awes )

suondo wodsuen ajgewElsns Jo JuawdoEnap Buuny

SUI0d
BuibseyD — jaaloid 8N4 319143, SAREWSYY

wogsaiuco 2B WOy paauep SESNY Juawabeueyy AuEnD Jry [Enusped 1B saunseaw uogefw o uoneps wedw

SININgseyu] Yodsuel] — /1 JISUE[] INoS

uvogsabuoo sonpaus oy suogouni K3y o) sJUawanosdus pasieso

SAINSE3
uonebpy Aay — seary Wwawabeuep ANEnD Iy

uoifay fpn Aeg easuems ungim sapunpoddo Juawhopdws o] A@ssa00E andul 0] SUNIE]S A3Y 1B SIUWaADIOW] AUNENISEL] [ SRS

susnIUNr A2y — spuswascadul) pomgap femybiy

"SU0T oy ASPE), WA | pajealn AJUS0al pUE aUIYSUSULEILET Lo o) AN[IgISSE00€ 10 juswanasdi

weawaacsduw) Aemybiy — inssApue o] sijEMYlY
speoy Jui uciBipasss) 0] SAYSUSULBLLIED YUON

uonduosap aulpnQ

WIS JO SWeN

Page 146



abeuoned
Buise=row a3y juswndwos o) suolE]s ped 5 Aunco ay) o suswsnudun ssaooe podsuen ongnd pue Bupado “Buryesm uo ssauBosd pammuog

SUONE]S [IBY O] SjuslusAcdw] S3330Y

‘TuoiBipaiag
s diysssuped w) sjpewBog 15 pue joojsiapunes Tiqus) N0 aNIWad 'SjOMUSY ‘DU 'USREH MIOJIY UOISUNOT "EIRGQIEN
'ISSMPIOLAREH "§ompoos § puenBysi 1e ss300ud uonEpnsuod ySnouy dn pasiom SeWSYSs 1o Juswdojsaap auY uo ssaubosd panuuon

S2AYIS 10 [SABI] 2ARIY

Aewi|Ed a1y o ped 350 o) [EQuE0d 19aloud umo | SjgEUIBES ISSMpIoUEREH BUL 1o ued se padoEasp SSNIIDE) SpUSINS

wmbueq pue yooH 0} donsfaig

LPNCS SUY) O] SSQPUMLWSD puE uel-A-sA o 2beyuy aungny equsiod
Uum 103laug UDRESIENASY BV ANYSIHOIGWSI-PIY 34} JUSWS{EWeD (I} "YSNGSS0K PUE UOISSUSUNG 'SRSEOMaN ST 18 SARUNWALGD
apowal o} 3Beyuy ageueisns Bupmosd (anoge uoisERe o) pendysiy 335) Jp NON J0) SINoe anjoEIE pue 3es B oapinoud [Py

dns Boyoopuaep o) uoisiapan

It NJN S€ PSIEUDISSP 50 Pjnoa Pado[shap § UoILM SUI| AEMIE] J3LLIGY UM SEp33Ul
oy Apunpoddy “pUS WSLLOU 1B T8 F 4 ¢ NON OF YUl WIM By NON J0 wed uuoy pnog [#yaL spisbuoe 7 sseug paisidwos spusxg

(g aseyd) uoissaneT o) prenbysi4

“sagunay £ syur Guiseyd Jog Enusiod yus aul
Aemjiel puuoy Buoje Apsow suny -pUBRIUA OF USYUEWED) WOy JNS peisjdwos dejueisqns pue yoAwAeD) 18 SERON Ui Guip eMoN
pasodoud po wed s wewsps puoses Buiseyd Jog enusiod yum s Aesyes J3uuog Buoe suny yoAwsin 1B scepEIL JHNON Yl sumbay
£ pUE S3quno] £ SYU §PNON PSsodoud pue ZEWON 40 Wed “obe sesd g) psisidwoo uewsBig o) webipie] Spusycs JUSWS|E 1sid

Buipaisy
g Bunyje p — syur Aunuwwoe) yaeg 1pred

uonduosep sulINQ

2WIYIS JO SWeN

Page 147



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

SECTION FIVE - STATUTORY CHECKS

The LTP at the strategic level is directly related to the RTP (2010 — 2015). The
vision, objectives, long term strategy and policies are almost identical. For that
reason it was not considered necessary to camy out a new Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA) or Habitats Requlations Assessment. (HRA)

However, there has been a refresh and a screening of new projects. This
significant work included the following:

« The SEA objectives have been reviewed against the LTP objectives
The SEA/HRA baseline information has been updated
New projects have been subject to a high level assessment and scoping
exercise
An addendum to the SEA/HRA has been prepared
Consultation has taken place with Natural Resources Wales and Cadw

Detail on the outputs of this work are shown in Appendix G and headlines are set

out below:
TO BE COMPLETED

Page 148



54

5.5

5.6

87

58

As set out In Section One and Appendix D an Equality Impact Assessment
(EQIA) screening of the LTP has been camied out and will help to inform the
development and delivery of future projects to improve access.

The EQIA is not the end of the process, it is the starting point of ongoing
engagement as schemes develop and preparations for delivery are made.
Engagement with and input from users of services and facilities, particularly
vulnerable users will be critical to ensure improved access benefits all users.

A Health Impact Assessment screening has been undertaken to determine the
direct or indirect impacts, positive or negative, that the LTP will have on the
general population and also groups with Protected Characteristics. The
Screening can be seen in Appendix H and key points to note are:

+ There are no direct positive impacts on the health and wellbeing of people
as a result of the LTP

« There are positive indirect benefits in terms of improving access to a
wider range/choice of services and facilities and ultimately promoting
wellbeing

« Specific LTP projects may have negative impacts on some communities
or some groups with Protected Characteristics. Consideration of this will
form an important part of project development and delivery

A Rural Proofing exercise has been undertaken as shown in Appendix 1. This
demonstrated that at the strategic level the LTP has no negative impact on rural
communities or visitors to rural areas. There may be slight beneficial impacts as
access to services and facilities are improved, broadening choice for rural
residents.

At an LTP scheme level there may be more specific positive or negative impacts

and these will need to be part of the scheme development process in due
course.

Page 149



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

SECTION SIX - CONSULTATION

The RTP was prepared with extensive consultation. The problems and barriers,
the objectives, the long term strategy and the programme of projects were all
subject to consultation with a range of stakeholders.

The LTP has also involved stakeholder engagement, but time and money have
constrained the scale of engagement. The consultation that has taken place
specifically for the LTP is set out in Appendix J and in summary includes the
following groups:

Swansea Bay City Region Board

Elected Members of the four Councils

Internal Local Authority Officers (Planning, Education, Regeneration)
Health Board Representatives

Neighbouring Authorities

Transport Operators and User Groups

Sustainable Transport representatives

Natural Resources Wales

Pembrokeshire and Brecon Beacons National Park Authorities

There were three specific stages of consultation as follows:

Stage One
+ Review of RTP problems and issues related to access
+ Tweaked objectives for the LTP
= Long term strategy
L]

Identification of High Level Interventions

Stage Two
+» Regional Transport Forum session on the first draft LTP

+ Fomal consultation on the draft LTP

Stage Three
+ LA elected Member adoption of LTP

+» Regional Transport Forum adoption of the LTP
= City Region Board endorsement of the Plan

A consultation workshop was held in July 2014. The workshop was split into
plenary and breakout sessions and the key aim was to:

+ Explain the context of the LTP

Page 150



5.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

5.9

» Gather views on current bamiers to good access and potential
interventions to address the barriers

» Encourage debate on opportunities to improve access in and beyond the
region

» Seek views on the objectives and long term strategy for the LTP

In the September 2014 Regional Transport Forum meeting elected Members
and external partners were asked to comment on draft policies and programmes
designed to address barriers, to achieve objectives and improve access. This
helped to shape the consultation draft LTP.

A formal draft of the LTP was issued for consultation between the 1% and 21%* of
October 2014 for a period of three weeks. Stakeholders had been given prior
warning of this short window of opportunity to further influence the LTP.

The draft LTP was sent to more than seventy different organisations and 45
responses were received. Detail of responses is included in Appendix J, but
common issues raised were as follows:

Lack of consideration for equestrians in the plan

Meed for clarification about the role of the LTP and RTP

Short timescale for consultation

Difficulty of assessing programmes of projects when no detail on cost or
priority was included in the draft LTP

« Clarification on the ATA requirements for new road schemes is needed

» Lack of recognition of the role of Community Transport

* The lack of rail, station and trunk road schemes

These issues have been carefully considered and where appropriate changes
have been made to the LTP. We believe the input from stakeholders has
sharpened and strengthened the LTP and it now provides a coherent framework
for the challenge of delivering a connected City Region in South West Wales.

The LTP will need to be adopted as the strategic framework for transport and
access by all four Local Authorities in the region. It also needs endorsement
from the Swansea Bay City Region Board. The Authorities and the Board can
have confidence that the LTP provides a solid foundation for the development
and improvement of connectivity across South West Wales, both for the next five
years and in the longer term.

TO BE COMPLETED AFTER. LA ADOPTION AND CRB ENDORSEMENT

Page 151



7.0

7.1

72

73

SECTION SEVEN — MONITORING AND EVALUATION

Monitoring the impacts of transport investment and evaluating the outputs and
outcomes is a vital element in the lifecycle of project management. To effectively
monitor outputs there needs to be a clear understanding of what the baseline
situation was prior to the intervention. Monitoring is therefore an integral part of
scheme development as well as post-delivery assessment.

The LTP guidance makes clear that monitoring and evaluation should be
proportionate to the scale of the transport project, rather than directly related to
the ease of gathering data and measuring change. The guidance also makes
clear that it is a process and not a task and finish approach that is needed to
ensure that it is possible to leam from each project completed and mitigate
against future programme and project rsks.

It is our intention to use the following framework for monitoring and evaluation of

the LTP

Figure Two — Monitoring and Evaluation Plan framework

Ideni'rfy' the need - barriers to Consider pﬂtEl"IﬁE1| solutions
access and high level appraisal
Context of the barfer/need
for access

v

i

What is the desired objective? Chosen solution tested
Stage Two against objectives and
Project developed to detailed design
What intervention is needed? Risk assessment and log
(capital project, revenue established
resource)
Stage three k-
Deliver Maintain risk and project log
Record progress project log
*y
Stﬂge_Fuur "
Confirm outputs and outcomes !Iulmitur Prepare Evaluation report

Page 152




74

7.5

76

7.7

7.8

79

710

LTP Project outputs will be measured as part of the scheme. For example if a
road improvement is being delivered a successiul output will be that the
improvement has been completed to the expected specification. Similarly, if a
bus corridor is to be enhanced a successiul output will be that bus shelters and
interchanges on the corridor have been provided or improved.

In developing a monitoring plan the outputs of the Travel Pattern survey (see
1.13 and Appendix B) are important. This work has provided a statistically valid
analysis of current modes of fravel for specific joumey purposes and also the
satisfaction rates of users of various modes. The baselines provided through the
survey are set out in Appendix K.

This data will be used to assess the outputs of the LTP, along with other
monitoring such as:

» Journey time reliability surveys
» Bus and train user surveys

« Traffic counts

» Cycle/pedestrian counters

+ Collison/casualty data

It is much more difficult to measure and evaluate outcomes from transport
investment. Transport is a derived demand facilitating access to other services
and facilities. If a public transport scheme is delivered successfully the outputs
will be achieved. Whether that scheme could be shown to have directly enabled
people without private transport to access employment is less likely without the
funding to carry out detailed surveys or focus groups on a regular basis across
the region.

The outcomes of the LTP include for example “Improved access to jobs to
facilitate economic activity”, however, identifying the impact that improved
access alone has is complex. Similarly an improvement to health and well-being
brought about by improved active travel facilities would be difficult to prove as
people make such decisions based on many factors.

Effectively evaluating the outcomes of the LTP delivery will involve regular
detailed surveys about the choices individuals make. Wider outcomes and
trends could be monitored to some extent by regular repetition of a survey
similar to the Travel Pattern survey, along with focus group work associated with
specific facilities such as major health care centres. Data collected and collated
to support the measurement of outcomes of schemes should be shared (in
anonymised form) across the WG and all LAs in Wales to avoid costly
duplication. However, this is not scheme specific monitoring and so could not be
directly associated with scheme costs. The additional revenue requirements on
Local Authorities (or Authority Groups working together) would need to be
reflected in revenue settiements in due course.

The intention is to monitor schemes based on the specific mode(s) involved. See
Table Nine:

Page 153



Buiag-||am pue yyesy pasesioul
puE g2ssou|| pale|al AISSn0 Ul SUoRINpay
SaIUSa ISP pUB usoy Jo Aigela Buisessou|

sdnousy N304

shanns 12sM SN0y
UonIBlsieESEuoiudo pus a3oud
apow KLamns  waned |[aaei]

SIUNCD SUBLIS3P34/81S1240
JWaYas 1o uonsdwos

gainoy Bunado sofpue Buryie sy

SESUE WEal

Mognd  usselpe W BEo0L 10 JUSLWSINSESY
S2NUSI ISIp pue umod jo Aupgeis Bursessou)
ajdoad pajgesip

10 fusple Ag 2123 |BIDOS UD SIUBISI pEInpsy
s3I

=iBD esy 1B pusiy jop pId, Wouonanpsyd
uswfopdwaun o] palejal Saus Ul Boanpay
uzifal s u AUAGIE JWUSUDIS DSBS

gdnols snooy
UonaBsies/suciudo pug a3oud
apow KLamns  waped |[RaBl]

shamns

UOIIBISHES J2WUmSn T
paINponUl sszusnbaly
pESEIUIUSSIALISE Map
yodsueln agqnd

ojuo abueyaisul [Bpow
sbeuoned pyodsuen sgng
ey 1o uonsdwo s

S
wswdopaaap abue _._Em.E’.ﬂ

S2UIUSD ISP pUe umoy Jo fpjoes Gusesiou)
a|doad pajgesip

10 fpsple AQ 21B3 |BIDOS UD 23UBIRI pEInpsy
b= T =

Si2D pjesy e pusiy Jon PId. Wouonanpsyd
uswAopdwaun o] paleal SHausq Ul UonInpay
uoiBal s w AJARIE JUCUDIS PISESIIU]|

sdnousy N304

salsbuns sng

sawng Aswnol sng
uonaelsnes;suoiudo pug a3ioyd
apow famns  waped |aael]

paINponUl sszusnbaly
PaSEalIUS2NAISS MDY
sbeuvoned podsueln Jngnd
awayss jo uonsdwosy

d
g
q

O

gjuUSLUSIUEYUS
lopluod yodsuely mjgng

pafojdwaun

10 J3quinu pue o] pelElal SsUag Ul uoganpsy
ugifal s u AALIE JWUSUDDIS DaSESIIU|
SJUaWInsE3W Aenb oy

sdnouoy snoog
UonIelsies/suUciuIdo pug a3oyd
apow KLamns  waned |[aaBi]

SIUNDI JYEL |
Aupgenas 2w Asuinop
awayss 1o uonsdwo

Buippingauawasoad i peoyy

saluoalno Japim Buunsespy

saloano
uodsuesy Bunseapy

sinding Bulnseap

2POW

ABojopowyia Buloliuop pasodoud - auiN ajqel



7.1

As well as collecting and collating data associated with LTP schemes the
proposal is to use existing data bases as appropriate. There is a wide range of
data available freely from:

Welsh Government Statistical Team
Department for Transport

Local Authorities in Wales

Office of the Rail Regulator

Civil Aviation Authority

British Transport Police

Association of Train Operating Companies
MNetwork Rail

Passenger Focus

712 Targets

The following targets apply to the lifetime of the LTP (that is the period up to
2020)

Road Improvement: There has been debate amongst transport economists and
statisticians regarding whether the United Kingdom has reached ‘peak car, that
is to say whether or not the demand for travel by car has now peaked. UK
national traffic seems to have broadly plateaued, a phenomenon which can be
evidenced on many roads in South West Wales.

Transport investment in road improvement should therefore not only seek to
address localised capacity issues and address jourmney time reliability, but
consider the role of peak car and whether sustainable transport means can be
considered as an integral part of road design, building and provision. This also
ties in with the requirements of the Active Travel Act.

Road Improvement Targets:
« 100% of approprate (in line with the Active Travel Act) new/improved
roads will enhance the provision for walkers and cyclists
» LUsers satisfied or very satisfied with the reliability of the road network will
increase from the cumrent baseline of 52% to 70%

Public_Transport Corridor: Public Transport use has declined overall since
privatisation and deregulation in 1986. There have been fluctuations and growth
has been seen in the last decade associated with the introduction of free travel
for concessionary pass holders. Patronage is driven by a number of factors
which include improvements in public transport provision, rising fuel and parking
costs impacting on private transport costs (which have increased patronage) and
increases in fares above the rate of inflation, and retractions in commercial and
subsidised networks (which have decreased patronage). Public transport faces a
number of challenges in the immediate future, with limited competition, fuel and
staffing costs increasing and public sector funding facing a further decline.

Public Transport Targets:
« Modal split for bus usage will increase from the cument baseline (6%) to
9%
* Bus Users satisfaction levels

Page 155



Satisfied or very satisfied with Cumrent baseline % Target %

Reliability of bus senvices 53% 70%
Frequency of bus services 68% 70%
At stop facilities 54% 55%
Provision of information 66% 75%

Interchange Dewvelopment: Investments at public transport interchanges can
have a profound effect upon the aftractiveness of more sustainable modes to
potential users. The completion of a number enhancements to prominent
interchanges have shown that improved public safisfaction and modal shift to
public transport can happen when high quality and well maintained interchange
facilities are provided.

Interchange targets:

» 9% of pedestrians who are satisfied or very satisfied with access to a
station or bus interchange will increase from the current baseline of 52%
to 60%

» % of cyclists who are satisfied or very satisfied with access to a bus
interchange will increase from the current baseline of 10% to 15%

» % of cyclists who are satisfied or very satisfied with parking at railway
stations will increase from the current baseling of 21% to 30%

» % of users who are satisfied or very satisfied with access to railway
stations will increase from the current baseline of 38% to 45%

Walking & Cycling Routes: The Active Travel (Wales) Act has set a target for
20% of all trips to be undertaken by either walking or cycling by 2020. This is an
ambitious target which will commence at a very low baseline, but it is to this
ambition that walking and cycling investments will need to aim.

Walking/cycling Target:
» Modal split for pedestrians will increase from the current baseline (15%) to
20%
« Modal split for cyclists will increase from the current baseline (1%) to 3%

« Modal split for travel fo school will increase from 37% fo 42% for
pedestrians and from 4% to 10% for cyclists

Page 156



Appendix 2

% DINAS-RANBARTH
" Bae Abertawe

Swansea Bay
CITY REGION

Welsh Government

Dear

JOINT LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN FOR THE SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION

Please find enclosed the joint Local Transport Plan (LTP) prepared by the four Local
Authorities in South West Wales and endorsed by the Swansea Bay City Region
Board.

The Welsh Government guidance issued to Local Authorities, which proscribed the
format and content of the plan, excluded the inclusion of projects which could not be
delivered by the Authorities. This applies to Trunk Road projects, revenue support for
transport projects and non-devolved areas such as rail, ports and airports.

However, key to the delivery of the City Region Vision is the creation of a connected
region which will facilitate regional economic regeneration and lead to:

e business development and growth
e a better skilled workforce
e entrepreneurial business investment

It would not be possible to achieve our vision without including the main gateways
into the region from east and west such as the Trunk roads, Railways, Ports and
Airports. Indeed when the Minister attended the Board meeting in June 2014, she
referred the key connectivity corridor of the M4/A48/A40 corridor and improved
connectivity into the City Centre as critical to the success of the City Region

Whilst Section two of the joint LTP set out high level aspirations for Trunk roads etc.
Appendix one to this letter provides more detail about the improvements needed to
ensure the City Region is connected and open for business.

Yours Sincerely

Page 157



Appendix One —the Joint Local Transport Plan aspirations to create a

better connected region

Five Year Rail aspirations

Description

Detail

Improved rail services
to and from the region

Electrification of the Great western mainline to Swansea

Increase service levels to the east and west of Swansea City
Centre

Identify station improvements for all stations in the region

Improve integration at railway stations through improved bus, cycle,
walking, electric vehicle charging and parking facilities

Improved access by
rail

Support the development of the TEN-T Rail network

Seek to improve quality of carriages on west Wales and Heart of
Wales line services and allow for cycle carriage on trains

Examine role/impact of additional stations

Continue to support additional rail services to Fishguard/Goodwick
and the Heart of Wales line

Make better use of commuting stations around Swansea

Examine the potential for additional hourly services to Cardiff from
West Wales via the district line

Future Proofing rail
services

Examine role of rapid transit corridors to link railheads with
communities/strategic development sites

Examine the potential for increased freight levels and freight
interchange depots

Examine the potential for increased rail traffic to/from ports

Medium and long term rail aspirations

Description

Detail

Improved rail services
to and from the region

Electrification of the GW Mainline to Carmarthen
Increase service levels east of Swansea
Increase service levels west of Swansea
Ensure integration between modes at all stations

Improved access to
and from the ralil
network

Fishguard & Goodwick and improved HOWL services to be part of
franchise requirements

Additional regular services to and from West wales via the district
line

Investigate the opportunities/develop business cases for new
stations

Wider rail connectivity

Work to secure Western rail access to Heathrow

Examine the potential for a South Wales HS3 new alignment for
high speed rail

Examine new rapid transit corridors utilising freight only corridors

Page 158




Five Year Trunk Road aspirations

Trunk Road e Construct the Llandewi Velfrey to Penblewin improvement scheme
commitments e Construct the Llandeilo bypass
Trunk Road priorities e Review/improve M4 Slip roads in Port Talbot following experimental
closures
e Selective improvements to the A40 and prepare business case for
full dualling in due course
e Selective improvements to the M4/A48/A40 junctions and
associated schemes/links
Collaborative working e Work collaboratively with LAs on the introduction of road safety
measures on the Trunk road network
Trunking Trunking the following links:

a) A4138 M4 Junction 48 to Llanelli

b) A4138 Wind Street, Tir y dial junction
c) A483 M4 Junction 42 to Swansea

d) A483 M4 Junction 47 to Swansea

e) A4067 — M4 Junction 45 to Swansea

f)  A42412 M4 Junction 38 to Baglan

g) A476 — Llandeilo to Cross Hands

h) A478 Cardigan to Narberth

i) A477 Johnston to Pembroke Dock
Review options for park & share sites adjacent to the M4 along the
TEN-T route

Improve access to ports and links to Ireland

Medium and long term Trunk road aspirations

Improved connectivity for people
and freight

e Complete dualling of the A40

e Commence construction and operation of Park & Share
sites adjacent to the M4

e Trunk A485/6 Carmarthen to Synod Inn

e Trunk A4076 Johnston bypass

Five Year and long term Sea & Air aspirations

Tap into available e Maximise multi modal journeys which utilise port capacity
resources and capacity e Continue to encourage appropriate development close to ports
for carriage of people e Encourage tourism related traffic through ports to increase the
and goods viability of towns and district centres

Providing fast access e Consider options for and benefits of expansion of capability at
to investors regional airports as part of the RERS

Page 159



Five Year Revenue aspirations

Description Detail
Protecting and Growing e Increase existing levels of funding for road maintenance, support
existing connectivity for rail, bus and community transport services
services e Set up 3-5 year guaranteed levels of support to bus and community

transport to foster innovation, attract match funding and ensure
stability (as recommended by Bus Policy Group)

e Fund pilot studies for innovative “travel to work” transport

e Protect and grow Traws Cymru strategic services

Supporting behavioural e Continue to support Regional Travel Plan role

change e Implement behavioural change programmes to encourage more
sustainable travel

e Support the Education, Training and Publicity schemes associated
with Road Safety

e Develop and introduce an all Wales payment method for use on
multi modal or multi operator journeys

e Support the collection and collation of City region wide data for
evaluation purposes

Raising the profile of e Develop an all Wales advertising campaign to support coherent

alternative modes and consistent messages on sustainable and healthy travel

e Examine the role for concessionary fares for younger people, job
seekers etc

e Promote the All Wales car sharing scheme

Medium and long term aspirations for Revenue

Description Detail
Creating stable and resilient e Improve levels of funding for maintenance, rail, bus and
connectivity community transport support

e Set up 5 year guaranteed levels of support to bus and
community transport to foster innovation, attract match
funding and ensure stability

e Fund the development of innovative forms of “travel to
work” transport schemes

e Examine the introduction of network franchising in Wales

Raising awareness of and e Sustain behavioural change programmes to encourage
improving information about more sustainable travel
travel choices e Support the growth of an all Wales payment method for

use on multi modal or multi operator journeys

e Continue with an all Wales advertising campaign to
support coherent and consistent messages on sustainable
and healthy travel

Page 160




Agenda Item 9

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF ENGINEERING AND TRANSPORT
- D.W. GRIFFITHS

18™ DECEMBER 2014
SECTION A— MATTER FOR DECISION
WARD(S) AFFECTED: NEATH EAST

PROPOSED PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME ORDER —
CORALS RESIDENTIAL SCHEME, BOWEN STREET, NEATH

Purpose of Report

To obtain Members approval for advertisement of the proposed Traffic
Regulation Order indicated in Appendix A.

Background

Following a Planning Application (P/2009/1044), it has been conditioned that
Traffic Regulation Orders be implemented on a section of the A474 Briton
Ferry Road which comprises the frontage of the Corals Residential Scheme
(from junction with Marshfield Road to the Melin Cryddan Community Advice
Centre). Due to existing traffic orders and zig zag markings for Pelican
Crossing being in place this condition was deemed unnecessary. A scheme to
implement a No Waiting at Any Time Traffic Regulation Order on Bowen
Street however is required to prevent vehicles from obstructing the turning area
adjacent to the Corals Residential development.

Screening Assessment has been undertaken to assist the Council in discharging
its Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010. After completing
the assessment it has been determined that this function does not
require an Equality Impact Assessment.

Financial Implications

The scheme will be funded by the Developer.

Page 161



Consultation OQutcome

A consultation exercise will be carried out when the works are advertised.

Sustainability Appraisal

The proposals are necessary to prevent vehicles from obstructing the turning
area on Bowen Street.

Recommendation

It is recommended having due regard to the Equalities Impact Assessment
screening, that approval be given for the proposed Traffic Regulation Order to
be advertised as indicated on the attached plan (Appendix A) and subject to
there being no objections for the order be implemented.

Reasons For Proposed Decision

To prevent indiscriminate parking in the interest of road safety.

List of Backgound Papers

Planning Application No P/2009/1044
Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form

Appendicies

Appendix A

Officer Contact

Mr J Kane, Assistant Engineer — Traffic
Tel No. 01639 686465
E-mail: j.kane@npt.gov.uk

Page 162



COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

PROPOSED PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME ORDER —
CORALS RESIDENTIAL SCHEME, BOWEN STREET, NEATH

(@ Implementation of Decision

The decision is proposed for implementation after the three day call-in
period.

(b)  Sustainability Appraisal
Community Plan Impacts

Economic Prosperity - Positive
Education and Lifelong Learning - No Impact
Better Health and Well Being - Positive
Environment and Transport - Positive
Crime and Disorder - No Impact

Other Impacts

Welsh Language - No Impact
Sustainable Development - Positive

Equalities - No Impact
Social Inclusion - No Impact

(c) Consultation

The item has been subject to external consultation.

Page 163



Appendix A

u:ﬁ.(mo.th A9 UOWE\S, 0¥ 1\I0AUOD WIWAORASO\SIWAYIS OWEIL\NI-ZOVSIA

<_ GO'004SEY  oysumua
9|BOS O} JON | =ws
w0 [ wa [ o] wsa| wwo| e
on [resev | aor| e | e[ wewo
ON 9p00 mIouRLLY SZUL oN g
HLV3N
‘133418 NIMmog
SINIWANINWY

¥3AHO D144Vl d3S0d0ydd o

10|18} 110d Ppau-||a1se) ==
10qje1 1iod YyieaN W~

iy

!

JopJo ayesny
own Aue je Buiem ou pasodosy T T =

SUNIBRO SSIAUN SANOUIL Ul SUOISUSWIP IV T

g)ﬂﬂmggwkozgm
OGNV ONMVS0 QYO V SISIHL +

APPENDIX A

i

o B

Page 164



Agenda Item 10

ENVIRONEMNT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF CORPORATE STRATEGY AND DEMOCRATIC
SERVICES

18™" DECEMBER 2014

SECTION B-MATTER FOR INFORMATION

WARDS AFFECTED: BAGLAN

OFFICER URGENCY ACTION —TO SERVE NOTICE UNDER SECTIONS 289
AND 290 OF THE HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 TO GAIN ACCESS TO UNDERTAKE
A STREET LIGHTING INSPECTION/SURVEY AT ROWANTREE AVENUE,
BAGLAN

The following urgency decision has been determined by the Head of Engineering and
Transport in consultation with the requisite Members, for immediate implementation.
There is no call-in of this matter.

Urgency Action No: 1267
Date: 14" November, 2014

Re: Access to undertake a street lighting inspection/survey, Rowantree Avenue,
Baglan.

The Urgency Action sought to give delegated authority to the Director of Environment, the
Head of Engineering and Transport and the Head of Streetcare and such other Officers as
they may authorise in order to gain access to Rownatree Avenue in Baglan, which is
private and under the control of the developer Mullberry Homes Ltd, to carry out a street
lighting inspection/survey.

Rowantree Avenue is subject to an Advance Payment Code Notice, where residents are
experiencing problems in relation to street lighting. The developer has refused public
lighting Officers access to the street lighting, therefore requiring the implementation of
Sections 289 and 290 of the Highways Act 1980, in order to undertake the Council’s
statutory duties, and enable any faults to be identified and itemised and inform any
subsequent action to be undertaken to rectify any faults with the developer.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted.

Page 165



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11

ENVIRONEMNT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF CORPORATE STRATEGY AND DEMOCRATIC
SERVICES

18™" DECEMBER 2014

SECTION B-MATTER FOR INFORMATION

WARDS AFFECTED: CADAXTON

TO SERVE NOTICE UNDER SECTION 24 OF THE LAND DRAINAGE ACT
1991, FOR THE OWNERS OF THE LAND TO REINSTATE THE
WATERCOURSE AT BIRCH LANE, CADAXTON, NEATH.

The following urgency decision has been determined by the Head of Engineering and
Transport in consultation with the requisite Members, for immediate implementation.
There is no call-in of this matter.

Urgency Action No: 1268
Date: 27" November, 2014

Re: To obtain authority to serve Notice under Section 24 of the Land Drainage Act
1991 at Birch Lane, Cadaxton, Neath.

The Urgency Action sought to give delegated authority to the Director of Environment, the
Head of Engineering and Transport and the Head of Streetcare and such other Officers as
they may authorise, to serve notice under Section 24 of the Land Drainage Act 1991, to
serve notice on owners at Birch Lane, Cadaxton, Neath, where a watercourse had been
diverted without the Authority’s consent.

The notice would require the landowners to reinstate the watercourse to its original route
within 28 days of the date of the notice, so that adjoining properties to the area which is
flooded will no longer continue to experience partial flooding of their gardens.

RESOLVED: that the report be noted.

Page 167



This page is intentionally left blank



69T abed

2014/2015 FORWARD WORK PLAN

ENVIRONMENT AND HIGHWAYS CABINET BOARD

Meeting Type Rotation
Date and Agenda Items (Decision, (Topical, ,Annual,
Time Monitoring or | Biannual, Quarterly,
Information) Monthly, Topical)
1) Budget Monitoring (2014/15 Savings) | Monitor
2) Highway Development Control - Fees| Info Annual
29/01/15 and Charges
3) Sustainable Development Policy Decision | Topical
(Karen Jones)
4) Neath Town Centre Pedestrian Zone | Decision Topical
& Retailers Permits
5) Building Control — Fees and Charges | Info Annual
6) 3 x Rights of Way reports from Legal | Decision
Section
1) Vehicle Fleet Procurement Decision Annual
Programme
12/03/15 2) Road Safety Strategy Decision
3)
4)

VERSION #11 (10/12/14)

wa)| epuaby



0.7 abed

Meeting Type Rotation
Date and Agenda Items (Decision, (Topical, ,Annual,
Time Monitoring or | Biannual, Quarterly,
Information) Monthly, Topical)
1) Offers of Grant & Acceptances Decision
2) Local Government Borrowing Decision Annual
23/04/15 Initiative (LGBI) 2013/14 — 2014/15
Settlement
1) Business Plans — D.Griffiths
- M.Roberts
May/April? - N.Pearce
2)
3)

VERSION #11 (10/12/14)




	Agenda
	3 To receive the Minutes of the previous Environment and Highways Cabinet Board held on 13th November 2014.
	4 Corporate Comments, Compliments and Complaints
	5 Environment and Highways Performance Indicators, Quarter 2, 2014/15
	6 Transforming Bailiff Services
	7 Proposed Removal of Council Subsidised Bus Services
	8 Joint Local Transport Plan South West Wales
	9 Traffic Order - Corals Residential Scheme, Bowen Street, Neath
	10 Urgency Action 1267 - Rowantree Avenue, Baglan
	11 Urgency Action 1268 - Watercourse at Birch Lane, Cadaxton, Neath
	 To receive the Forward Work Programme 2014/15.

